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Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited (referred to as
“Zheneng Jinjiang Environment” or the “Company”) is a forerunner and
leading waste-to-energy operator in China's waste-to-energy ("WTE")
industry. In 1998, the Company established the first WTE facility in China
to utilise differential-density circulating fluidised bed technology and
was the first WTE operator in China to develop and industrialise this
technology. The Company has an established track record in investment,
construction, operations, and management.

On 3 August 2016, the Company was successfully listed on the Mainboard of
the Singapore Exchange, markinganimportant milestone for the Company.
On 21 August 2019, Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd (“Zheneng
Group”) became the largest controlling shareholder of the Company and
on 25 November 2019, the Company changed its name from “China Jinjiang
Environment Holding Company Limited” to “Zheneng Jinjiang Environment
Holding Company Limited". It is the sole solid waste platform and the main
driver of circular economy development for Zheneng Group.

Interms of waste treatment capacity and geographical coverage, Zheneng
Jinjiang Environment is still among the top few WTE industry players in
the PRC. The Company strives to be a promoter and leader in domestic
WTE technology, an integral promoter of the applicability of fluidised bed
technology and moving grate technology, and an outstanding manager of
the operations of WTE enterprises. At present, the Company has further
expanded its industry chain to include sludge, kitchen waste, animal
carcasses and many other fields. Through leveraging the advantages of
synergistic cycles, the Company focuses on building an urban ecological
complex, and striving to create a better environment as well as meet the
people’s growing environmental needs for a better life.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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(Executive Director and Deputy General Manager)
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(Lead Independent Director)
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(Independent Director)
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Ang Swee Tian (Member)
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Hoon Chi Tern(LLB (Hons))
Toh Li Ping, Angela (ACIS)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Grand Pavilion

Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
P.0. Box 31119, KY1-1205

Cayman Islands
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

1Yinxiu Road

Level 19, Tower A, Hangyue Commercial Center
Gongshu District, Hangzhou City

Zhejiang Province, People’'s Republic of China 310011

2 Venture Drive
#15-19 Vision Exchange
Singapore 608526

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE COMPANY AS TO SINGAPORE
LAW

Rajah & Tann Singapore LLP

9 Straits View

#06-07 Marina One West Tower
Singapore 018937

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE COMPANY AS TO PRC LAW

Jingtian & Gongcheng

34th Floor, Tower 3, China Central Place
77 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang District
Beijing 100025

People’'s Republic Of China

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE COMPANY AS TO CAYMAN
ISLANDS LAW AND BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS LAW

Walkers (Singapore) Limited Liability Partnership
3 Church Street

#16-02 Samsung Hub

Singapore 049483

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
7 Straits View

#12-00 Marina One East Tower
Singapore 018936

Partner-In-Charge:
Mr Tham Tuck Seng
(Appointed since the financial year ended
31December 2020)

SHARE REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte Ltd
1Harbourfront Avenue

#14-07 Keppel Bay Tower

Singapore 098632
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Chairman’s Message
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

First of all, on behalf of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company
Limited, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude for the continued
care and support you have shown towards the healthy and sustainable
development of the Company.

Industry Analysis

2021 marked the centenary of the founding of the Communist Party
of China and the first year of the 14th Five-Year Plan. It is also a crucial
year for completing the building of a moderately prosperous society in all
respects and embarking on a new journey of building a modern socialist
country in all respects.

After more than 20 years of development, the solid waste industry is
currently in the “three overlapping phases”. The macroeconomic
environment has entered a period of downward pivot in growth, and
the growth rate has slowed down. The development of an ecological
civilization has entered a strategic phase of deepening with the policy
requirements such as the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality goals” and
the construction of “Zero-Waste City” constantly increasing. The industry
development has entered a period of breakthrough in shifting gears with
a crowded track and diverse needs. In the context of “three overlapping
phases”, the development of the WTE industry has entered a new phase.

4 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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At the 75th United Nations General Assembly, China clarified the timeline
for achieving the peak of carbon dioxide emissions and carbon neutrality
for the first time, which include reaching the peak of carbon dioxide
emissions by 2030, and striving to achieve carbon neutrality by 2060. It
is a major strategic decision made by coordinating both domestic and
international situations. It is an inevitable choice to focus on solving
outstanding resource and environmental constraints, and it is also a
solemn commitment to building a community with a shared future for
mankind. The domestic waste incineration treatment method not only
reduces the emission of methane and carbon dioxide during the slow
degradation of waste in landfills, but also plays a role in replacing fossil
fuels through energy utilisation in the incineration process, achieving a
double emission reduction effect that will help to successfully achieve the
“carbon peaking” and “carbon neutrality” goals.

In May 2021, the National Development and Reform Commission of China
(“NDRC") and the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development jointly
issued the “Notice on Printing and Distributing the Development Plan
for Urban Domestic Waste Classification and Treatment Facilities in the
14th Five-Year” (Fagai Huanzi [2021] No. 642), which targets that by the
end of 2025, the resource utilisation rate of national urban domestic
waste is to reach about 60%, and the national domestic waste collection
and transportation capacity is to reach about 700,000 tonnes/day. The
national urban domestic waste incineration treatment capacity is to reach
about 800,000 tonnes/day, while the urban domestic waste incineration
treatment capacity is to reach about 65%.

InOctober 2021, the“Opinions of the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China and the State Council on Completely, Accurately and
Comprehensively Implementing the New Development Concept and
Doing a Good Job in Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality” (referred
to as the “Opinions”) was issued, making systematic plans and overall
deployment for carbon peaking and carbon neutrality. The Opinions
put forward five main goals, including building a green, low-carbon and
circular development economic system, improving energy utilisation
efficiency, increasing the proportion of non-fossil energy consumption,
reducing carbon dioxide emissions, and improving the carbon sink
capacity of the ecosystem, and clarified the roadmap and construction
drawings for carbon peaking and carbon neutrality work.

The WTE industry is highly sensitive to social and policy support and
guidance to requlate the industry. This is also key to the development of
the industry, which in turn, creates a favorable market environment for the
development of China's WTE industry.
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Chairman's Message
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Business Review

In 2021, the resurgence and volatility of the COVID-19 pandemic saw
prevention and control measures tightened in several areas. Extreme
weather events frequently occurred during the year, causing severe
floods in Henan and Hebei Province that had not been encountered for
many years. Material prices have skyrocketed as a result, significantly
increasing the cost for production and construction. The pressure of
economic transformation has increased and some local governments
have tight financial resources. The WTE facilities were put into operation
in a centralised manner, and competition among peers increasingly
intensified. In the face of the aforesaid challenges, we remained united,
working together to improve existing capacity and development of new
projects, to accomplish stable development and progress, with various
operational results exceeding expectations.

In 2021, the Company remained focused and committed in pushing
through the in-depth development of safety and environmental
protection in an orderly manner. Through improving the safety and
environmental protection target assessment mechanism, refining the
environmental protection standardisation system, carrying out special
inspection activities such as safety and environmental protection
audits, and effectively managing safety and environmental protection
plans, the Company has comprehensively strengthened the safety and
environmental protection foundation, and firmly adhered to both the
bottomline and red line of operation to further enhance the management
of safe production.

In 2021, the Company comprehensively promoted the development of
existing projects by learning from advanced cases and improving its
operation. We promoted “three refinements” management of “refined
organisation, refined management, and refined operation” guided by our
goals, comprehensively strengthened business targets and performance
management, as well as business analysis and rolling budget management,
to lay a solid foundation for the Company’s sustainable development.

6 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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In 2021, the Company formulated comprehensive plans and implemented
them efficiently and made every effort to ensure the high-standard
implementation of new projects. Based on national policies and market
environment, we continuously established and improved the investment
development and project management system, and organised and
completed the legal compliance procedures of projects to facilitate
the project implementation. During the year, several projects were put
into operation, laying the foundation for the Company to leapfrog in its
development during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period.

In 2021, the Company devoted itself to technological innovation and digital
empowerment, speeding up its development with new technologies.
We have expanded our development connotation internally and sought
new technology innovation externally with much accomplishments. As
of December 2021, more than half of our operational enterprises were
awarded the “national high-tech enterprise”. The Company reasonably
allocates technical strength, and is guided by the concept of synergy,
recycling, green and low carbon to explore high-parameter technical
solutions and accelerate the construction of ecological complexes. The
Company comprehensively promotes digital reform and promotes a “four-
step” strategy for the integration of digitalisation and artificial intelligence
("Al") to achieve innovative development. We completed the intelligent
optimisation of incineration for boilers in Hankou Jinjiang WTE Facility,
Tangshan Jiasheng WTE Facility, Zibo Green Energy WTE Facility and
Gaomi Lilangmingde WTE Facility, which are gradually showing enhanced
operational performance, laying the foundation for our subsequent
independent digital transformation. The intelligent optimisation for
Kunming Wuhua WTE Facility, Jilin Xinxiang WTE Facility and Songyuan
Xinxiang WTE Facility is progressing steadily.

In 2021, the Company made overall planning and effective improvements
to comprehensively strengthen its capital management and control for
steady development and to expand financing channels. In July 2021, a
RMB70 million “Renewable Energy Subsidy Confirmation Loan” for Kunming
Wuhua WTE Facility in Yunnan Province was approved. The loan is the
first in Yunnan Province and the first of its kind in the China Construction
Bank system. We place great importance to the improvement and
standardisation of the financial foundation and have carried out all-around
strengtheningand improvementin the aspects of capital management and
control, financing optimisation, execution analysis, regional supervision,
accounting standard improvement, and insurance planning. On the basis
of ensuring that the Company’s overall financial risks are controllable, the
Company’s comprehensive level of financial management and anti-risk
capabilities have reached a new level.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Company has 25 WTE facilities, one organic
waste treatment facility and eight Resource Recycling projects in
operationin 13 provinces, autonomous regions and centrally-administered
municipalities in PRC with a total waste treatment capacity of 40,410
tonnes/day, and the total installed capacity of 790 MW. In addition, the
Company has an additional five WTE facilities and Resource Recycling
projects under construction and 22 projects in the preparatory stage in
China and overseas. The 61 projects of the Company’s total installed waste
treatment capacity will reach to 62,645 tonnes/day upon completion of
aforesaid projects.

Social Responsibility

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment sits at the intersection of the circular
economy and the new energy industry. We thoroughly implement the
strategic planning and development requirements of the Party and the
State in the construction of ecological civilization, conform to the people’s
yearning for a better life, and use the core of domestic waste power
generation to give full play to the advantages of synergistic circulation,
seeking opportunities for collaborative and efficient disposal of all urban
solid waste to fulfill the social responsibility of environmental protection
enterprises.

In 2021, the Company treated a total of 11.38 million tonnes of domestic
waste and generated nearly 3.43 billion kilowatt-hours of green electricity,
which could meet the electricity needs of 2.53 million households, an
increase of 6.8%, 11.3% and 11.0% respectively compared with the same
period last year. This translates to a reduction in the usage of 1.72 million
tonnes of standard coal, 4.04 million tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions,
and the saving of approximately 38,000 mu of land.

In mid-July 2021, Henan Province continued to suffer from large-scale
heavy rainfall, especially in Zhengzhou City where the Zhengzhou Xingjin
WTE Facility is located. In the midst of a once-in-a-century torrential
rain and flood situation, the facility worked together to jointly build a
flood control safety line. Despite the sudden flood disaster that led to the
shutdown of production and considering the large increase in domestic
waste after the disaster, our team at Zhengzhou Xingjin WTE Facility
ceaselessly endeavored to restore operations by working round the clock.
Zhengzhou Xingjin WTE Facility fully resumed production on 28 July 2021
through about one week of operational recovery and emergency repairs by
the employees of the Facility, as well as coordinating the dispatch of the
power supply company. The facility quickly put itself into the treatment
of post-disaster waste to do a good job in post-flood disinfection. In
addition, the Company donated RMB660,000 of funds and supplies to the
local government to ensure the emergency living needs of the disaster-
stricken people, assist post-disaster reconstruction and strengthen
the safety protection of important infrastructure to firmly shoulder the
responsibility of an environmental protection-focused enterprise!

8 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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In order to further strengthen the guidance of environmental protection
and publicity, increase awareness, recognition and participation of society
on waste reduction, harmlessness and recycling treatment, the Company
actively opens its environmental protection facilities to the public. At the
same time, in order to reduce the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group's subsidiaries also present the end-of-life waste treatment to the
publicintuitively and vividly through virtual live broadcasts and responding
to the public’'s concern about “where any waste is going”.

Future Outlook

Forge ahead with fortitude to create a new phase for the
high-quality development of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment

In the face of the complex and severe international situation and the
arduous domestic reform, development and stabilisation tasks, Zheneng
Jinjiang Environment will continue to focus on environmental protection,
persevere and adhere to the mission of “Beautifying the Cities and
Making the Environment more Natural”, fully transiting to high-quality
development, give full play to the physical advantages of mixed ownership,
enhance development momentum, cultivate new growth points, leverage
on digital and intelligence, and coordinate management improvement of
existing projects and expansion of new projects. We will set goals, boost
confidence, take advantage of the trend, win opportunities, and forge new
journeys to create a bright future together!

Heartfelt Thanks and Well Wishes

On behalf of the Board of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment, | would like to
thank all shareholders and business partners for their strong support, as
well as the management and staff for their efforts in the past year! | wish
for a more beautiful and natural environment for cities around the world!
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Financial Highlights
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Results
Al &%

Revenue

L'ON

FY2021 2,864,238 1,196,138 4,060,376
RMB'000

FY2020 2,443,082 641,582 3,084,664
RMB'000

Percentage Change

2 31.6%
ERaliaid)
([ ] Among which revenue @ Others
from WTE business Hity
Heh: WIENL U
EBITDA* Return on shareholders’ equity (%)
FRFIS . R, # IR B AT & A - REREER 0
FY2021 1,472,812  Fr2o2 6.84%
RMB’'000 :
FY2020 1,277,247 E FY2020 5.47%
RMB'000 :
Percentage Change o i Percentage Change K
z 15.31% ] z 25.05%
HH LI  BESHTH
*  EBITDA excludes BOT profit, exchange and non-recurring profit and loss
EBITDAT E#EZBOTHE. SN FIFEL &1L FIIR 5%
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company Basic earnings per share (RMB cents)
ARARMERE AR G &H - BREAEN (AR
RMB’'000 :
FY2020 326,934 -~ FY2020 22.48
RMB'000 :
Percentage Change o ¢ Percentage Change °
= 33.98% : = 33.98%
Rl . ESLkEE)
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Position
W S5 4R
Total assets Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
B  RDRNEEE AR &R
ool 20580727 ool 6402667 ]
20,380,727 ,402,667
RMB’000 D20 RMB’000 ERf2 B
RMB000 17,766,684 RMB000 5,975,815
Percentage Change o Percentage Change o
B4 A 171 BT T
Total liabilities . Net asset value per share (RMB cents)
Btk  SREAEE (AR
FY2021 13,835,835 - Fy2021 450.12
RMB’000 :
FY2020 11,663,662 - FY2020 419.73
RMB'000 :
Percentage Change o : Percentage Change ®
18.62% 7.24%
BT BT
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Corporate Milestones
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FIRST QUARTER OF 2021

2021 FEE—FFE

The Group’s Zhuji Bafang WTE Facility in Zhejiang Province, Songyuan
Xinxiang WTE Facility in Jilin Province, Qitaihe Green Energy WTE
Facility and Suihua Green Energy WTE Facility in Heilongjiang
Province were included in the fourth batch of units open to the public
for national environmental protection facilities and urban sewage
and waste treatment facilities jointly announced by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment and the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development.

Leting Jinhuan WTE Facility in Tangshan City, Hebei Province was put
into trial operation.

The Kunming Demonstration Project of the Global Environmental Fund
“China Domestic Waste Comprehensive Environmental Management
Project” of Yunan Green Energy WTE Facility in Kunming City, Yunnan
Province passed the acceptance test successfully, improving
the sustainable development capability of the Facility, and also
demonstrated a set of feasible technology and management model of
fluidised bed technology.

The Zibo Green Energy WTE Facility in Shandong Province was
awarded the “Excellent Power Plant Open to the Public in 2020"
granted by Polaris Environmental Protection Network.

Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the drop in blood
donors around the Spring Festival, the blood bank in Hangzhou City
where the Company's headquarters is located, faced a shortage.
Given the shortage of blood, the Company organised a voluntary blood
donation drive where a total of 8,600 ml of blood was donated.
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SECOND QUARTER OF 2021

Corporate Milestones

I K=IE

2021 FE_&F[E

The Company conducted first aid knowledge and skills training in its
headquarters to further enhance employees’ emergency awareness in
the face of emergencies and accidental injuries, to improve self-rescue
and mutual rescue capabilities.

The Company organised for party members and cadres to visit and
study in Yu Village, Anji City, Zhejiang Province, experiencing the
practice of the Two Mountains Theory of “Lucid waters and lush
mountains are invaluable assets” raised by Mr. Xi Jinping, President
of the People’s Republic of China in Anji City.

The Shijiazhuang Wuji Resource Recycling Project in Hebei Province
was put into operation.

The Company convened its FY2020 Annual General Meeting and
released the FY2020 Annual Report.
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Henan Province, where the Zhengzhou Xinjin WTE Facility and Linzhou
Jiasheng WTE Facility are located, continues to suffer from heavy
rainfall on a large scale. Employees from the aforesaid facilities
stood firm and fought against the disaster. The Company donated
RMB660,000 of funds and supplies to ensure the emergency living
needs of the disaster-stricken people.

The Company continues to be awarded the "2021 China Top 50
Environmental Companies” and “2021 Global Top 500 New Energy

Companies”.

Ecogreen Energy, the Group's subsidiary in India, was conferred the

“Beautiful City” prize by the government of Haryana State of India for

its contributions to the city cleaning campaign, especially during the
COVID-19 pandemic period.

One boiler and one turbine of Lianyungang Sunrise WTE Facility
Expansion Project in Jiangsu Province were put into operation.
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The first phase of Zhongwei WTE Project in Ningxia Hui Autonomous
Region, the Baishan Green Energy WTE Facility in Jilin Province,
the Reconstruction Project of Wuhu Jinjiang WTE Facility in Anhui
Province and the Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Resource Recycling Project
in Hebei Province were put into operation.

The Zhuji Bafang WTE Facility in Shaoxing City, Zhejiang Province
was included in the list of the eleventh batch of ecological civilisation
education bases in Zhejiang Province announced by the Zhejiang
Provincial Department of Ecology and Environmental Protection.
And the Jilin Xinxiang WTE Facility in Jilin Province was conferred
the “2021 Excellent Power Plant Open to the Public” award by Polaris
Environmental Protection Network.

The Company was awarded “2021 Top Ten Influential Solid Waste
Enterprises”and “Polaris Cup” 2021 Social Benefit Contribution Award.
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Despite the challenges faced by the industry, the Group has shown great

resilience and achieved full resumption of operations. Equipped with such
character, we will continue to stand against the current and seek growth

through new project opportunities.



Operations and Financial Review

Overcoming Challenges, Turning Crisis into Opportunities to
Develop

In 2021, the production and operation of WTE facilities were affected by
various unfavorable factors, such as rise in energy consumption cost,
frequent outbreaks and resurgence of the COVID-19 virus, severe heavy
rain in Henan Province and the record-breaking time typhoon “Fireworks”
stayed onshore. In response to the opportunities and challenges, the
Company went all out, concentrating its efforts and strengthening
its confidence to focus on pandemic prevention and control, as well
as production and operation. All production and operation indicators
exceeded expectations. On the basis of good pandemic prevention and
control foundations, the Company shouldered the social responsibility
of an environmental protection-focused enterprise, and successfully
completed the task of ensuring the normal disposal of domestic waste in
the city where the facilities are located and the emergency disposal task
of domestic waste mixed with medical waste in some areas, providing
a strong guarantee of sanitation work during the COVID-19 pandemic in
various places.

L2E 35 Bl

XM e bR, #FEAIRAR

20214, RREMARRI LA, HEmMREEES
MEHAXNBREAFRGFEE, TEBARME
NERSEWMER, AR B K E R E
HHEBLER MR ERN B EEE
BRHER—EZM. RXHBSHkE, ARE
ALLGE, BORAD, BERLC, —FIUEIER
Z, —FME~ZE, SMEFZERRYF
T . EITIFRIEMHIEE AR E, 2
ABETEY, IETHRRELMHESRE,
i 5T B Ml B 7E 3 T Y A TR AR IE B AL B AR PR
ES AR e XA RR & E T iR e 24k
BES ASHWERHEBRIIERE®ETEN
HOIREE .

‘"m[mr” . | 5!i .i'le.l"
il

Annual Report 2021 7



Operations and Financial Review
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Five WTE projects and two Resource Recycling projects of the Company
were put into operation in 2021. In the face of the severe situation of
COVID-19 prevention and control, the Company took effective measures to
ensure the orderly production and operation of the operational facilities.
The construction of projects put into operation was on schedule which
contributed to the local ecological environment protection. The Leting
Jinhuan WTE Facility in Tangshan City, Hebei Province was successfully
connected to the grid for power generation with an additional waste
treatment capacity of 500 tonnes/day. The Shijiazhuang Wuji Resource
Recycling Project and Gaocheng Resource Recycling Project were also put
intooperation. The Gaocheng Resource Recycling Projectisakeylivelihood
projectin Gaocheng District, completely changing the original local landfill
method. The Zhongwei WTE Facility in Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region
was put into operation, with an additional waste treatment capacity
of 500 tonnes/day, marking Zhongwei City’s transition into an era of
domestic waste incineration. The Baishan Green Energy WTE Facility in
Jilin Province was successfully connected to the grid, adding 600 tonnes/
day of waste treatment capacity, greatly reducing the amount of land for
local landfill waste and optimising the local environmental quality. The
Reconstruction Project of Wuhu Jinjiang WTE Facility in Anhui Province
and the one boiler and one turbine of the Reconstruction and Expansion
Project of Lianyungang Sunrise WTE Facility in Jiangsu Province were put
into operation, with an additional waste treatment capacity of 750 tonnes/
day. In conclusion, during the year under review, the Company added 2,350
tonnes/day of waste treatment capacity and 7IMW of installed capacity
in China. As at 31 December 2021, the waste treatment capacity of WTE
facilities (including the organic waste treatment facility) in operation
reached 40,410 tonnes/day with an installed electricity generation
capacity of 790MW.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has three WTE projects and one
Resource Recycling project under construction in China, which are
progressing steadily. The two boilers and two turbines of Shijiazhuang
Jiasheng WTE Project in Hebei Province, the Expansion Project of Yunan
Green Energy WTE Facility in Yunnan Province, the Expansion Project of
Hohhot Jiasheng WTE Facility in Inner Mongolia, and the Songyuan Xinxiang
Resource Recycling Project in Jilin Province are expected to be put into
operation successively in 2022, increasing the waste treatment capacity
by 3,100 tonnes/day and 107MW of installed electricity generation capacity
upon completion.

The Company continues to explore new ways of synergetic development. As
at 31December 2021, there are 14 WTE projects, four Kitchen Waste projects
and one Resource Recycling project under preparation in China, which are
undertaking preparatory works for construction on schedule. Among them,
the Jinghong Jiasheng WTE project in Yunnan Province is expected to start
construction in the first half of 2022 and be put into operation in 2023.
After all the preparatory projects are completed and put into operation, it
is expected to increase the waste treatment capacity by 14,645 tonnes/day
and the installed capacity of 264MW.

78 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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In 2021, the international situation underwent profound changes, with
the COVID-19 pandemic continuing its spread, especially in India where
the new Delta variant of the novel coronavirus, was first identified. The
Company has comprehensively sorted out and strengthened overseas
project operation management. Through management improvement,
the volume of waste collection and transportation of Indian projects
has increased by 11% year-on-year, and User Charge Collection and
Key Customer Collection has increased by 84% year-on-year. The WTE
project in Gurgaon is progressing in an orderly manner. After each
overseas project is completed and put into operation, the newly added
waste treatment capacity will be 4,490 tonnes/day and 856MW of installed
electricity generation.

In summary, the waste treatment capacity will reach 62,645 tonnes/day
and 1246MW of installed electricity generation after all 61 domestic and
overseas facilities (projects in operation, projects under construction and
projects in preparation) are completed.

Operations and Financial Review
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Operations and Financial Review
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Seizing Digital Opportunities to Create a New Green and
Low-Carbon Model

In recent years, the Company has faced challenges, seized opportunities,
promoted the deep integration of big data, Al and the solid waste
industry, enhanced core competitiveness and embarked on digital
transformation to make contributions to meeting the desire for a better
life. The intelligent incineration system for fluidised bed boilers based
on Al and big data analysis has been successfully developed and applied.
Compared with manual operation, the automatic driving system has
realised a highly intelligent operation level of boiler operation, greatly
reducing the operating condition fluctuation problem caused by human
factors. Through the comparative test, the Al automatic input rate has
reached more than 90%, boiler operation stability has been improved
by more than 30%, CO emission reduction has exceeded 20%, furnace
temperature fluctuation stability has been improved by more than 30%,
and the operating economy has also been comprehensively improved.
At present, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment has realised digitalisation
of five enterprises and plans to achieve full coverage of the operational
enterprises within 1-2 years.

At the 2021 Yungi Conference of Alibaba, with the theme of “Frontier,
Exploration, Imagination”, thousands of guests shared the integration
and innovation on cloud computing, big data and Al covering ten major
technology sectorsand 21 majorindustries. ZhenengJinjiang Environment
was invited to participate in the conference and share the transformation
practice of “digital intelligence integration” and signed a framework
cooperation agreement with Alibaba Cloud to establish a partnership.

In addition, the video account of Xinhua News Agency’s “Oriental Outlook
Weekly” released the documentary “1.5°C”, which recorded the outcomes
from the combination of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment and Alibaba
Cloud Industrial Brain's digital intelligence. Xinhua News Agency’s report
“Let Responsible Digital Technology Create Sustainable” also mentioned
the low-carbon and circular green revolution that Zheneng Jinjiang
Environment is embarking on.

KM FHNE, ITEEBRRIFHER

IR, ARAEEHRE. BB, HXY
B, ALBRSEEmLREMS, BEZL
TN, 2EAREVEFULE, ABEA
R EFEFREEEL IR 2RMINFF
RERATETFAFKERES T RLRBSE
RERIE R, MATR/EMEL, BBERRSE
REZEFEXATWIPEITHSES K, KKE
BT AABRZRHERMEBITLRKENEE. &
LRI R, A BIFIRAFIXF|0%A L, 57
WIBITIRE R F T #BII30%, COHEMUR & i
20%, WREIRE KIS EMRA0%UL L, FE
BITEFMHRBETEHREA. BT, #EER
MR E KRB TSRE A E4, HRIFE1-2
FAKUMAZERILEES.

FERLCHTE - RE - BRAN7 AEBA2021 [
EBBZMAS L, LTREESELRIHE.
REE. ATEHHEFBF10RKARR21 KT
WeIRRE SEIH, MERIMEZESMAS
HOF “HEMS” HEALK, HAEWNERR
ITHERSEMN, BISIEREXRR.

s, FHEHEE (BERATEAT) AMS%
WmEFRRE (1.5C) , IBRTHEBILINESH
BRIWARHELEENR: HEHMHE ik
AREMBFRA, GIERFERNREK) —X
Hh 1 12 K% 7 BE $8 T T R R IE 7E GRS B IR AR B IR 4%
BEW.

B

20 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited




Launching the engine of new technologies and new businesses at
full speed to accelerate the construction of an ecological complex

In 2021, the Company improved its core competitiveness through
technological innovation, effectively organized and carried out innovation
activities, jointly built core technologies, and vigorously promoted the deep
integration of Industry-University-Research. We have obtained a total of
137 patents, including 9 invention patents, 128 utility patents during the
year and have accumulated 310 patents and software works, including 42
invention patents, 259 utility model patents and 9 software works.

The Company has also strengthened the production technology and basic
management of enterprises, carried out technical exchange and training,
and solved the pain points and difficulties of fluidised bed operation with
“Small Investment, Large Output” to increase in production and efficiency.
The Company reasonably allocates technical strength and explores high-
parameter technical solutions guided by the concepts of synergy, recycling,
green and low carbon. The Company continues to pay attention to its core
business of waste treatment and even the solid waste market and the new
direction of industrial development. Measures are also taken to enhance
policy and market research on co-processing of kitchen waste, sludge,
construction waste, industrial waste, and agricultural, forestry and livestock
waste. The Company is also expanding its market businesses in slag and fly
ash disposal to accelerate the construction of an ecological complex.

Operations and Financial Review
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Major Economic Indicators and Financial Summary

In 2021, the Company continued to deepen its WTE business, improve
its management and refined its production and operation indicators,
firmly promoting the integration of digital intelligence, and actively
seized the opportunity of circular economy to explore the resource
market. The Company’s waste treatment capacity and waste treatment
unit contribution continued to increase, and power generation capacity
continued to grow steadily, with the full-year operation of the second
phase of Tangshan Jiasheng WTE Facility in Hebei Province and the New
Kunming Wuhua WTE Facility in Yunan Province and most of the WTE
facilities no longer materially affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. During
the period covered by this report, the waste treatment capacity increased
by 6.8% to 11.38 million tonnes and power generation capacity increased
by 11.3% to 3.430 billion kWh, maintaining our advantageous position.

In 2021, the Company’s operating revenue reached RMB4.060 billion,
a year-on-year ("y-o-y") increase of 31.6% compared to the previous
corresponding year (“FY2020"). Revenue for the WTE business increased
17.2% y-o0-y, achieving RMB2.864 billion, mainly due to the marked increase
of the Company's waste treatment capacity and power generation capacity,
the increase in the demand of customers purchasing steam generated by
the Zhuji Bafang WTE Facility, and the expansion of the steam supplied at
Zhengzhou Xingjin WTE Facility. Revenue from construction services and
financialincome provided under build-operate-transfer(“BOT”) concession
agreements (“BOT Construction”) increased by RMB306 million y-o-y to
RMB735 million. The increase was mainly due to Zhongwei WTE Project,
Linzhou Jiasheng WTE Facility and the Expansion Project of Yunnan
Green Energy WTE Facility which was implemented as planned during
the reporting period, resulting in a y-o-y increase in the revenue from the
provision of construction services under BOT concession agreements.
Project technical and management services, equipment selection and
sale and EMC business increased by RMB249 million y-o-y to RMB461
million. The increase was mainly due to the increase in revenue of RMB271
million from the technical services, equipment selection and procurement
services provided, and this was partially offset by the reduction in FY2021
profit sharing ratio in the later stages of the EMC contracts as compared
to FY2020. The Company continues to adhere to the principle of focusing
on its main business, and the revenue contribution of each segment is as
follows: the WTE business (excluding revenue from construction services
provided under BOT concession agreements) accounted for 71% of total
revenue, BOT Construction accounted for 18% of total revenue, and
project technical and management services, equipment selection and
sale and the EMC business accounted for 11% of total revenue. The gross
profit contribution of WTE business (excluding revenue from construction
services provided under BOT concession agreements) has increased
from 53.2% in 2018 to 80% in 2021, which provides better quality of the
Company’s earnings and competitive sustainability.

22 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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In terms of profit, the total comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders in FY2021 was RMB427 million, a y-o-y increase of RMB138
million or 47.6%, mainly due to (1) the increase in gross profit from WTE
business (excluding revenue from construction services provided under
BOT concession agreements) by 17.5% which amounted to RMB125 million,
an increase in gross profit from BOT construction amounting to RMB40.1
million which was offset by the decrease in gross profit from project
technical and management service, equipment selection and sale, and
the EMC business, amounting to RMB4.9 million. Collectively, the Group's
gross profit increased by RMB160 million or 17.9%. However, gross profit
margin decreased 3.0% y-o-y due to the decrease in the profit-sharing
ratio of EMC business and increase in low-margin equipment selection
business, which led to an overall decrease of 5.9% in the project technical
and management service, equipment selection and sale and EMC
business. (2) Other income decreased by RMB12.3 million y-o-y, mainly
including (a) decrease of RMB12.7 million in value added tax refund, (b)
decrease of RMB8.0 million in bank interest income, and the (c) decrease
of RMB21.0 million in compensation income on closure of a WTE plant.
This was partially offset by (d) increase of RMB28.5 million in gain on sales
of scrap materials. (3) Loss allowance recognised on financial assets
decreased by RMB7.6 million. (4) Other gains and losses, net and currency
translation differences arising from consolidation decreased by RMB30.1
million, mainly including (a) an overall decrease in foreign exchange gain
and currency translation differences amounting to RMB92.6 million due
to the change in appreciation of the Chinese Renminbi resulting from the
foreign currency borrowings and foreign currency translation. This was
partially offset by (b) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
which decreased by RMB51.6 million, and (c) the net loss on closure of
the WTE plant which decreased by RMB11.5 million. (5) Administrative
expenses decreased by RMB19.2 million, mainly due to the adjustment
of the Company’s engineering management model, including the
optimisation on relevant personnel and resignation of employees due to
the shutdown of WTE facilities in FY2020, resulting in the reduction of
employee compensation in FY2021. (8) The investment loss of associates
and joint ventures reduced the profit by RMB13.1 million, and there were
also (7) decreases in income tax expense, etc.

The Company is investing in a number of new projects and expansion
projects in China and plans to substantially advance the engineering
and construction of overseas projects to achieve long-term sustainable
business growth. These projects require considerable financial
resources. Considering the current macroeconomic uncertainty and
global recessionary risks, the Company’s primary task is to manage cash
flow carefully and responsibly to better fulfil its financial commitments.
Accordingly, no dividends have been recommended in FY2021.
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As of 31 December 2021, the Company’s total assets were RMB20.381
billion. Net assets stood at RMBB6.545 billion, with net assets per share of
RMB4.501, an increase of 7.2% compared with the net assets per share of
RMB4.197 at the end of 2020. The Company’s liabilities to assets ratio is
68%. The Company strictly controls the amount of liabilities to ensure that
the liabilities to assets ratio and related liabilities indicators are within
reasonable limits.

In FY2021, the Company’s net cash inflow from operating activities
(excluding the BOT business expenditures classified as intangible assets
amounting to RMB630 million) was RMB959 million, mainly due to the
increase of cash flow caused by the increases in operating income. The
net cash outflow in investment activities (including intangible asset
expenditure of BOT project) was RMB1.691 billion, mainly used for the
construction of BOT projects (Zhongwei WTE Project, Linzhou Jiasheng
WTE Facility, Expansion Project of Yunan Green Energy WTE Facility
and other projects), expansion project of Zhuji Bafang WTE Facility, new
projects of Leting Jinhuan New Energy WTE Facility and Shijiazhuang
Gaocheng Resource Recycling Project, and for upgrading expenses of
some WTE facilities. The net cash inflow from financing activities was
RMB761 million, mainly from the increase of project loans and leases.

The Company adopts the principle of prudence in cash and financial
management, properly managing risks and reducing capital cost.
Operating capital mainly comes from internal cash, operating cash flow
and loans from financial institutions. Meanwhile, the Company effectively
controls capital expenditure and ensures the stable development of the
environmental protectionbusiness. Asof 31December2021, the Company'’s
cash position remained stable, with a cash balance of RMB387.8 million.

Target Strategy

The Company will continue to base itself on the two major markets of
products and resources, focus on management improvement, strategic
development, and issues, taking digital reform as the starting point to form
a four-step system of “production-level autonomous driving, equipment-
level digital twin, facility-level intelligent management and enterprise-
level business brain”. We will further carry out technology-integrated
and applied innovations, summarise and promote good technologies,
pay more attention to technological innovations, give full play to the
advantages of the mixed-ownership system, and implement incentive
mechanisms reform in an all-round way. We will comprehensively promote
lean operations, refined management and organisation, strengthen
party leadership, promote entrepreneurship, and create a learning,
benchmarking and entrepreneurial culture, all while moving forward
courageously and working hard to comprehensively create a new phase
for the high-quality development of the Zheneng Jinjiang Environment.
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Environment and National Policy

In January 2021, the Ministry of Ecology and Environment announced
the “Administrative Measures for Carbon Emission Trading (Trial)’
("Administrative Measures”) and issued a supporting quota allocation
plan and a list of key emission units, which was be implemented on 1
February 2021. The Administrative Measures reqgulate the national carbon
emission trading and related activities, stipulating the responsibilities,
rights and obligations of the ecological environment authorities and
market participants at all levels, as well as the key environmental and
work requirements for the operation of the national carbon market. The
implementation of the Administrative Measures meant that the first
compliance cycle of the national carbon market power generation industry
has officially started, and 2,225 power generation companies (including
the Group's Zhuji Bafang WTE Facility) can be allocated carbon emission
quotas.

In February 2021, the State Council issued the “Guidance on Accelerating
the Establishment and Improvement of a Green and Low-Carbon Circular
Development Economic System” (Guo Fa [2021] No. 4), which established
a "master blueprint” for China's green development and set phased goals.
This is the first time that China has made a master blueprint and overall
deployment for the establishment of a sound economic system for green
and low-carbon circular development.
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InJuly 2021, the NDRC issued the “14th Five-Year Plan for Circular Economy
Development”, which focuses on the overall improvement of resource
utilisation efficiency and the development of the circular economy.

In August 2021, the NDRC issued the “Notice on Printing and
Distributing the Construction Work Plan for Biomass Power Generation
Projects in 2021"(Fagai Energy [2021] No. 1190), further clarifying that the
central government’s share of the biomass power generation subsidies will
be adjusted y-o-y and reduced in an orderly manner, as well as increasing
the competitiveness of central government subsidies.

In December 2021, 18 departments including the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment jointly issued the “Work Plan for the Construction of “Zero-
Waste City” during the “14th Five-Year Plan” Period” (Huan Guti [2021] No.
114). Based on the summaries of 11 pilot cities and 5 pilot regions, they put
forth an overall goal to promote the construction of “Zero-Waste City” in
about 100 cities at prefecture-level above during the “14th Five-Year Plan”
period, identifying the direction of regional layout and business layout for
solid waste enterprises.

In 2021, the development of the WTE industry was facing a transition
from a high-speed development to a high-quality development. Driven by
the increased policy support and rapid growth in demand, the industry is
expected to usherin a broad market space during the “14th Five-Year Plan”
period.

Under the background of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”, the
Company withstood external challenges, strengthened internal
management, and undertook the mission of environmental protection
and energy enterprise. It transformed and upgraded through digital
empowerment, making every effort to ensure the energy and
environmental security in the locations of all subsidiaries, to facilitate the
integrated development of the Company.

Major Risks and Uncertainties

At present, China is in the “three overlapping phases” where the rate of
new waste incineration power generation capacity is much higher than the
growth rate of demand. The industry pattern has entered a broad balance,
and the national average capacity utilisation rate is less than 85%.
Changes in the supply and demand pattern have turned WTE facilities
from monopoly to competition, and they are becoming increasingly
competitive.

With the continuous maturity and progress of the industry, the state has
gradually reduced financial subsidies. At the same time, various places
have introduced benchmarks that are stricter than what is required
by China’s national standard and EU standards, with environmental
inspections and penalties increasing continuously. In the face of these
challenges and opportunities in the new stage of industry development,
the Company will recognise its own issues and advantages, accept
challenges, seize opportunities, and seek new development.

26 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited

2021 7R, ERAREUERHE ( “+HA”
BIREFERMAL) C“HAx” O, HWUE
HiESRBHMANERLEE, BEIL. 45
. R =XKaE, Y “+HOR” BHRE
FRRMEEMES

2021488, EBRARMEZEMT (KTFE0
ECONFEEMREABMBBETEAROMNIE
MY (AMEEE[2021111905) , #H—4HR#A
EMRAEBIIEFRSIEHRSZERAEHFEF
B, FEHEMATESEE R RAMERE,

20215128, £ NEEHFISEIHEEE £
(“+mMAE” FH# “REWH” B&IEA
) (FREMK (2021) 1148) , RN
AEHAS M A XN ELEREM L, 2H
T “+ME” BAEHEF100N A MR R L E
mHRE “TKEWHT” BEMIIEBIR, ABEE
Ml BRH T XA B AL &R EaI A E .

20214, WIRRRITIRXREAIRESELR
MEESREARMBER, ERRIFNE
MAURFKRREBE KAWL T, 1R
RABAE “+MOA” HAEAFEIWDR FRIHIA

Z=E.

W BT, ARMEMNESRYEE, 2L
MEERE, BHEITRERELER, UHFR
REREBIA R, £ HREREAFTAEN RS
BRe, BALRAEHELE.

FERE R AFHEME

LR, EBRELRT “Z#8EM” , HRRKEL
RIS REE TS THKERMRE, 1T
Wi FBHENETE, £EFEINARTERE
85%. MEMBITILILIIRAE NERERT
%, BRERHMIEE.

BEEITU RET A S, ERES M E
MBI, SHER, Zi4 4% H & tkEARFIE R
FROEE AR RIAR, RGBT HER
K. ExHTI A R R A kA ARALIE,
AFFINFECREBMAME, WPk
EHS. ERHER-



As previously disclosed, the Old Kunming Wuhua WTE Facility in
Kunming, Yunnan Province had been shut down and the Company is still
following up on the progress of the compensation work for its closure.
The local government has engaged a third-party asset appraisal company
to conduct an overall appraisal of the assets of the Old Kunming Wuhua
WTE Facility. The Company has separately engaged another third-party
asset appraisal company to provide a valuation report on the assets. Based
on the valuation report, the Company does not expect any impairment
arising from the closure of the Old Kunming Wuhua WTE Facility.

The Company will further strengthen its risk management system and
place risk management control at the forefront. The Company will also
improve the actual effect of risk control management to achieve risk
prevention and controlin advance, in-process verification, and post-event
rectification to ensure that risk is reasonably controllable and control
measures are effective. We will further strengthen discipline inspection
and supervision, legal compliance, rectify issues, enhance and protect
legal rights in accordance with the law, and pay attention to the quality
and depth of risk control work. We will also aim to ensure that loopholes
or deficiencies are found and make changes as necessary to form a closed
management loop, effectively protecting the Company’s interests from
being infringed.

Future Development

In 2021, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment fulfilled its corporate
responsibilities, adapted to market changes, resisted external
challenges, strengthened internal management, withstood pressure,
overcame difficulties, and worked together unitedly to achieve the stable
development and progress. Various operating results have been better
than expected through strategic development and safety operations.

In 2022, the Company will seize the opportunities brought by “carbon
peaking and carbon neutrality” and leverage any change in performance.
The national China Certified Emission Reduction (“CCER”) trading market
is currently under development, and it will be regulated and operated by
the Beijing Green Exchange. It is expected that the CCER project filing and
issuance will be restarted by the end of 2022, and relevant policies will
also be officially introduced this year. Based on preliminary estimates,
the Company can potentially achieve emissions reductions in excess
of 2 million tonnes per year under the CCER, with a great economic
and environmental value. It will continue to pay attention to and track
the development of CCER to facilitate the high-quality development of
Zheneng Jinjiang Environment. Meanwhile, we will continue to take the
lead and actively explore the scientific approach of transforming a single
waste incineration power plant into an urban solid waste co-processing
center and integrated energy supply center in industrial parks. In the
context of a vigorously developing circular economy, we will gradually
recover the right to dispose of waste like slag and scrap iron by leveraging
the power of digital to reduce costs through synergistic circulation,
improve the utilisation rate of urban solid waste, and increase corporate
profitability.
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In 2022, we will maintain an appropriate pace of investment to
further increase the capacity of existing projects and will promote
the Reconstruction Project of Wuhan Jinjiang WTE Facility, and the
construction of the Tianjin Sunrise WTE Facility, the Jinghong Jiasheng
WTE Project, the Gurgaon WTE Project in India and Palembang Project
in Indonesia.

In 2022, with a strong sense of responsibility and mission, we will
strengthen our confidence in development, give full play to the advantages
of the mixed ownership system, seize the two major markets of resources
and products, make overall plans for existing capacity and new projects
to promote the construction of an urban ecological complex that is able
to process various urban waste. We will move forward with courage,
working hard and taking initiatives to shoulder responsibilities, planning
various tasks meticulously, striving to create a new phase of innovative
development, and welcome the victory of the 20th National Congress of
the Communist Party of China with excellent results.
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Our WTE Network in the PRC
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As at 31 December 2021

GROWING CAPABILITIES AND STRENGHTS

With 25 WTE facilities (excluding the waste resource recycling projects and kitchen waste projects)already in operation and more
in the pipeline, we are steadily expanding our capacity to deliver cleaner energy. We are working to grow both breadth and depth
of our business via diversifying in the WTE value chain.

FACIL
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A E XB 5 B RHTM EHRE

TIANJIN SUNRISE LIANYUNGANG SUNRISE WUHAN JINJIANG
Ri# IIHERE WILENK S

%'G

ZIBO GREEN ENERGY SUIHUA GREEN ENERGY WENLING GREEN ENERGY
it )| BTz LIRS

HOHHOT NEW ENERGY ZIBO NEW ENERGY TANGSHAN JIASHENG HENAN LINZHOU
MBI AR LI 7 1 LWL A EE AR
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As at 31 December 2021
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SONGYUAN XINXIANG GAOMI LILANGMINGDE QITAIHE GREEN ENERGY
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Our WTE Network in the PRC
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As at 31 December 2021

[ 4
| ...
Facilitiesin
25 ﬁ‘ﬂ] operation
'\ F .|. . d
acilities under :
3 \!’} construction d
K e s
14 “ Facilities in the
preparatory stage

FACILITIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION

1. SHIJIAZHUANG JIASHENG WTE FACILITY
BREREMERFIRA A

2. YUNNAN GREEN ENERGY FACILITY EXPANSION
PROJECT
ZHRBERERAR (FEME)

3. HOHHOT JIASHENG WTE FACILITY EXPANSION
PROJECT
M4 RE EETRER AR AR (W A)

FACILITIES IN THE PREPARATORY STAGE

1. YULIN GREEN ENERGY WTE FACILITY 6. YUNNAN JINDE WTE FACILITY 11. BAYANNAO'ER WTE FACILITY
HPREREST LT PR F) ZEBRFEERERAR BE SR EIRRARAF
2. TAIGU ZHANNENG WTE FACILITY 7. LIANYUNGANG SUNRISE WTE FACILITY 12. JINGHONG WTE FACILITY
KA EEEIMEA IR AT RECONSTRUCTION AND EXPANSION PROJECT S R aeE A TR/ F)
ERERNFRELARAD BHRAE)
3. ZHONGWEI GREEN ENERGY WTE FACILITY 8. TANGSHAN JINHUAN WTE FACILITY 13. TIANJIN SUNRISE WTE FACILITY
2ND PHASE BTSSR EERA R RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT
PITHREIEERERAT (CHRA) RETRMNERRELERERAT FETE)
4. YAN'AN GUOJIN WTE FACILITY 9. HUNCHUN GREEN ENERGY WTE FACILITY 14. SHIJIAZHUANG JIASHENG WTE FACILITY
ERERFRIERARFAELT BEGETERERAR ARESBH AR RAF
5. LINZHOU JIASHENG WTE FACILITY 10. WUHAN JINJIANG WTE FACILITY
2ND PHASE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT
HINTT BRI ERARAT (CHWE) RXHREARERAIRAT GEAE)

32 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited



Our Overseas WTE Network
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As at 31December 2021

BRAZIL

‘b-‘

INDONESIA

Facilities under
construction

Q

0
3 = Facilities in the
preparatory stage

1. GURGAON INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT
2. LUCKNOW INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT
3. SAO PAULO PROJECT

4. PALEMBANG PROJECT

*  Our WTE Network in the PRC and overseas showed here exclude the waste resource recycling projects and kitchen waste projects.
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Board of Directors
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WEI Dongliang ((E & R)
Executive Chairman

WEIDongliang (5% R) is the Executive Chairman of our Company. Mr. Weiis responsible
for the overall strategic planning and management of the Group.

Mr. Wei has more than 20 years of working experience. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wei
was Deputy General Manager of Zhejiang Zheneng Lanxi Power Generation Co., Ltd. (i#ff
STHfiRE =24 A RE(E ) from September 2006 to February 2010. From February
2010 to April 2011, Mr. Wei was Deputy General Manager of Zhejiang Water Resources
and Hydropower Investment Group Co., Ltd. (#iiT& KRk B 1% HEF B R F). From
April 2011 to September 2016, he was Deputy Director and Director of Asset Management
Department of Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd. (I & &ERER B R ).
From September 2016 to September 2019, he served as Director and General Manager of
Zheneng Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. (i g8 Z ARIZRE G BRA 7).

Mr Wei graduated from Zhejiang University (#iiLX%) with a Bachelor of Chemical
Engineering (Industrial Automation) ({2 Ti#EFRZTA B a4 E ) in August 1996 and a
Master of Business Administration (L& &2 % A1) in March 2004.

N
36 ‘ Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited -

il




Board of Directors

EES

WANG Ruihong (EE#41)
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

WANG Ruihong (E541) is an Executive Director and Deputy General
Manager of our Company and is responsible for general administrative
management, market branding and legal compliance of our Group. Mr.
Wang joined our Group in June 2004 and was Deputy General Manager
of Green Energy Hangzhou. He was appointed as a Director of our
Company in December 2010.

Mr. Wang has more than 30 years of experience in accounting and
corporate finance. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang took up
various positions at Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textile Gif;I224T
ZB%) (currently known as Zhejiang Sci-Tech University (#i;IIET
X)) from July 1985 to March 1999, including Deputy Director of
Infrastructure Construction Department (¥#4b), Deputy Director
of Finance Department (14534k) and Director of State Owned Asset
Management Office (B &FEIEHHAE). From March 1999, Mr.
Wang took up several positions at Jinjiang Group, including Director
of Finance Department and Accounting Department, Assistant
to General Manager, Deputy General Manager and Chief Officer of
Inspection and Evaluation Department (&€& iF{& () and General
Management Center (4&2& &3 /() and has been Chief Director of
Office (M AE) since 2013. Mr. Wang was also Chairman of the board
of directors of Zhejiang Huadong Aluminium Co., Ltd. (#i;T4E &R
A FR2F)), anon-ferrous metal smelting and processing company and
a subsidiary of Jinjiang Group, from December 2013 to June 2016.

Mr. Wang received a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics (Infrastructure
Construction Finance and Credit)(EZ WM &5 A& L 2F FF+24I)
from the Shanghai Institution of Finance and Economics (_EiB &=
B5)(currently known as Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
(BB K%)) in July 1985 and is registered as an Accountant by
the Zhejiang Province Department of Ministry (#7131 2& WM EJT). He is
also conferred Advanced Economist (Corporate Management) by the
Zhejiang Province Human Resources and Social Security Department(
HIE AN N ZIBRINAE S REET). From September 2009 to March 2010,
Mr. Wang also attended the Environmental Protection Seminar for
Senior Management organised by the Department of Environmental
Science and Engineering of Tsinghua University. Mr. Wang also
completed the Senior Management Research Class in Environmental
Protection (FMREHRERMLZIEA) held by All-China Environment
Federation (R 4£IRREE S £) in March 2010.

ANG Swee Tian
Lead Independent Director

ANG Swee Tian is the Lead Independent Director of our Company.
Mr. Ang is an Independent, Non-Executive Director of Cosco Shipping
International (Singapore) Co., Ltd., a public listed company. He also
serves as a Non-Executive Director of a non-listed company, ICE
Futures Singapore Pte. Ltd. and iWOW Technology Ltd.

Mr. Ang was the President of the Singapore Exchange Ltd ("SGX") from
1999 to 2005 during which he played an active role in successfully
promoting SGX as a preferred listing and capital raising venue for
Chinese enterprises. Mr. Ang also played a pivotal role in establishing
Asia’s first financial futures exchange, the Singapore International
Monetary Exchange (“SIMEX") in Singapore in 1984 and was
instrumental to establishing SGX Asia Clear which started offering an
over-the-counter clearing facility in 2008. Following his retirement
in January 2006, Mr. Ang served as a Senior Advisor to SGX until
December 2007.

In March 2007, Mr. Ang became the first person from an Asian stock
and futures exchange to be inducted into the international Futures
Industry Association’s Futures Hall of Fame, which was established to
honour and recognise outstanding individuals for their contributions
to the futures and options industry. In December 2014, he was also
inducted into the SIMEX Hall of Fame which was introduced by SGX
to honour the pioneers who laid the foundation for the success of the
Singapore futures industry.

Mr. Ang graduated from Nanyang University, Singapore with a First-
Class Honours Degree in Accountancy in 1970. He was conferred a
Masters in Business Administration with distinction by Northwestern
University 1973.
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HEE Theng Fong
Independent Director

HEE Theng Fongis an Independent Director of our Company. Mr. Hee is
a senior lawyer in Singapore with over 30 years of experience. He has
handled about two hundred cases in civil litigation and international
arbitration as lead counsel or arbitrator in many countries and regions
including Singapore, PRC and Hong Kong(SAR). Many of the cases have
beenreportedandreferredtointhe Singapore Law Reports, textbooks
and various legal journals. Mr. Hee is on the panel of many institutions
including SIAC, CIETAC, HKIAC, SHIAC, BIAC/BAC, HIAC, COAC , SHAC,
WHAC and AIAC. He is also a mediator, Specialist Mediator (China)
and Ambassador for Singapore International Mediation Centre and an
accredited mediator for Singapore Mediation Centre.

Mr. Hee is an Independent Non-Executive Director of several public
listed companies, including Straco Corporation Limited, Yanlord Land
Group Limited, Haidilao International Holding Ltd,China Aviation Oil
(Singapore) Corporation Ltd and Huazhu Group Limited. He was also
an Independent Non-Executive Director of Datapulse Technology
Limited, Delong Holdings Limited, First Resources Limited, YHI
International Limited, Tye Soon Limited and APAC Realty Limited.

Mr. Hee serves as Deputy Chairman of Singapore Medishield Life
Council. He is also a member of Advisory Committee for the China
Ready Programme under the Ministry of Law and a member of the
Complaints and Disciplinary Panel under ACRA.

Mr. Hee is a regular speaker in seminars on Directors’ Duties and
Corporate Governance organised by the Singapore Institute of Directors

and the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

He was awarded the Public Service Medal (BBM)in 2015 and appointed
as Justice of the Peace (JP)in 2018.

Mr. Hee graduated in 1979 from the Law Faulty of the University of
Singapore (Honours). He is also a holder of Diploma in PRC law.
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TAN Huay Lim
Independent Director

TAN Huay Lim is an Independent Director and the Chairman of the
Audit and Risk Management Committee of our Company.

Mr. Tan has more than 30 years of experience in audit, accounting and
finance. He served as a partner at KPMG Singapore for 23 years until
his retirement in September 2015.

Mr. Tan has extensive experience in auditing companies in a wide
range of industries. He was a Banking Partner involved in the audit
of financial institutions and was involved in a number of initial public
offerings as well as merger and acquisitions during his tenure with
KPMG. Mr. Tan was the Singapore Head of KPMG Global China Practice
from September 2010 to September 2015.

Mr. Tan is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of
three other companies listed on the main board of Singapore Stock
Exchange namely (i) Dasin Retail Trust Management Pte. Ltd., the
Trustee-Manager of Dasin Retail Trust; (ii) Elite Commercial REIT
Management Pte. Ltd., the Manager of Elite Commercial REIT; and
(iii) Sheng Siong Group Ltd. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Linklogis Inc. and SF REIT Asset Management Limited,
the Manager of SF Real Estate Investment Trust, listed on the main
board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He also serves as a Director of a
non-listed company, Green Link Digital Bank Pte. Ltd.

Mr. Tan received his Bachelor of Commerce (Accountancy) from
Nanyang University, Singapore in August 1978. He is a Fellow Member
of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants, the Association
of Certified Accountants, United Kingdom, and the Certified Practising
Accountants (Australia).



NI Mingjiang ({RB;T)
Independent Director

NI Mingjiang ({2 BA;T) is an Independent Director of our Company.
Mr. Ni is currently the Vice Chairman of Develop Committee of
Zhejiang University and the Director of the Sustainable Energy
Research Institute of Zhejiang University (#7351 A5 ] 45 GE R AT
).

Mr. Ni has 30 years of experience and technical expertise in
the WTE and renewable energy field. Prior to joining Zhejiang
University, he was a lecturer at the Northeast Electric Power
University (ZJbEB /15 6) from December 1975 to September
1979. In January 1986, he joined Zhejiang University. Before
assuming his current position, Mr. Ni served successively as
Deputy President and Executive Deputy President of Zhejiang
University from April 1996 to December 2009.

Mr. Ni has been conferred the National Prize for Natural Sciences
(BB R ZF%) on one occasion, the National Technical
Invention Award (EIZxR#ZAK%BFZ) on two occasions and the
National Prize for Progress in Science and Technology (E &R &H%
#454) on two occasions.

Mr. Ni graduated from Northeast Electric Power University
(Z4t B /1K) in December 1975. He then successively received
a Master’s Degree and Doctorate in Engineering Thermal Physics
in December 1981 and July 1987 from Zhejiang University.

Board of Directors
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Key Management
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WANG Wuzhong (EH )

Deputy General Manager

WANG Wuzhong (E & £)is a Deputy General Manager of our Company
and is responsible for the environmental protection, safety, daily
operation and research and development and assisting in the overall
strategic planning of our Group. Mr. Wang joined Jinjiang Group
in 1992 and has since been engaged in the green energy business,
including as a Director of various entities within our Group. Mr. Wang
has approximately 30 years of industry experience. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Wang worked as Director of Product Department in
the Lin‘an thermal power plant of Jinjiang Group from July 1992 to
June 1995. From June 1985 to December 1985, he served as Deputy
General Manager responsible for production in the Yuhang thermal
power plant of Jinjiang Group. From January 1996 to February 1997,
he served as Deputy Plant Manager responsible for production and
operation in the Lin'an thermal power plant of Jinjiang Group. From
February 1997 to September 1998, he took up various positions
including Plant Manager, Deputy General Manager and Assistant to
the General Manager of the Jiaxing power plant of Jinjiang Group.
From September 1998 to March 2001, he took up various positions
including Director of technical team, Plant Manager and General
Manager of the Yuhang thermal power plant of Jinjiang Group. From
March 2001 to August 2001, he served as Manager in the Operations
Department of Jinjiang Group. He then served as General Manager of
the Yuhang thermal power plant of Jinjiang Group from September
2001 to May 2002 and General Manager of the Qiaosi power plant of
Jinjiang Group from June 2002 to June 2005. He was appointed as
General Manager of Green Energy (Hangzhou) Corporate Management
Co., Ltd since June 2005 and has been serving as Vice General
Manager of the Company since August 2016. Mr. Wang is professor
level Senior Engineer. He completed his Executive Master of Business
Administration at the Zhejiang University (#;T A %) in April 2006. He
now is a member of the National Municipal Environmental Sanitation
Standardization Technical Committee (SAC/TC451) of the National
Standardization Administration (BRFELXETEERS L EHER
BT AEFRENRAREZERS (SAC/TCL51) £5), a Committee Member
of Technical Committee on Urban Appearance and Sanitation of
Standardization Administration of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development ({EEFH £ BIEH A ME D ERELEAEZR
&2 R), aCommittee Member of Expert Committee of China Electric
Power Federation (FE B NS SERERSZER), Deputy Director
of Environmental Protection Equipment and Technology Promotion
Center of China Equipment Management Association (FfER&E
B SIMREE SHAME OB EE) Expert of the Technical
Committee of the Advisory Committee on the Comprehensive
Utilization of Power Generation Resources of China (EZRES
FAXBIEAREAZERSHAZTRSER) Expert of the WTE group
of the Expert Committee of the All-China Environment Federation(H
HIMRBESSERERSIIRFIE A BB ER) Director of Zhejiang
Environmental Monitoring Association (#i;I&EINEMSMIHSIES)
and Executive Director of Zhejiang Energy Conservation Association
(HIETREMSEHIEE) and Hangzhou Energy Conservation
Association (fA il T T REh & & SR,
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JINRuizhi (& E)
Chief Financial Officer

JIN Ruizhi (£&%) is Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of our Company
and is responsible for the Group’s overall finance function, including
corporate finance and financial management. Mr. Jin has more than
20 years of management experience in energy field and finance. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Jin was the Director of Finance Department
of Zhejiang Zheneng Lanxi Power Generation Co., Ltd. (Hi;T#iaE=
RBEBEFRFELT) from July 2005 to June 2010. From June 2010
to June 2012, Mr. Jin served as Director of Finance Department of
Zhejiang Zheneng Zhongmei Zhoushan Coal and Electricity Co., Ltd.
(IR 88 AP AL BB B PR SRAE A ). From June 2012 to January
2015, he was Deputy General Manager and Chief Accountant of
Huaizhe Coal and Electricity Co., Ltd. (E#EERGREFELT) and
from January 2015 to February 2019, he was Deputy General Manager
of Zhejiang Zheneng Zhongmei Zhoushan Coal and Electricity Co.,
Ltd. GHTHE P IE A L BB BRF(E ). From February 2019 to
September 2019, Mr. Jin was Deputy General Manager of Guangsha
(Zhoushan) Energy Group Co., Ltd. (I"E(fFL)sEiRERBRAF)
and Zhoushan Huanyu Wharf Co., Ltd. (FLZFELGRLAFE).
Mr. Jin is an Intermediatelevel Accountant as recognised by the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (FR4k& i1,
rhe A RAFNENFELER) in July 1992. He is also conferred Advanced
Economist (Corporate Management) by the Zhejiang Province Human
Resources and Social Security Department(3#i;I1& A 1135 iREFit &R
F&FT). Mr. Jin graduated with a College Degree (Financial Accounting)
from North China Electric Power University (4£dbBB h XZF, MHE
it+& M) in July 1997 and a Bachelor Degree in Business Management
from Zhejiang University (I AZTIEEEE, ARZH) in
June 2004.



Ol Liang (A=)
Chief Engineer

0l Liang (B =) QI Liang (B %) is the Chief Engineer of our Company
and is responsible for all technical and engineering-related matters of
the Group. Mr. Qi has more than 20 years of experience in production,
technology and infrastructure. From March 2007 to August 2014, Mr. Qi
was Vice Chairman of Cixi Zhongke Zhongmao Environmental Thermal

Power Co., Ltd. (ZZIZ PR XIMRAEFIR2F). From August 2014
to September 2019, he served as Deputy Director of the Equipment
Management Department, Deputy Director of the Engineering
Department and subsequently as Director of the

Engineering Department, of Zhejiang Zheneng Zhenhai Power
Generation Co., Ltd. (HUIHfisEtEBABERIELAFE). Mr. Qi
graduated with a College Diploma in Thermal Power conferred by
Zhejiang Electric Power Workers' College (HST& B NIRT AFH
gz 1 &) in September 1993 and is an Electrician recognised by
the National Electric Power Company Intermediate Professional
Technical Qualification Review Committee of the People’s Republic of
China (BN TN, ERENAAHREUKAEZIFEERS) in
December 2000.

Key Management
BEHE

E Hongbiao (3} %= &)
Deputy General Manager

E Hongbiao (387 &) is Deputy General Manager of our Company and
is responsible for overseeing the construction and development
of projects. He also assists in managing the sewage and waste
treatment operations. He joined our Group as Deputy General Manager
of Hangzhou Yuhang Jinjiang Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. in
December 1995 and served as its General Manager from July 2002 to
November 2004. He served as General Manager of Kunming Xinxingze
Environment Resources Industry Co., Ltd. from June 2006 to August
2008 and Yunnan Green Energy Co., Ltd from April 2010 to March 2013.
He has also been Deputy General Manager of Green Energy Hangzhou
since March 2013. Mr. E has over 20 years of industry experience.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. E served as Plant Manager and Deputy
Operations Manager at Jinjiang Linan Oujin Thermal Power Co., Ltd.
(s8I IR REREE B A PR &) from July 1992 to November 1995. From
November 1995 to May 2000, Mr. E served as Deputy General Manager
and General Manager at Jinjiang Yuhang Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (58
SIAMMHE AR/ F). He was General Manager at Jiande Jinjiang
Comprehensive Coal Utilisation Co., Ltd. (2 {&; I A& FI A HR
/2 &) from May 2000 to July 2002. He later served as General Manager
of Jinjiang Lin‘an Hengjin Thermal Power Co., Ltd. ($8;LI R B E
AR/ 7)) and Jinjiang Lin'an Hengkang Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (4%
TR IERMKEFRAT) from November 2004 to May 2006. From
September 2008 to March 2010, Mr. E served as Project Manager at the
Jinjiang Investment and Development Center (fiJi$8:1#% X4 B h
113). Mr. E holds the accreditation of a first-class Construction Division
(Electromechanical Engineering) issued by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security and the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development of the People’s Republic of China, an Intermediate
Engineer (Energy Generation) and an Advanced Economist (Project
Investment) issued by the Hangzhou Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau (filTH AN ZBRFLSIRER). He received a
College Diploma in Business Administration from Zhejiang Gongshang
University (i T K%) in June 2009 and a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from Beijing Normal University (It ZIFsE X
=) in July 2014.
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Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited (“Zheneng
Jinjiang Environment” or the “Company”) adheres to the corporate mission
of “Beautifying the Cities and Making the Environment more Natural”
and will persist in the practice of sustainable development. This report
complies with the requirements of Rules 711A and 711B of the Listing
Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“Listing
Manual’) and is also prepared with reference to the Global Reporting
Initiative (“GRI") Standards.

In the past, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment specialised in the planning,
development, construction, operation and management of Waste-to-
Energy ("WTE") facilities and energy management contracting ("EMC")
projects, using state-of-the-art technology to deliver environmentally
sustainable waste treatment and energy solutions and realising the
reduction, recycling and harmless treatment of waste. The Company
has since shifted away from the WTE industry towards comprehensive
urban solid waste solutions, focused on deepening the efficient use and
recycling of solid waste resources on the overall city scale, to implement
agreen living lifestyle and build a zero-waste city and a beautiful China.

In 2021, the Sustainability Steering Committee of Zheneng Jinjiang
Environment continued to ensure the relevance of environmental, social
and corporate governance ("ESG") factors. Having conducted a materiality
assessment, six material ESG factors were identified as the Company’s
sustainability priorities. The Board oversees the management of these
material ESG factors and approves the disclosure of sustainability
performance and targets in this report.

Board of Statement
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Sustainability at Zheneng Jinjiang Environment

ATRESRITIME R AT FFEE A R 1

We believe sustainability is essential in achieving our vision of providing sustainable solutions to our customers and creating a
brighter future for the community. Underpinned by the six material ESG factors', we focus on four priority areas in sustainability to
bring positive value for our key stakeholders including investors, employees, the local community and regulators.

BAMBEAHEARN TRAN R REATHERRAAEMAU S ETRFARMNEREXREE. £

T, BNEFTFAHFEARHOMUESE, AREE. R, SHHIFMEENEEETENFHEXETRBAROMNE.
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ECONOMIC
PERFORMANCE
ZrRM
We aspire to create healthy and
sustainable economic returns to
our investors and shareholders.
We are actively expanding our
operating capacity and exploring
new markets to capitalise on

opportunities for growth.

HNFEAREEMRECERE
%ﬂTﬁ TR SRR . A

m#kifF%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
iﬁ, DU 1R A8

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
AND IMPACTS

INERR S5 A0S0

We are committed to providing
green energy and hazard-free
waste treatment services to
the wider community. Our
WTE businesse contributes
to the reduction in resource
consumption and enhance
environmental sustainability. We
increase our WTE capacity and
efficiency through technological
innovation and adopting best
industry practices. At the same
time, we closely monitor our
emissions, effluents and waste
to prevent pollution and achieve
integrated resource utilisation.
We also actively promote public
awareness of the WTE industry
and environmental protection
through education.

HMNBATAHEZEAIIMEHIR
4R & B2 IR A0 o F L B R Ak 12 AR
%, BEWTE ZE > FiREE
?F%E INERIATHFELE: BT
*ﬁ'#ﬁfﬂ$ BIK B Z IR FWTE

BENFNME,; BT EHM
%\E*ﬁr 1, BFlLiTd,
IMEBEEESHA; BHRE
HE, BALXFWTEITI AR IR
RETINIR.

WORKFORCE
AFEIB
Building a committed and
competent workforce fuels

technological innovation and
is key to Zheneng Jinjiang
Environment's development.
We implement fair and flexible
labour practices, providing
a rewarding career platform
to attract talents of different
backgrounds. At the same time,
we seek to create an inclusive and
safe working environment, free
from discrimination and safety
hazards. To retain and groom
the right talent, we encourage
active learning through a diverse
range of training and career
development programmes.
Our tiered talent training plan,
including “Baby Eagle Plan”,
“Flying Eagle Plan”, “Soaring
Eagle Plan”, “Strong Eagle Plan”
and “Leading Eagle Plan”, has
cultivated a team of talented
individuals who are “capable,
daring and industrious”, to provide
a stable pool of talent to support
the development of the Company.

BR—XFBHFME AT
EREACFMHAN, BARAK
REIKHE. MMEESIIIMEREFA
AITEER. ReWRI AR
FE, XERE. 2FRAAN

&, ABREAAHAKRIT. B3I
Z R R IE I FIER ML % Rt K1,
HEMRRFES, BEMEFEE
BAZF. Hi, AR “HE.
K. . EE. SE” B
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BTEH” WAABME, ARH
B R RIBMH TR E M A A

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
AFATE
We exercise strong corporate
governance to prevent corruption
and ensure regulatory compliance.
We actively identify our regulatory

risks and keep abreast of new laws
and regulations.

BINLETEARMERHE,
BIEEMFRREENRES
M. ERRIR R E R XU BY [E B
BB T EE A

We have established a formal sustainability governance structure to manage these sustainability priority areas. At the top of the leadership,
the Board oversees and approves the direction of sustainability management. In support of the Board, the Sustainability Steering Committee
("SSC"), formed by senior management, develops sustainability strategy, manages overall sustainability performance and reports to the Board.
At the operational level, the SSC implements sustainability practices and monitors sustainability performance across the Company.

ATEFERXLEAHELRMATY, ARAELTEANAHEAREERR, FREFSHRBENETHEAREENT
B, AXBHEER, HaREEBREMNAFELARESERS ( “SSC” ) FIEAIFEARLRE, EEBARGYIENESETSRE. HEIE
ERE, AIHEARESERASIBRITAHFEAREMEIFMN A AR AIFE L RGHHT I

1Tmix.
L For more information on material ESG factors please refer to the section titled “Materiality Assessment”.
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Sustainability at Zheneng Jinjiang Environment

HTBE SR LEMRE R AT HF R RS

ﬁ Economic Performance &% 3%

RMB I o 0 6 B g NiE AR ™40. 60127

REVENUE

)
@,;' Environmental Services and Impacts ¥ iR 55 #1214

2 5 Over 10 I 0 0 0
Operating WTE facilities (excluding kitchen waste and waste visitors participated in Zheneng Jinjiang Environment’s public
resource recyling projects) across China education programme in 2021
251 R EIEE HIWTER 1ARSREL2021FEES 5 RERIIINE
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1 1 3 8 l I million MWh thousand
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of waste treated of green electricity generated of steam supplied
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Corporate

Governance
T R

100% 73.5

confirmed cases of corruption employee workplace fatalities employees received average hours of training per
and workplace injuries performance review employee per year
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About this Report

XTFHME

The Group believes providing a clear and transparent report to its
stakeholders is key to managing corporate sustainability, and therefore
continues to proactively disclose its performance in ESG aspects.
This Sustainability Report describes Zheneng Jinjiang Environment's
sustainability practices and performance from 1January to 31 December
2021 ("FY2021"). This report covers the listed entity, Zheneng Jinjiang
Environment Holding Company Limited, and all its subsidiaries globally.
There are 25 WTE facilities, one Organic Waste Treatment project and
eight Waste Resource Recycling projects currently in operation, across 13
provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities in China. There are also
five WTE facilities and resource recycling projects under construction
and 22 projects in the preparatory stage in China and overseas. The
sections titled “Environmental Services and Education” and “Innovation
and Environmental Impact Management” focus solely on our WTE facilities
currently in operation.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
Rules 711A and 711B and Practice Note 7.6: “Sustainability Reporting Guide”
of the Listing Manual (in each case, excluding relevant amendments which
only became effective on 1January 2022). This report also makes reference
to the GRI Standards?, a globally recognised framework for reporting on
sustainability issues. No external assurance has been sought for this report.
Please forward any enquiries or feedback you may have to znjjhj@hzjj.cn.

2 Thereport references the following topic-specific disclosures:
RESH T AT IR TE

AERAEBEANFHEXREREERBEMORS
ERIIMAFELAREENRE, FAAE
AFEEFHIBEERE. HESNEBRATENE
WM. KAHFEELZRIREBMAT2021F£1A1BE
12A31H ( “2021 5”7 ) #eesIIERNE
EAHEARKIENAY. REFRSET LHE
R—— s IR E R ERAE, UREE
MBS IIMEAEFEIANE . BARMEET
AN ERNEENIIRFERLZE, 11
BEENANEFZYLIBIE, sNBEEMI
WEBRUTE, EENIMISNERIRRE
BFIZRULETRE, UR2MTEEEENE
BB . Ed, “HRERZMHE” UK “IF
BEMERSEH” BorNEIERBIEESRH
BRAEIRAE BT .

AiRERRE LT FMETIAFITIBEMIAK
FZF1%AAT7. 6 “FIIFEARIREIEE " NEKSR
e (EEMERLT, TEF(XTF20224181
HEMWERET) , #5007 2KIREEN
2H27 (GRI) FR/E?, iZbRER— N EBRAIABIAE]
BEAROBI/REER. KIRERIKE=H
Wiz, MBRMEARIR, BEXEBTFHE
znjjhj@hzjj. cn,

Disclosure 205-3 from GRI 205: Anti-corruption 2016
GRI 205 #FEIN 205-3: RFEM (2016)

Disclosure 301-1from GRI 301: Materials 2016
GRI 301 #FTEWT 301-1: ¥4} (2016)

Disclosure 302-1(a)to (d) and 302-3 from GRI 302: Energy 2016
GRI 302 #FEIN 302-1 (a) E (d) FA302-3: #HEIR (2016)

Disclosure 306-2 (a) and (b) from GRI 306: Effluents and Waste 2016
GRI 306 IHFEIM 306-2 (a) F0 (b) : {S/KFAEFH (2016)

Disclosure 307-1from GRI 307: Environmental Compliance 2016
GRI 307 #HFEIM 307-1: IRESH (2016)

Disclosure 401-1from GRI 401: Employment 2016
GRI 401 #FEIM 401-1:Fe1@ (2016)

Disclosure 403-9(a) from GRI 403: Occupational Health and Safety 2018
GRI 403 #FEIN 403-9 (a) : HEERSZRSE (2018)

Disclosure 404-1and 404-3 from GRI 404: Training and Education 2016
GRI 404 IFEIN 404-1F0404-3:15)I5HE (2016)

Disclosure 405-1from GRI 405: Diversity and Equal Opportunity 2016
GRI 405 #FEIN 405-1: Z LU 5TEHS (2016)

Disclosure 419-1 from GRI 419: Socioeconomic Compliance 2016
GRI 419 HEELT 419-1: #SZFAEM (2016)
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About this Report
XTARE

Materiality Assessment

EER R

Having combined the development requirements in relation to the circular economy and environmental protection industry in
the context of carbon peaking and carbon neutrality, the SSC undertook materiality assessment to identify the most important
ESG factors for the business operations, strategy, business model and key stakeholders. It aims to improve quality and
efficiency through innovation, promote sustainable development in a coordinated manner, protect the clear waters and blue
skies through emission reduction, promote mutual benefit and win-win policies, promote peace and harmony through sharing,
and earnestly fulfil the political, economic and social responsibilities of an environmental protection enterprise.

ARAAFEARESERSESHE “Wk” SR THEREF. MRV ERER, Th. BHETSWS. K. I 5E
RMEZFMAXEXKMEEESCEE. SEUCIMBHIRFIBN, UMAEERSELR, LUBHIWARKER, HUIFHE
HER IR, UHZEHFLRME, VIXBITEARREVHBUERE. EFREMESRE.

The materiality assessment process was guided by the GRI Principles of Materiality and Stakeholder Engagement, and
considered the following aspects:

EEESCEFITA IR FENMAEHEXESSRENNES, FEETUTLAAE:

» Global and local emerging sustainability trends;

2Ttk i VD EE R 4T SE2R

- Hot topics and future challenges in the WTE and green energy sectors, as identified by peers; and

E R & e IR T AL BRI TIE AN AR R Pk ; &

» Insights gained from interactions with stakeholders.

MEF 2548 K& BRI P IRIGH AR

Six material factors were identified from the assessment and are shown in the table below. We continue to focus on
environmental services and impacts, workforce and social and economic performance® and corporate governance.

NAEITEHESRERHET ANEEZERE, ENTHER. NREFHEXFIMERSIEZE. AFHN. #HS. EFRIAAE
EIEIX LN .

Table 1 Material factors for FY2021 21 20210 F EERF &

Priority Areas {45 Material Factor EZF &

Economic Performance 2% &I Economic Performance 5% %

Environmental Services and Education M ERZ B
Environmental Services and Impacts IR15E iR 55 #0520
Green Operations & ZE

Talent Training and Advancement A A 13 517
Workforce A7 HFA
Occupational Health and Safety BRI fi#EFfnZe &

3

Corporate Governance /. 5] ;G T& Requlatory Compliance M&4&

Additional Disclosure E{thiisE

Social 1t £ Local Community #b75#t X

3 Details of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment’s financial performance in 2021 can be found in the Financial Statement section of this Annual Report

2021 FE Hf SR T IR I S R AT E A F IR SRR ETE .
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Environmental Services and Education

INEARSFHE

Relying on its municipal solid waste treatment projects, Zheneng Jinjiang
Environment leverages on resources and markets, gives full play to the
advantages of synergistic circulation and promotes the construction of a
zero-waste city, unswervingly embarking on a high quality journey based
on ecological priority, green and low-carbon development. At the same
time, the Company maintains collaboration and communication with
governments, industrial peers, technical experts as well as academics, and
promotes positive public understanding about WTE through environmental
education.

Waste-to-Energy Business

WTE involves combusting domestic waste at high temperature to convert
its combustible portion into materials like carbon dioxide and water. The
residual heat generated by incineration is used for power generation, while
the waste gas and fly ash generated undergo harmless treatment. WTE has
the advantages of "harmlessness, reduction and recycling”.

In 2021, according to the results of the seventh national census announced
by the Chinese government, the national population reached 1.41 billion, an
increase of 5.38% compared to 2010. The urbanisationrate of the permanent
population in the mainland reached 63.9%. As urbanisation progresses
further, the amount of waste generated per capita is expected to further
increase, which together with the growth rate of population will continue to
drive the continued growth of domestic waste production, providing strong
support for waste treatment. Meanwhile, the WTE industry will usher in new
opportunities and challenges, with the Chinese government’s focus and
emphasis on the idea of circular economy and “carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality”.

In 2021, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment continued to steadily promote
the development of its WTE business, focused on the development and
expansion of its capacity, and achieved continuous improvement of
operating indicators through technological innovation and management
improvements. During the year, five WTE projects (including reconstruction
and expansion projects)and two Resource Recycling projects* were put into
operation, increasing the waste treatment capacity in operation by 2,350
tonnes/day. At the same time, the Company actively extended the industrial
chain to multiple fields such as sludge, kitchen waste treatment and
harmless treatment of sick and dead animals, and secured a new kitchen
waste treatment project in Linzhou City, Henan Province.

HRESRILIMR R FEM A B RIRA BB, L
RBRE™H, RKIEFEWERRME, HEELE
WHEiR, BEFBEESDME. REIEKMN
BREARZE. RN, ARASBMA. LAR
7. RRER. ZERBFEESRR, FEaT
IMRH B 1R A XX B A& B FRARIR R .

LR R R & Al 55

LR ARk R EFERIRE SR T, (£
R PR AR T ZH A BRANK
Z, FEMRRBTAR, FEMES. K
BITRERLE. £FFNRRRABRES “X
B, BEWL. BRL” M=,

20214, RE|EPEL2HHELREEAOZE
MR, 2EADOERI4. 112, HK2010FEKT
5.38%, KFEbXEEAAWENERIE63. 9%,
REEWME N — T, AR EERE
H—FIEFA, BMADEELRE A FLLR
FEE B MK, WIIRABEWRAB T XE.
AT, FEE S EBAMERES. “Wik” =2
RREN, hIRRERA BTSRRI ANE
S5k

20214F, HTRESRSTINE 4570 5 HE I IR A IR
ZBAE, REEFESEA. HEAR, B
REFFIEIRRF, LIEERRFTEREA.
AR TFERREBENM IR R L ETE (SE
MY EBHE) F2MIIRERUIB EneE
R bR AL TR EE 772, 3500t /K. IR, FRARIE
FlEH—FEEETRE. EENRLERRF
T ENIBE S NG, 7R AN
BS—1NEEE.

“  The Waste Resource Recycling project converts municipal waste into refuse derived fuel by drying and sorting, which helps to improve the heat conversion

efficiency of waste and significantly reduce pollutant emissions.

BRFLRAI E BT i, BERRIRG &R IRITAE MR, BT RSHIRAIREE, KBRS R AHER.
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As at 31 December 2021, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment operates 25 WTE
facilities, one Organic Waste Treatment Facility and 8 Waste Resource
Recycling projects, across 13 provinces, autonomous regions and
municipalities in China. Collectively, they able to treat 40,410 tonnes/day of
municipal waste and have an installed electrical power generation capacity
of 790MW. Taking into consideration all the projects under construction
and in the planning phase, the Group’s total installed waste treatment
capacity is expected to reach 62,645 tonnes/day of municipal waste upon
the completion of these projects. In 2021, the Company treated a total of
11.384 million tonnes of municipal solid waste, serving approximately 78
million people®, while generating 3,429,963 MWh of green electricity and
2,936 thousand tonnes of steam. (Refer to Table 2 for details).

Environmental Education

With the development of economy and society, the continuous
improvement and increment of human production capacity and scale
have led to the over-utilisation of many natural resources, resulting in the
deterioration of the ecological environment. Strengthening environmental
education through publicity and education enables people tohaveacorrect
understanding of the relationship between human and the environment,
raising environmental awareness, and mobilising all members of society
to work together to protect the environment.

All WTE facilities under Zheneng Jinjiang Environment have taken the
initiative to open to the public. So far, the Company has 12 WTE facilities
listed as public open facilities of China's national environmental protection
facilities. The public can make an appointment to visit through various
channels such as phone call and the Company’s WeChat Official Account.
In 2021, more than 10,000 people including investors, students, non-profit
organisations, public institutions and the general public have visited our
facilities. The Company focuses on environment protection and utilises
public facilities as the starting point, to bridge communication between the
Company and the public, creating a good atmosphere for the general public
to care, support and participate in environmental protection.

Environmental Services and Education

INERRSFEE

BZE2021F12A31H, MeEHIRELADRE
1310 4. BIARFEEMHAE2IMEHRAE
EMLRRELZBIE, 1 MNEBHIEFYLE
IEAMSNMIIRFIRNINE, R EENE
1140, 4100/ B, ZHNB2IXTI0KE, FA
FEE. EENEHESMERE, HNRLER
BEH UG %62, 645M/ H . 720214, AF 4k
T, 138 A MR A FILR, =ET
3,429, 963MWhER /102, 936 F Mz 35, HHLTF A
K27, 8005 AR THIIRALIERR S . (1S
=2 .

INEHE

MEZFHSMER, AXEFEIFEIR
B, HERET X, SBFZAARERIE
AR, ETHREHAETE. MEBERRHEARR
BEEEMEE, EAMNMASHERNHERERX
ZAEHBAOR, BEAMIMFERR, #R
EH B RLERSE NRFRIPITE.

HRESRIIIMEE TR B BT B E 3 5M I
HEf 125 a B #5100 & EERIFMRIZ
EARFMEBN, ARAEIBIERL. A7
WELARSHFREHITMYSY. 20214, B
FEFBREE. FE. AAQR. BB
Hib B AR ERREN I RASURNZRE. 2
AURBERIPAES, LREXSFAMTF, 5
TRV ESEXMGBENRR, BEET AHS
DRI FF. SERRERIPHRFRE-

’, Estimated based on the assumption that on average, each urban resident in China produces 0.4 kg of municipal waste per day.

RIEFEWTEREXRFFAE0. 4T e EiE IR E .
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Environmental Services and Education

IMERRSIHE

N

Eiﬁtﬂ&iﬂfﬁﬁ#?ﬁﬁ

LA LRh

Figure 1 Local TV station reported that “Kunming Waste Classification Observation Group” visited Wuhua WTE Facility in Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Bl B ERE “EHITIRS EYEE Y REE TR RE B

In addition, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment also carries out professional
environmental education by actively carrying out technical exchanges
and research projects, communicating and sharing with industry experts
to cultivate professionals with the ability to analyse the environment
and solve environmental problems, and jointly gather technical strength
to solve technical problems. The Company also organises peer-to-peer
benchmarking studies in the same region, summarises and promotes
advanced experiences, and carries out experimental research to guide
the improvement of operating WTE facilities to increase the level of
environmental protection control.

Inthecomingyear, we willcontinue toexpandthe scale of ourenvironmental
services and enhance our environmental education programmes by
leveraging the power of technology. We anticipate four more facilities to
be launched for operation.

50 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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Inthe face of severe challengestohumansurvivaland developmentbrought
by climate change, green development has become a common concern of
allwalks of life. Zheneng Jinjiang Environment has always incorporated the
concept of green development throughout its production and operation,
upholding the corporate mission of “Beautifying the Cities and Making the
Environment more Natural’, emphasising on environmental protection
and greening its operations. We invest in research and development and
adopt best industry practices to minimise our environmental footprint
and ensure our emissions are in compliance with local environmental
laws, effectively contributing to local sustainable development. With the
best interests of the local community and the natural environment at
heart, the Company has established standard operation procedures and
environmental contingency plans to strengthen our pollution controls and
contain any potential negative impacts.

Domestic waste incineration power generation follows the national
standard “Standards for Pollution Control of Domestic Waste Incineration”,
and there are strict requirements on the conditions of waste entering
the furnace, operating parameters and pollutant discharge during the
incineration process. ZhenengdJinjiang Environment uses state-of-the-art
technologies and adopts best industry practices for WTE. The Company
strives to reduce the input resources required, while closely monitoring
the environmental outputs such as air-borne emissions, effluents and
solid waste in compliance with regulatory requirements. The WTE process
has three main stages, as illustrated in the diagram below.

(S
Pre-treatment

Green Operations
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BB N LM AIFELR. 2R B H ERER
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Figure 2 Overview of the WTE process
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Green Operations
NESE

Technological innovation underpins the foundation for our sustainable
operations. The Company is committed to promoting the integration
of data and intelligence, and formed a four-step system of “production-
level autonomous driving, equipment-level digital twin, facility-level
intelligent management and enterprise-level business brain”. Following
the successful acceptance of the Kunming Demonstration Project of
the Global Environment Fund “China Domestic Waste Comprehensive
Environmental Management Project” of Yunan Green Energy WTE Facility
in Kunming City, Yunnan Province in early 2021, the Company has further
promoted artificial intelligence (“Al") implementation to incineration for
boilers, and has successively completed the Al application in various
facilities. This includes the Hankou Jinjiang WTE Facility in Hubei
Province, Tangshan Jiasheng WTE Facility in Hebei Province, Zibo Green
Energy WTE Facility and Gaomi Lilangmingde WTE Facility in Shandong
Province, with all facilities achieving remarkable results in improving
boiler production capacity, stabilizsing flue gas emissions, and an overall
reduction in supplementary costs. Meanwhile we are piloting intelligent
driving, launching the Alibaba Cloud Al management and control project
and creating a business cockpit. In 2022, we will continue to create an
atmosphere of innovation, promote “three refinements” management
of “refined organisation, refined management, and refined operation”,
accelerate intelligent and digital transformation, and continue to be a
promoter and leader in localisation of WTE technology.

BARCF AN IREN I HEEEEET
i, AR REHEHBZME, KR “E£FR
BB, RERBFTEE. B REEE
., PREERRE” MEARR. $42021F4]
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AHITIERE HEHSRER

Cultivating Industry Re-transformation, Promoting Development through Digitalisation

The calorific value of waste varies with the composition, season and weather, which will greatly fluctuate the upper
chamber temperature, oxygen content, feed water and evaporation in the boiler. In order to keep the combustion stable and
make the flue gas emission meet the environmental protection requirements, the duty of the staff who watches on boiler is
quite heavy, which requires him/her to sit in front of the computer console all the time to closely monitor the situation and
make manual adjustments to the technology in response to any changes. This can be a long drawn and complex task.

WIRAVEREE S . T, RETE, BIIURRPRNEEEE. S8, HK. ZREFEXREN. AT REHR
BRISE, IHESHBUARITMRER, RRFERANTEESEE, FTE-ELERNFEGRTEER, M HN
BN IRRBRAME L FRRIERAT, —RTREEESRAEE.

In December 2021, the two boilers of Gaomi Lilangmingde WTE Facility were officially installed with the Alibaba Cloud
Industrial Brain AICS platform, with automated operation rate reaching 98%. By comparison, we found that all the
monitoring tasks can be handled by Alibaba Cloud, and manual intervention is only required when there is an abnormal
situation of “clustering” of waste. The workload of front-line operators has been reduced by 60% when the situation is
stable. Take water level control as an example. In the past, the on-duty staff had to wait for the water level to drop before
adding water, which caused a certain lag. However, after the Alibaba Cloud Industrial Brain was launched, the system
could automatically adjust in real time, maintaining the stability of the water level running curve.

2021412, #ieESRIIINESBEFIIRAR M2ARRFEX ELTHMERT W AMAICSTS, BEtRERAE
98%. MILAIM, EAL “HE” WESHAUREMER, RAEBINIE “HEA" MREERLT, AFEALT
Wi TREN—SBRERMEATIESMRIRTO0%. LUKGHEHAM, SEXEMRAEZFEIKMTET A MK, B—EF
B, BRAMEZTIWAMZE, REATUENEKAIARE, KAEiTHEIER FE.

In addition, the environmental protection indicators such as hydrogen chloride, sulfur dioxide and carbon monoxide
that are synchronised to the testing center of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment in real time are also close to a
straight line, far below the hourly average value required by the national environmental protection requirements. With
the improved combustion stability, the steam volume stability has increased by 44 %, and the steam quality has also been
significantly improved.

5N, SEREIFIESTRETENPOHNRUSE. —FSUE. —SURFIMRER, BB —FE% TRTFERTR
EKRRYNSE. BERRRERRS, FAREREHEA T44% FARRBETEZHNE.
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Zheneng Jinjiang Environment ensures the efficient use of energy and
reduces the energy consumption by regularly maintaining the boilers of
each facility and making sure they are in good condition. In addition, the
Company also advocates a green office by going paperless and adopting
digitalisation, controlling the scale and number of meetings to reduce
ineffective meetings, and raisingawareness of energy saving, water saving
and material saving of employees to lower office energy consumption.

Waste Incineration and Energy Generation

The Company hasintegrated and developed various technologies for waste
incineration power generation based on the characteristics of China’s
domestic waste, such as high moisture content, complex composition,
and high ash content, etc. The Company is committed to becoming an
integrated enhancer of fluidised bed and grate furnace waste incineration
power generation technology and continuing to be a promoter and leader
in localisation of waste incineration power generation technology.

The differential-density circulating fluidised bed waste incineration
power generation technology is a high-efficiency clean incineration power
generation technology developed in cooperation with the Company and
Zhejiang University, with complete and independent intellectual property
rights, andisappliedinmost of the Company’s WTE facilities. The technology
has the characteristics of wide fueladaptability, high combustion efficiency,
large regulation load ratio, fast load regulation, low nitrogen oxide emission
and low-cost limestone furnace desulfurisation. It is one of the globally
recognised clean burning technologies for domestic waste.

Grate furnace technology is another technical method of waste
incineration which operates stably and reliably, and most of the solid
waste can be directly burned into the furnace without any pretreatment.
While improving and optimising the technology of circulating fluidised bed
waste incineration power generation, the Company also adoptsand utilises
moving grate furnaces and actively collaborates with notable peers on
moving grate furnace technology. The collaboration studies and analyses
the incineration of municipal waste, helping to advise the appropriate
furnace type according to the waste profile of different projects and how
continuous technological improvements can be made.

Green Operations
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Green Operations

HESE

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment keeps detailed records on the input
materials and energy sources as shown in the table below. This allows the
Company to identify areas for improvement in the longer term. In 2021,
3,429,963 MWh of green electricity and 2.936 million tonnes of steam were

generated.

1 BE $7 ST IR 3 N KR B4 R AN BE B 0 A E 4T
F, MTRAR. MOEE, XELFEBH
EFBHNTH . 2021 FERAFETRERSN

3,429,963 MWh, %752, 936 M.

Table 2: Material Consumption, Energy Consumption, and Green Energy Generation in FY2021

2 20215 YHHFE. BENE/HFEF = ERILR G EER

FY20212021 0 4

Renewable Materials 7] &4 4] &
Municipal Solid Waste 3 El{& &4
Non-Renewable Materials JEF] H 4 41 /R
Lime AKX

Ammonia &K

Activated Carbon &%

Hydrochloric Acid 5§

Purchased Energy ¥ 32 B9 REiR
Electricity

Coal #

Diesel &3t

Green Energy Generated =4 H 4% £ EiR

Electricity

Steam #Z&§

Unit B2{sf

Tonnes Rf

Tonnes A
Tonnes A
Tonnes M

Tonnes Ff

MWh JK FLES

Tonnes i

Tonnes i

MWh JK ELE

‘000 Tonnes FFify

Amount ¥ E

11,384,000

51,091

21,984

2,596

2,939

17,500

393,657

6,520

3,429,963

2,936
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Integrated Resource Utilisation and Pollution Control

During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, China's ecological and
environmental protection has entered a new stage of coordinated
governance of pollution reduction and carbon reduction. Under the overall
layout of carbon peaking and carbon neutrality, the overall optimisation
of pollution reduction and carbon reduction work to achieve synergies
is of great significance for further deepening corporate governance and
boosting high-quality development. To this end, the Company strictly
abides by relevant Chinese and local policies. All WTE facilities meet the
requirements of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment (the "MEE") of
China on “Install, Display and Connect”. Every furnace of each WTE facility
is equipped with automatic monitoring equipment, and an electronic
display screen is set up at the entrance of each facility to announce the
emission data and operation status. The pollution monitoring system of
the power plant is connected to the database of the MEE for continuous
governance supervision. In addition, each facility strictly controls the
rigor and scientific measurement of waste incineration power generation
treatment to control environmental pollution. The waste gas generated is
treated by flue gas purification equipment, and the leachate generated
is treated according to environmental protection requirements. For
example, the leachate treatment technology used in Kunming Wuhua WTE
Facility in Yunnan Province can achieve zero-emission recycling after a
series of treatments such as pre-treatment, anaerobic, denitrification/
nitrification, ultrafiltration, nanofiltration and reverse osmosis, through
which about 85% of the leachate is recycled as cooling water and make-
up water for the facility, while the remaining 15% can be returned to the
furnace for incineration.

e
o

i iy

R

= I

b

R GERE 80

Green Operations

Fegg

ISR H TR S F

“+mOA” M, FEESHERIPHENTIR
SRR ELE IR R . FERRIAE. BRPAD
THEEEHBRT, KERLRISERIEL
K EIER, WH—FRUARIAE. B
ERELAREFEZEEN. Ak, KA 1%E
STHERAMBXER, RAMWTE BHFE
HEESMERRT “%&. & K7 BEX,
BMIRAR MEANERET BENA
W&, HE XNTOWMIEFREREAMHR
KI|MSITRS. BIWSREENRESES
IMEAEIRREEE, USKIEFFSURBIE. It
5N, FEARIBIRITIR R R A R AR RY B SR
Fit, EHRESE, BERSELRENE
LEEEMES, X TFEENSERIRTIERE
KiztrE, ., ZEERATRENRE
BT RASERLERAR, 23R, K
H. REEL/AEL. BIE. PEURREEE—
RYIABE RIS EHMEI A, BIL85%ENT
RIEIR S EN KM FEK, TR 15% 7T B4R 38 4% 4k
i,

i ATEE TTERUI T R B uluuum,i"i'il.:u’.m;m!.'-‘ et

Figure 3 Real-time emission display of Yinchuan Zhongke WTE Facility in Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region

B3  TEEEEXR/IPEIIR L B R B SR HEAL

Annual Report 2021 55



Green Operations
NESE

The Company always adheres to the development of a circular economy,
promoting the economical and intensive utilisation of resources, building
a resource recycling industrial system and a waste material recycling
system, to contribute to the realisation of carbon peak and carbon
neutrality as an environmental protection enterprise. As such, Zheneng
Jinjiang Environment recycles waste products generated during the
WTE process whenever possible. Bottom ash is the primary residue after
waste incineration. The bottom ash after incineration belongs to general
solid waste according to the “Standards for the Control of Pollution from
Domestic Waste Incineration” (GB18485-2014) and the Company works
with downstream business partnerstorecycle it as building materials used
in construction, roadbeds and soil restoration. As the fly ash generated
is classified as hazardous waste, we strictly follow requirements of
prevention and control of pollution of hazardous waste, sending it to
landfill to prevent pollution after the fly ash is chelated and solidified to
standards or co-processing it with cement kiln. In 2021, 854,277 tonnes of
fly ash (hazardous waste) were sent to the qualified landfill, while 1,312,340
tonnes of bottom ash (non-hazardous waste) were sent for recycling. In
2022, our WTE facilitiesaim to continue monitoring the quality of the waste
and effluents discharged in compliance with environmental legislation.

Moving forward, we will continue to deepen the comprehensive
management of solid waste, improve the efficiency of resource utilisation,
incorporate “waste reduction” and resource recycling into the carbon
reduction system, promote “waste reduction” through policy and economic
means, and improve the level of green production. Meanwhile we aim to
further improve our information transparency and openness and provide
more WTE facilities with online public visit function through digital means
to increase public participation, ameliorate the “not in my backyard”
mindset, and build neighbourhood-type waste treatment facilities.
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Environmental Protection Facilities’ Virtual Open Help to Know Environmental Protection Without Leaving Home

IMRIZHE “EZFM”  BAHP IR

In October 2021, at the Shaoxing Ecological Environment Publicity and Education Work Conference held by the
Shaoxing Ecological Environment Bureau, Zhuji Bafang WTE Facility in Zhejiang Province won the first prize in the
2021 Shaoxing Environmental Protection Facilities Virtual Open Video Competition, and Dr. You Haihui, an employee of
the Facility, was awarded the title of “Excellent Narrator”.

20214F10R, ERMNTESHNERENMBHTESMEERLF TSN L, HIEEE/\TTR] RIR2021FE B
MIMRIEHE “ZHM WRAFE—FR, ZARRTAEBEELNRT “HBHBR” RS,

In early 2021, the Zhuji Bafang WTE Facility improved its workplan for public visits, establishing a special working
group led by the main leader of the Facility to set the opening form, refine the visiting process, improve the visiting
route map and train two part-time narrators. The entire public open facility consists of a reception hall, a projection
hall, an environmental protection exhibition hall and a visit corridor. Through a combination of audio and video, pictures,
environmental science games and on-site visits, as well as using high-tech multimedia to deeply interpret the core
process technology of waste treatment, planning routes related to wastewater, waste gas treatment, and garbage
classification treatment for different groups of visitors to shape and promote the main image of “reaching the original
intention with ingenuity and extending the green environmental protection industry chain in an innovative way".
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Figure 4 Zhuji Bafang WTE Facility won the first prize
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Talent Training and Advancement
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Talent is the core competitive strength of the Company’s development. We
must vigorously create an atmosphere of respecting talents, knowledge,
labour, and creation, and form a good situation in which talents are produced in
large numbers, and people make the best use of their talents. It is necessary to
ensure the stability of the Company’s core talent team as well as to strengthen
the construction of talent echelon to cultivate talents for the future of the
Company. As such, we have developed a comprehensive set of strategies
and policies, governing our talent attraction, retention and development.

Our human resources policy is based on equal opportunities and fair
employment, and is guided by value creation and contribution, eliminating
employment standards such as gender, age, race, religion, nationality
and education. It is aimed at understanding the skills and strengths of
talents, putting them in suitable positions and introducing talents that
are aligned with the Company’s development direction to better meet the
Company's development needs. We strictly abide by the “Labour Law of
the People’'s Republic of China”to protect and respect the legitimate rights
and interests of employees, and to establish a harmonious relationship
between the Company and employees. As of 31 December 2021, Zheneng
Jinjiang Environment has a total of six board members and 2,546
permanent employees. The charts below provide a quantitative measure
of board and employee diversity.
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Talent Training and Advancement

AT EFSRA

A good working environment attracts talents and leads to a prosperous
business,andthelongtermstrategytoretaintalentistooptimisetheworking
environment. Zheneng Jinjiang Environment is committed to establishing a
suitable growth environment for talents, creating a warm atmosphere and
a sense of belonging, and providing superior space to build and develop a
talented team. The Company constantly improves its talent evaluation and
assessment processes. Other aspects include determining the assessment
cycle and corresponding assessment indicators, and providing a reference
point when deciding on awards, promotions and internal job transfers, so
as to promote the rational allocation and smooth flow of human resources,
and to create a talent growth environment with fair opportunities and fair
rules. In 2021, all employees have received at least one performance review
from their supervisor. In addition, we commend the deeds of outstanding
talents every year and promote a culture of “respecting talents, respecting
labour, and respecting creation” within the whole group. To enhance team
cohesion, the Company frequently organises employee bonding activities,
such as fun games, basketball competitions, birthday celebrations, outreach
programmes and singing competitions. The case study below demonstrates
exceptional levels of team camaraderie and bonding.
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Increase Solidarity and Enjoy the Fun

EORA  BRER

On October 26, 2021, the Wuhan Jinjiang WTE Facility in Hubei Province
launched the 2021 Fun Games (the "Fun Games"). All participating teams
forged ahead in unity and fortitude , displaying good spirit and high
enthusiasm for sports.

20214610826 H, #idtEAR Stk Ak B AL 2T T 2021 EBIKIZE)
%, SSREPNAETHE, BEHHE, BT RIFAIEHX RS 3K
RIEENIE .

The Fun Games organised five sports events, including a tug-of-war
team competition, badminton singles and mixed doubles competition,
fun obstacle course and basketball competition. Four sports teams
participated in the competition. On the field, the athletes competed
in speed, endurance and skill. Their fortitude and perseverance won
the cheers of the audience. The top three individuals and teams were
finally determined after an intense competition.
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The Fun Games established a platform for employees to showcase
their talents, strengthen friendship, hone their willpower, and enhance
team cohesion. Based on their own strength and team spirit, athletes
competed with style and standards, further enriching the Company’s
employee culture, displaying the spirit of the Company’s employees and
creating a healthy, progressive, united and harmonious atmosphere.
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Figure 5 Wuhan Jinjiang WTE Facility in Hubei Province
launched a Fun Games

E5  HIARELIRE B FFR2021 FBRIENE

J

60 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited



Talent Training and Advancement

AT EFSRA

Zhengzhou Xingjin WTE Facility Unites in Fighting Against Floods
BRI RE KRR & B RERI

On 20 July 2021, Henan Province suffered from continuous large-scale heavy rainfall, with the daily rainfall of many national
meteorological observation stations exceeding records. Zhengzhou City in Henan Province broke the historical extreme
value of hourly rainfall in mainland China. The total rainfall over three days was equivalent to the rainfall recorded in the past
year, resulting in severe floods.

2021E7R20H, AMEFHFEEEEREEERRS, ZIPERRSKUNE HERECRKE IRICRLURRE.
AR, R T PEKXMNAERERLRE ZXTTHE—FMRKE, XA, EBRMRT.

Zhengzhou Xingjin WTE Facility in Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, was located in the epicenter of the floods. During
the occurrence of floods, the party members and cadres of the facility took the lead, rushing to the frontlines where
everyone united to deal with the flood calmly. In the face of the rising water level in the facility, the team immediately
installed and activated the backup submersible pump, undertook flood control measures for the warehouse and
discharged accumulated water in the circulating pump room in a timely manner. Despite the sudden water supply
disruption leading to the shutdown of production, the team actively engaged the the municipal department to resume
water supply and production of the facility.

AT BE SR IINE A R A AR TR SR R Z B AL FRIE 0. BRERELUR, RBLIRAB RRFEME—2%, Tt
17: 2ERETIER—RE, F0FH, RITEREX. B XAFASHKE, BZIRZEERAEABKER, BIFEERR
TE, REPMEEIARERAK: MTROERGEKSBIER, RMHEHBER], RRRER EFREFRK.

In the early morning of July 24th, after around 40 hours of operational recovery and emergency repairs by the employees of
the facility, as well as coordinating the dispatch of the power supply company, Zhengzhou Xingjin WTE Facility resumed full
production. The facility quickly put itself into the treatment of post-disaster waste to do a good job in post-flood disinfection.

TR24H%R, BER RTHONRMEFBRSRE, URMARBRRREE, KBMIRAR 2ERELE”, &
BRI R R T AR IR E TE, MuFfRRIEERIME.

In addition, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment actively understood the needs of the government and the community. Through
the Zhengzhou Xingjin WTE Facility, RMB660,000 of funds and supplies donated to the local government to address the
emergency needs of the disaster-stricken people, assist with post-disaster reconstruction and strengthen the safety
protection of important infrastructures. This demonstrates our firm commitment to the responsibility as an environmental
protection-focused enterprise.

Leoh, HrEesRiIINER I RRRIR A B 51 TREAT. BEAEKR, EAREAK66H TR SME, REZREAN2
Eﬁ%\MﬁLFEE,“EHL%ﬁmﬂm Eﬁﬁ,#W%%mMEﬁEEEﬁWMM#%%FIW,é&Mﬂ
FtEH. FLrHE. FERE!

g

N B N I
'----H'-ll"l“:

Figure 6 Zhengzhou Xingjin WTE Facility fighting aganinst the flood
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Talent training requires time. The Human Resource (HR) Department  AFEFFE—ERIAETE, AHEREE (HR)
closely monitors the new hires and turnover rate every year to ensure SEZFVIXFTRTMNBREMBMER, UEL
the timely adjustment to the strategic planning of our workforce. In 2021,  EFiAZ A BRI ERIEM K] . 20214, FHITMR
our workforce grew in line with our business expansion. In China and ~ LPAEARETIE K. FEHEFAFME, 2021FAN
Singapore, we had 715 new employees and 487 instances of employee  EREFIR T AH715A, BEIAR A48T A. hEF
turnover in 2021. The overall annual new hires rate was 28% and theannual ~ FMMIFRIIKEE R T ANIREKH28%, Einsh
turnover rate was 19% for China and Singapore. EH19%.

Table 3 Employee New Hires and Turnover by Age Group, Gender and Region in FY20216
RS RERE . MERIFNH X AY2021 W EFiH R TANEER S T

FY2021 New hires #153 T Turnovers iz
2021834 ndviduals AABL . ndvidialeAAN i

By Age Group 32 F i}

<30vyearsold 305 AT 375 52.4% 182 37.4%
30-50vyearsold 30-50% 287 40.1% 247 50.7%
>50vyearsold50% A & 53 7.4% 58 1.9%
By Gender %1% 5

Male B1E 580 81.1% 423 86.9%
Female &' 135 18.9% 64 13.1%
By Region 3% ith [X

China H [ T4 99.9% 486 99.8%
Singapore Fifnig 1 0.1% 1 0.2%

g Statistics on new hires, turnover, average hours of training per employee and percentage employee receiving regular performance review pertain only to employees
in China and Singapore. Since WTE projects in other regions are not yet in operation, workforce and training data for those regions are not included at the moment
and will be considered for inclusion in future periods.

WAL, TR, RITIEINERIFEZSETEOFE T EIRIGEIHEPEMFMEHNRT. AF L XAOWTER B #RIZIE, BRTERIGXLEDXAHRA
THGRAEBIRGITER, F BT AR R = XL X EE .
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The foundation and the difficulties of talent work lies in cultivation. The
Company has built a scientific strategic talent training system, focusing
on cultivating more talents who can adapt to high-quality development.
The system consists of five plans, namely “Baby Eagle Plan”, “Flying Eagle
Plan”, “Soaing Eagle Plan”, “Strong Eagle Plan” and “Leading Eagle Plan”,
which together constitute the Company’s strategic talent pool. Through
the above-mentioned five plans, it is aimed to gradually cultivate key post
successors and company reserve talents. In 2021, the Company carried out
anew round of reserve cadre selection, and 44.44% of employees selected
into the reserve talent pool were Flying Eagle students. In addition, we
provide systematic, appropriate and continuous training opportunities
for all employees and tailor training and development plans according to
employees’ learning needs, including vocational skills, leadership skills and
language communication skills. In 2021, we focused on the training idea of
“cultivating the management level at the headquarters, the middle-level in
the area, and the grass-roots employees in the enterprise”, optimising the
training resources in the area, and combined “online knowledge transfer
with offline practical exercises” to comprehensively create a learning-
focused organisation. We also encourage employees to participate in
external training and to improve themselves through examinations and
evaluations to cultivate more all-rounded talents. We also established a
team of engineers with outstanding technological innovation ability to
resolve complex engineering issues. In China and Singapore, Zheneng
Jinjiang Environment achieved an average of 73.5 hours of training per
employee in 2021. In the coming year, we will continue to offer training and
career development programs, with the goal of an average of at least 75
hours of training per employee per year.

Talent Training and Advancement

AT EFSRA

AATIE, EMiEER, HABESER. A8
HERFHEEATEREKR, EHERES
BENEREARMNEZEALT, ZHRREER
WX . CTRER . BRI

“HEMEIT R A0 “EIT R AANERS A
R, XRMBEKATKEAAE. B EARAN
X, BPBIEFRIEFEA SRR K AHSE
EMATREANA, 20214, AFAFERH—®
EETHiIEER, REANEREAATEMARF
44 44% K KEF R . kAN, HMNBARERT
BILRG., SEMBEIZIINNES, RIEAT
HZEIEXR, AHESEREINMEZRITR,
HopaiFRl g, ISHEURIES 9B
I5. 20214, B4 “RIEHFRLER, FRXiE
FadlHE, tliEFLLEERT” #9Eil
Big, EAMUARXBINER, R “%Lm
RER+ETIRES” HESREN, 2EITE
FIBEN . HATEER RIS miEREN,
B EIE. IFEEARNIEABRKES, BEFRE
SEERBERMNSERESE AT, Bik—
TEERBEARCFED. ETFTHRAERLTE
IR A TH2IFBAME . 20214F, #isese IIfEAE
R EFAFT NG A9 R T F 55 AT 8 473 5/
B, 7E3REE, BAVGHESEEEIIFERL %R
itxl, ENERENRISEFHEZTZEDISN
B Ry .

Table 4 Average Hours of Training by Gender and Employee Category in FY2021
F4 2021 F 3R MERIFNRE 5 251 B9 HF I A4

Average Hours of Training per Permanent Employee

per Year (Hours)

FY2021
2021 w4
By Gender %1% 3
Female %%
Male 5514

By Employee Category 1% & 5 25
Associate ZiBIR R

Middle management H /2 &1

pai|

w0

Senior management &2k &IE
Overall 21t

Overall =23t

AR THEHFHEIEK CDED

73.5

73.5

73.5
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169.5

73.5
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Strengthen the Responsibility of Cadres with Original Aspiration and Promote Business Development

FEMLETHEE RUAEREELZR

In order to improve the management ability of cadres, break through the bottleneck of operation and development, and
improve the level of enterprise operation and management, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment held a special training course
at the general manager level in September 2021, focusing on four aspects, namely, legal affairs, internal control, financing
and finance. The training was driven by actual cases to facilitate knowledge absorption and it not only adhered to the
problem orientation, but also met the needs of their daily work, strengthened theoretical learning and encouraged practical
application.

ARATHEREN, RREEARMT, RetWizEERKT, MR IMRET2021FIARTREBRRETIE
MWEE, BESES. AT, MEMMSOAERA, LUSKIERESEHEIRME, BERFEHESE, NiHeTERE, R
ERIEFS), EFEXBIER.

The training is based on the new phase of the development of environmental protection enterprises , focusing on the
requirements of enterprise management and development, and focusing on resolving the misalignment of ideology,
ability and quality between the enterprise and the managers.

FULEFHEKTRE W R ROFHRE, EREVEELZRHER, ENRREUEBEEZEUS. HAERLEDR
WERAFE. TIERHIE)RE.

The trainees learn and understand with responsibility, research and think with a mission, discuss and collaborate to solve
problems. They find gaps, make up for shortcomings and weaknesses, and further improve their ability to perform their
duties. This in turn encourages the promotion of high-quality development of the Company.

ZNARHFEREFIME. FEEGARBE . THEOBITIOMIE, HREE. MER. BBEW, E—PIRSEREE
B, BhEHLAERERR.
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Occupational Health and Safety

Protecting the health and safety of our employees, contractors, suppliers,
communities and related parties is at the heart of our protection of
human rights. Zheneng Jinjiang Environment always adheres to “red line
awareness” and “bottom line thinking”, implements risk control measures
with strict standards, and strengthens safety management from
management and technology.

We adhere to relevant occupational health and safety ("“OHS") laws and
regulations and uphold the “Three Concurrent” principle, ensuring safety
design and establishment during new project implementation. Zheneng
Jinjiang Environment has either set up or is in the process of setting up
OHS systems in each WTE facility in accordance with the internationally
recognised OHSAS 18001 Standards. This establishes a robust system to
identify, manage and monitor OHS-related risks. The management system
sets out responsibilities and contingency plans in preparation of potential
crisis. The operation teams on the ground conduct regular maintenance
of equipment and enhance safety precaution features. All new employees
are required to undergo compulsory safety training before commencing
work. OHS policies and management systems are clearly communicated
to employees.

In2021, the Company organised special training for the safety management
personnel of its subsidiaries, focusing on the relevant revisions of the
new safety production law and corporate compliance implementation
measures, the implementation of three-year special action measures,
safety standardisation and system establishment, as well as the
establishment of risk classification management and a dual prevention
mechanism for hidden dangers. At the same time, a series of safety-
related activities such as Occupational Disease Prevention Law Publicity
Week, Disaster Prevention and Mitigation Week, Safety Production Month,
Safety and Environmental Protection Warning Month, Fire Safety Publicity
Month and Safety Production Law Publicity Month were held. Activities
such as online safety and environmental protection knowledge contests
were launched to enhance the core combat effectiveness on safety
production.

At the headquarters level, the ESH Management Committee meeting was
held every quarter to in depth analyse the Company’s safety production
situation and existing gaps, to deploy safety and environmental protection
work in the next quarter, continuously consolidate the basic work of
operating enterprise safety production management, and continuing to
improve management effectively. The safety and environmental protection
audit action team conducted the comprehensive and systematic audit,
strictly managed the problems found in the audit in a closed-loop, and
criticised when the rectification was not in place, contributing to the
improvement of safety and environment protection for the Company.
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Figure 7 Wuhu WTE Facility in Anhui Province conducted emergency rescue drills

B7  ZHEXPHREE] TR DZHKAEES

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment values the health and safety of our
employees. The Company offers all employees complimentary health
check-ups and provides Employer Liability Insurance and Group
Accident Insurance. Technical operation employees will also receive
regular complimentary screenings for occupational diseases, enabling
early identification of potential health-related hazards. In 2021, some
subsidiaries of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment had been affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic to varying degrees. The Company remained vigilant
to supervise and track the normalised management and control of each
enterprise, and immediately followed up and provided special guidance on
the epidemic prevention situation. This included tracking and supervising
the disposal of epidemic-related waste, thereby ensuring the Company'’s
maintenance of a zero-infection rate in China during the year, as well as
assisting the local government to complete the task of harmless disposal
of epidemic-related waste in a standardised and safe manner.

In 2021, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment did not experience any instances
of employee workplace injuries or fatalities in the course of its operations.
In 2022, we aim to continue to maintain a good record of safe and
environmentally friendly production, with zero employee workplace
injuries and fatalities.
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ZhenengJinjiang Environment takes “pre-emptive risk control, in-process
supervision and inspection, and post-event audit” as its work orientation.
We learn from case studies and promote reform in reference to case
studies as well. We focus on key procurement control, and highlight
risk prevention mechanisms, applying the idea of preventing risks,
strengthening internal control, promoting compliance and creating value
in our day-to-day work.

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment has always maintained its anti-corruption
stance. We continuously promote the strategic goal that employees “do
not dare, are not able, and have no desire to be corrupt”’, and have adopted
a zero-tolerance stance on corruption. In 2021, we maintained the official
account of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Reporting and Complaint
channel, where all complaints are tracked and handled to ensure an
open information feedback channel. The Company also held a special
conference on anti-corruption, arranged for new employees to sign a
letter of commitment and declare conflicts of interest of key positions,
so as to further deepen and promote the ideological and understanding
of incorrupt practices. In 2021, there were no confirmed incidents of
corruption. In the coming year, Zheneng Jinjiang Environment aims
maintain zero incidents of confirmed corruption.

The Company also adheres to relevant environmental and social laws
concerning issues like emissions and waste, air emissions, environmental
disclosure requirements, labour practices and OHS practices. In 2021,
the contract management system was comprehensively revised, and
the contract management was effectively implemented according to
the procedures of importance and risk strength. We worked with the
permanent legal advisor to provide legal analysis and support for the
decision-making of major issues, so as to protect the Company’s rights
and interests to the greatest extent, and sought to continuously improve
the response mechanism on the pre-control of legal risks. In addition,
the Company insisted on analysing and finding problems from daily
inspection, combining internal and external experience, transforming
from post-audit to pre-risk warning, static audit to dynamic tracking audit,
providing professional advice for the standardisation and refinement
of the Company’s management, and promoting the preservation and
appreciation of corporate assets.

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment acknowledges the changing regulatory
environment and actively manages its compliance risks. The management,
technical teams and the Risk Control Department communicate regularly
with requlators and industrial associations, and actively participate in the
consultation of new laws and regulations. In 2021, the Company created
an incorruptible and efficient working atmosphere by carrying out legal
training on safety and environmental protection, repeatedly reiterating
that the bottom line on safety, environmental protection and honest
performance of one's duty cannot be compromised. In 2022, we will
continue to increase the frequency and intensity of compliance training,
focusing on risk prevention and control in high-risk areas such as listing
regulations, compliance procedures, material procurement, contract
signing and labour disputes, formulate reasonable process specifications
based on management weaknesses, and gradually improve our internal
controls manual to enhance the value of risk control.

Regulatory Compliance
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Additional Disclosure: Local Community

Hib#EE: ittt

In 2021, we continued to support environmental education, community care, social welfare and other activities, actively devoted
our efforts and leveraged our capital advantages to strengthen the connections with local communities, and contribute to
building a better society.

20214, BMANBEFFHRRHE . HEXXIF. HEAHFAEAES, RIVANNE, KIEERNE, MRS HHEXEKR,
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1. Exploring the Waste treatment and Facilitate the Research on 1. FREMUIREL B I Xk F
Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality

On 3 October 2021, during the National Day holiday, Hankou Jinjiang WTE 20214103 HEEEKERH, #MILEHRINHIX
Facility in Wuhan City, Hubei Province welcomed participants of the  HALIRAR[ MR THRE “HEEFE” “KE
“Brilliant Youth” and “Friendly Earth Green Growth Camp” public welfare ¥k FERKE” AHFHMRMEMSUE, B
environmental protection project. The participants further understood IRV IHFRIEK/INREN T R T Hthir ik &
the significance and importance of waste classification through detailed  Im4LIR /5%, $RMMIIN A BAYER:, H—FIA
explanation on terminal waste treatment and a deep-dive into the mystery  IREILIIR D LR ENFIZEM.

of waste power generation.

Figure 8 Hankou Jinjiang WTE Facility received visitors from
public welfare environmental protection project

E8 AL ERR R OLIRE B 1#iF L a IR B &

2. Express Care and Love on the Double Ninth Festival 2. ETINEI Z0REIT

During the Double Ninth Festival on 14 October 2021, in order to carry  fh#E T, XESE. AhiHhERESE.
forward the Chinese traditional virtue of respecting the elderly, the party ~ #ZHIE%EE, 10A14BEMRET, AEE
branch of Linzhou Jiasheng WTE Facility in Henan Province visited elderly — #AJNEIIR & BB R ZEBATE A EFR <%
in the nearby village, sending care and blessings in the festive season. ZEZAN FBEMR” XEREY, ABADEX
T H BB i Fn4L4aE -

Figure 9 Linzhou Jiasheng WTE Facility launched a special
visit as an expression of gratitude with the theme of
caring the elderly.
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3. “Zero Distance” Visit and “Immersion” Education

On 13 April 2021, students from Northeast Normal University visited the
Jilin Xinxiang WTE Facility in Jilin Province. Through the explanation in
the environmental science education exhibition hall, the visit of the main
control room and Q&A session in the meeting room, the students truly
understood the importance of waste technology and waste sorting.
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Figure 10 Students from Northeast Normal University visited
Jilin Xinxiang WTE Facility in Jilin Province.
E10  FAIGEAFFESYSHERFRLE

4. Environmental Protection Entered in New Era with Digital Media

In February 2021, Songyuan Xinxiang WTE Facility in Jilin Province launched
a double virtual visit through a WeChat group with 3D video sharing and
Douyin live broadcast which was participated by more than 60 people. The
public got to know the whole process of waste treatment, including the
treatment of dust, flue gas and leachate. At the same time, the virtual visit
also explained and answered questions about each process flow, so that
the public could understand the treatment process and final destination of
waste and sewage. Many visitors commented how clean the waste treatment
was, and that it can also become a garden-like factory area.
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Figure 11 Songyuan Xinxiang WTE Facility in Jilin Province
launched virtual visit.
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Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited (the “Company” or “Zheneng Jinjiang Environment”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is committed to maintaining good corporate governance in all
its business activities.

This report sets out Zheneng Jinjiang Environment's corporate governance practices with reference to the Principles
and Provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance 2018 (the “CG Code”). Where the Company's practices differ
from the Provisions under the CG Code, comprehensive and meaningful explanations on how such practices it had
adopted are consistent with the aim, intent and philosophy of the relevant Principle have been included in this
report.

Board Matters
Principle 1:  The Board's Conduct of Affairs
Role of the Board

The Board oversees the Group's business and its performance. It is collectively responsible and works with
management for the long-term success of the Company. The Board's principal roles include guiding and establishing
strategic and business objectives. The Board considers sustainability issues, including environmental and social
factors, as part of its strategic formulation. Executives of the Board are tasked to execute these by setting direction
and goals for management and staff and ensuring that the business of the Group is effectively managed and
properly conducted day to day towards these ends. The Board reviews the Group's performance and satisfies itself
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the framework and processes for internal controls. The Board also sets the
tone for the Group in respects of ethics, values and desired organisational culture, and ensures proper accountability
within the Group. The Board assumes the overall responsibility for good corporate governance.

The Group's key stakeholders include its shareholders, customers, suppliers, business partners, employees and the
community. The Group has put in place a code of business and ethical conduct for its employees to ensure that
obligations to these key stakeholders are understood and met.

Independent Judgement

All Directors are fiduciaries of the Company who act objectively in the best interests of the Company and hold
management accountable for performance. In determining the independence of the Directors, please refer to “Board
Independence” under Principle 2 in this Corporate Governance Report. Also, Directors who face conflicts of interest
or are directly or indirectly interested in a transaction or proposed transaction recuse themselves from discussions
and decisions involving the issues of conflict. The Board has established a Nominating Committee (the “NC") which
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointments and re-appointments of the Directors and assesses their
independence annually and as and when circumstances require. When assessing their independence, the NC takes
into account the Director's independence in conduct, character and judgment and any relationships between the
Director and the Company, its related corporations, its substantial shareholders or its officers that could interfere, or
be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of his independent business judgment in the best interests of
the Company.

Delegation by the Board

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities as a listed company, the Board has established an Audit and Risk
Management Committee (the “ARMC"), a Remuneration Committee (the “RC”) and an NC. These Committees
function within clearly defined written terms of references setting out their compositions, authorities and duties
including reporting back to the Board, which are reviewed on a periodic basis to ensure their continued relevance.
The composition and effectiveness of each Committee is also periodically reviewed by the Board. The delegation
of authority by the Board to the Committees enables the Board to achieve operational efficiency by empowering
the Committees to decide on matters within their respective terms of reference, and yet without abdicating its
responsibility. Please refer to Principles 10, 6 and 4 in this Corporate Governance Report for further information on
the activities of the ARMC, RC and NC respectively.
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The Committees are predominantly made up of independent non-executive Directors and are each chaired by an
independent non-executive Director. The details of the membership in the Committees are set out as follows:

ARMC NC RC
Wei Dongliang - Member -
Ang Swee Tian Member Chairman Member
Hee Theng Fong Member - Chairman
Tan Huay Lim Chairman Member -
Ni Mingjiang - Member Member

Board Processes

The Board meets at least quarterly and whenever necessary to address any specific significant matters that may
arise. Records of such meetings, including key deliberations and decisions taken, are maintained by the Joint
Company Secretaries. The Company’s Articles of Association allow a Board meeting to be conducted by way of
telephonic or video-conference. Board approval may be obtained by circulation via written resolutions.

The number of Board and Committee meetings held for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021")
(for the avoidance of doubt, for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021) and the attendance of each
Director where relevant are as follows:

Directors’ Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings in FY2021

Board AGM EGM ARMC NC RC

Number of meetings held
in FY2021 4 1 - 5 1 1

Name of Director Number of meetings attended in 2021

Wei Dongliang 4 1 - 5A 1 -

Wang Ruihong 4 1 - 5A - N

Ang Swee Tian 4 1 - 5 1 1

Hee Theng Fong 4 1 - 5 N 1

Tan Huay Lim 4 1 - 5 1 I

Ni Mingjiang 4 1 - 3A 1 1
A : by invitation

Despite the above disclosure, the Board is of the view that the contribution of each Director should not only be
focused on the attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings but should extend beyond attendance at
meetings. A Director may share his or her opinion, advice and experience with other Directors and management and
doing so can also further the interest of the Group. A Director with multiple board representations has ensured that
sufficient time and attention is given to the affairs of the Company.
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Board Approval

The Board has identified certain key matters that are specifically reserved for approval by the Board, including:

° the Group's long-term objectives and commercial strategy, and the annual operating and capital expenditure
budgets;

° material investments and acquisitions and disposal of assets or projects above certain specified thresholds;

° major corporate or financial restructuring, changes to the Group's capital structure and debt financing which

results in the Group's gearing ratio exceeding certain limits specified in the Group’s annual budget;
° dividend policy and any changes thereto, and the declaration or recommendation of dividends;

° the results of the Company, the annual report, significant changes in accounting policies or practices,
transactions whereby there is a conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or director, and the
Group's risk and control processes and corporate governance arrangements; and

° resolutions and documentation to be put forth to Shareholders at a general meeting.

The ARMC, NC and RC evaluate and report to the Board on other specific matters including, compliance with
the provisions of the non-competition agreement entered into by the Company with certain of its controlling
shareholders, interested person transactions and any general mandate for interested person transactions,
management’s remuneration packages and the Jinjiang Environment Performance Share Plan (“Jinjiang Environment
PSP").

The Board has formally refined the above matters to facilitate execution and also incorporated approval limits that
require Board or management approval. The above was clearly communicated by the Board to management in
writing.

Orientation and Training

The Board recognises the importance of appropriate induction and training for its Directors. Newly appointed
Directors will be given an orientation program which includes presentations and briefings by the CEO and
management. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, virtual site visits to overseas plants may also be conducted to facilitate
a better understanding of the Group’s operations, processes, internal controls and governance practices. Meetings
with various key executives allow the Directors to be acquainted with the management team and ensure that the
Directors have direct independent access to the management team in future. All newly appointed Directors receive
an appointment letter setting out the general duties and obligations as a Director, pursuant to the relevant legislation
and regulations.

In addition to the above, all Directors and management are encouraged to undergo relevant training to enhance
their skills and knowledge, particularly on new laws and regulations affecting the Group’s business and governance
practices. Directors who have no prior experience as a director of a listed company are required to attend the Listed
Entity Directors Programme conducted by the Singapore Institute of Directors within the prescribed timelines under
the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST Listing Manual”) to acquire the
relevant knowledge on the roles and responsibilities of a listed company director. The Joint Company Secretaries
coordinate with such Director to complete such training, subject to the training schedule and the Director’s
availability. The Directors are also provided with updates periodically by the Company's compliance adviser, Joint
Company Secretaries, external and internal auditors and other professionals relating to directors’ duties, relevant
laws, regulations and codes, financial reporting standards, internal controls, corporate governance and risk
management. All the orientation and training expenses are fully funded by the Group.

Pursuant to Rule 720(7) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual effective 1 January 2022, all Directors of the Company must
undergo training on sustainability matters as prescribed by the SGX-ST. If the NC is of the view that training is not
required because the Director has expertise in sustainability matters, the basis of its assessment must be disclosed.
The Company is required to confirm in its sustainability report for the financial year ending 31 December 2022 is
required that all its Directors have attended the mandatory training on sustainability. Accordingly, the Company is in
the midst of arranging for its Directors to attend the mandatory training on sustainability training by 31 December
2022.
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Complete, Adequate and Timely Information

The Board and Board Committees are provided with a meeting agenda and the relevant papers prior to the
meetings. Complete, adequate and timely information are provided prior to meetings and on an on-going basis to
allow proper deliberation on issues. Draft agenda are circulated in advance to the Board and Board Committees
for review and additional items can be added where necessary. Management, external and internal auditors, the
compliance adviser and other professionals are invited to the meetings when necessary to provide additional inputs
on the matters for discussion. The minutes of meetings are circulated to all Board members for comments and
confirmation.

The Directors are encouraged to request for additional information of the Company's operations or business from
the management to make informed decisions. Necessary arrangements will be made to provide such information.
The Board has separate and independent access to management.

Joint Company Secretaries

At least one of the Joint Company Secretaries will attend all Board and Board Committee meetings and ensure
that all Board and Board Committee procedures are followed. Together with the management, the Joint Company
Secretaries assist the Company in complying with all the applicable laws and regulations. The Joint Company
Secretaries also advise on all corporate governance matters, ensure good information flows within the Board and
between management and Directors, facilitate orientation for newly appointed Directors and assist with continuing
professional training and development for the Directors. On an ongoing basis, the Directors have separate
and independent access to the Joint Company Secretaries at the expense of the Company, whose duties and
responsibilities are clearly defined. The appointment or the removal of the Joint Company Secretaries is a decision of
the Board as a whole.

Independent Professional Advice

The Directors, whether individually or as a group, are entitled to obtain independent professional advice at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties and when circumstances warrant the advice.

Principle 2: Board Composition and Guidance
Board of Directors
The Board comprises 6 Directors: 1 executive Chairman, 1 executive Director and 4 independent non-executive

Directors. Accordingly, non-executive directors make up a majority of the Board. As at the date of this Report, the
Board comprises the following members:

Name of Director Age Date of first appointment  Position(s)

Wei Dongliang 47 26 Sep 2019 Executive Chairman

Wang Ruihong 56 23 Dec 2010 Executive Director and Deputy General Manager
Ang Swee Tian 73 29 Jun 2016 Lead Independent Director

Hee Theng Fong 67 29 Jun 2016 Independent Director

Tan Huay Lim 65 29 Jun 2016 Independent Director

Ni Mingjiang 72 29 Jun 2016 Independent Director

Board Independence

The NC conducts an annual review of each director’'s independence in accordance with Rule 210(5)(d) of the SGX-ST
Listing Manual and Provision 2.1 of the CG Code. Rule 210(5)(d)(iii) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual is not applicable
as none of the Independent Directors have served on the Board beyond 9 years from the date of their first
appointment.
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For FY2021, the Board, taking into account the views of the NC, has determined that the four Independent Directors
of the Company are independent in character and judgement and that there are no relationships or circumstances
with the Company, its related corporations, its substantial shareholders (as defined in the SGX-ST Listing Manual) or
its officers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of these Directors’ objective
business judgment in the best interests of the Company, thus providing a strong and independent element on the
Board. No individual or small group of individuals dominate the Board's decision making. Given that the Chairman
of the Board is not an independent director, independent directors make up a majority of the Board. Each of the
Independent Directors had recused himself from the NC's and Board's deliberations on his own independence.

Board Composition and Size

The NC reviews the size and composition of the Board and each Board Committee annually to ensure they are
of an appropriate size and comprise Directors who as a group provide an appropriate balance and mix of skills,
knowledge, experience, and other aspects of diversity such as gender and age, so as to avoid groupthink and foster
constructive debate. The Board is committed to achieve an appropriate level of independence and diversity of
thought and background in its composition to enable it to make decisions in the best interests of the Company.
The Board recognises that a diverse Board of an appropriate size is an important element which will better support
the Company's achievement of its strategic objectives for sustainable development, avoid groupthink and foster
constructive debate. A diverse Board also enhances decision-making process through the perspectives derived from
various skills, business experience, industry discipline, gender, age, ethnicity and culture, geographical background
and nationalities, tenure of service and other distinguishing qualities of the Directors.

The current Board comprises persons with diverse expertise and experience in accounting, business and
management, finance, law, risk management and sustainable energy who as a group provide core competencies
necessary to meet the Company's requirements. The Directors’ objective judgment on corporate affairs and collective
experience and knowledge are invaluable to the Group and allows for the useful exchange of ideas and views.

Pursuant to Provision 2.4 of the CG Code, the Board has also adopted a Board Diversity Policy. Under the Board
Diversity Policy, the NC will, in reviewing the Board's composition, rotation and retirement of Directors and
succession planning, consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, nationalities, ethnicity,
cultural background, educational background, experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. The
ultimate decision on the selection of Director(s) to be appointed on the Board will be based on merit, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity and needs on the Board.

While the current Board does not have a mixed gender diversity, consistent with the intent of Principle 2 of the CG
Code, the Board currently comprises suitably qualified Directors with a good balance of expertise and experience,
complemented by sound industry knowledge. Taking into account the mix of expertise and experience possessed
by the members of the Board and the Board Committees, the Board, taking into consideration the views of the NC,
considers that its Directors meet the criteria under its Board Diversity Policy and the Board possesses the necessary
diversity of thought and background in its composition to enable it to make decisions in the best interests of the
Company. The NC and the Board would also continue working towards implementing the Board Diversity Policy more
extensively as an ongoing process.

The non-executive independent Directors are kept informed of the Group’s business and performance through
quarterly Board meetings and have unrestricted access to management. They are encouraged to participate actively
in Board meetings to provide constructive input, help develop proposals on strategy and review the performance
of the Group. The non-executive independent Directors are encouraged to meet regularly without the presence of
management, and the chairman of such meetings provides feedback to the Board and/or Chairman as appropriate.
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Principle 3:  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")
Chairman and CEO

Mr. Wei Dongliang (“Mr. Wei") is the Executive Chairman of the Group. Mr. Wei is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group, and is responsible for leading the Board to ensure its effectiveness on all
aspects of its role, setting and allocating time for discussion on all agenda items, promoting an open environment for
constructive debate at the Board, encouraging non-executive Directors to speak and contribute constructively and
ensuring quality, quantity and timeliness of information flow between the Board and management. He also leads
the Group in its commitment to achieve and maintain good corporate governance and facilitates dialogue between
shareholders, the Board and management during shareholders’ meetings.

For FY2021, there was no CEO of the Company. Mr. Wei is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations of
the Group.

Although the roles and responsibilities of both the Executive Chairman and the CEO are vested in Mr. Wei, being a
deviation from the Provision 3.1 of the CG Code, the Board believes that vesting the roles of both Executive Chairman
and CEO in the same person who is knowledgeable in the business of the Group provides the Group with a strong
and consistent leadership and thus allows for more effective planning and execution of long-term business strategies.

Nonetheless, any major decisions made by Mr. Wei are required to be reviewed and approved by the Board. Should
Mr. Wei face any conflict of interest in the proposed transaction, he is required to recuse himself from discussions
and decisions involving the issues of conflict. He is also required to avoid situations in which his own personal or
business interests directly or indirectly conflict, or appear to conflict, with the interests of the Group. In addition,
the Independent Directors of the Company make up a majority of the Board. As such, consistent with the intent of
Principle 3 of the CG Code, the Board believes that there are adequate safeguards and checks in place to ensure that
the process of decision-making by the Board is independent and based on collective decision without any individual
exercising any considerable concentration of power of influence. Accordingly, there is a balance of power and
authority and, therefore, no one individual has unfettered powers and can control/ dominate the decision-making
process of the Company. The Board is not considering separating the roles of the Executive Chairman and the CEO at
this moment. The NC will review the need to separate these roles from time to time and make its recommendations
when necessary.

Lead Independent Director

Given that the Chairman is not independent, Mr. Ang Swee Tian (“Mr. Ang") has been appointed as the Lead
Independent Director (“Lead ID"). The Board is of the view that the process of decision making by the Board
is independent and based on collective decision-making without any individuals exercising any considerable
concentration of power or influence. All major decisions made by the Group will be subject to review by the Board.
The Lead ID is available to shareholders where they have concerns and for which contact through the normal
channels of communication with the Chairman of the Board or management are inappropriate or inadequate.
The Lead ID has also held discussions with the other independent Directors without the presence of the Executive
Chairman or management.

Principle 4: Board Membership

NC Composition and Role

The NC comprises four directors namely:

1. Ang Swee Tian (NC Chairman and Lead Independent Director)

2. Wei Dongliang (Executive Chairman)

3. Tan Huay Lim (Independent Director)

4. Ni Mingjiang (Independent Director)

Three out of four members of the NC are independent. The NC Chairman is also the Lead ID.
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The NC's key terms of reference, approved by the Board, include the following:

° making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to succession plans for the chairman of
the Board, Directors, Group CEO and other key management personnel (including regarding their appointment
and/or replacement);

° making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to evaluation of the performance of the
Board, the Board Committees and the individual Directors. The NC also proposes and recommends for the
Board's approval, objective performance criteria and processes for the evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole, and of each Board Committee separately, as well as the contribution by the chairman of the
Board and each individual Director to the Board;

° making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the training and professional
development programmes for the Board and the Directors, including ensuring that new Directors are aware of
their duties and obligations and undergo an appropriate induction programme;

° making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment and re-appointment
of all Directors (including any alternate Directors) and on membership of the Board Committees;

° regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and Board Committees, having regarding
to skillset, qualification, gender, age, experience and diversity;

° reviewing other directorships and principal commitments held by each Director and decide whether a
Director is able to carry out, and has been adequately carrying out, his/her duties as a Director, taking
into consideration the number of listed company directorships held by the Director and his/her principal
commitments; and

° reviewing and determining annually (or whenever necessary), the independent status of Directors (and that of
the alternate Directors (if applicable), having regard to the Code and the SGX-ST Listing Manual.

Based on the NC and the Board evaluation checklists completed by the NC and the Directors respectively, the NC
believes that it has fulfilled its responsibilities and discharged its duties as set out in its written terms of reference.
The Joint Company Secretaries maintain records of all NC meetings and these checklists. For more information on
these checklists, please refer to Principle 5 of this Corporate Governance Report.

Selection, Nomination and Appointment of New Directors

In the selection and nomination for new Directors, the NC identifies the key attributes that an incoming Director
should possess based on the requirements of the Group. The NC taps on the Directors, management and external
parties for recommendations of potential candidates. The NC meets with the potential candidates to assess their
suitability before formally recommending them for appointment to the Board for further evaluation.

In the selection process, the NC considers:

° the candidate’s track record, experience and expertise, age, gender and other attributes that the Board
identifies;

° the independence of the candidate, in the case of the appointment of an independent director;

° competing time commitments if the candidate has multiple listed company board representations and other

principal commitments; and
° the composition requirements of the Board and Board Committees.
Re-appointment of Directors
The NC reviews the nomination of relevant Directors for re-election and appointment, including their independence
as a director, if applicable. When considering the nomination for re-appointment, the NC considers the composition

and progressive renewal of the Board and each Director's contribution and performance (e.g. attendance,
preparedness, participation and candour).
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The NC also decides if a Director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his or her duties as a Director of the
Company. The NC reviews annually the directorships held by each Director as well as principal commitments, if any.
Where a Director holds a significant number of listed company directorships and principal commitments, the NC and
the Board will make a reasoned assessment of the ability of the Director to diligently discharge his or her duties. Each
Director is also required to confirm annually to the NC whether he has any issue with competing time commitments
which may impact his ability to provide sufficient time and attention to his duties as a Director of the Company.
The NC and the Board will also take into consideration whether a Director had previously served on the board of a
company with an adverse track record or with a history of irregularities or is or was under investigation by regulators.
The NC and the Board will also assess whether a Director's resignation from the board of any such company casts
any doubt on the director’'s qualification and ability to act as a Director of the Company. Based on the analysis, the
confirmation from the Directors, the number of listed company directorships and principal commitments of each
Director and their contribution to the Company, the NC is of the view that all the Directors are able to and have
adequately carried out their duties as Directors of the Company.

Although Practice Guidance 4 of the CG Code recommends the Board to determine the maximum number of listed
company board representations which any Director may hold, the NC does not recommend setting this limit. The
Board considers several factors as described above to be a more effective assessment of a Director's commitment
rather than to prescribe a limit. Suitable candidates who have multiple board representations may still have the
capacity to participate and contribute as members of the Board. Currently, the number of directorships in other
listed companies, excluding the Company, held by the Directors ranges from nil to five.

The Board requires a Director to inform the Board when accepting any new principal commitment or listed company
board appointment. The Director will also be required to confirm that the new commitment or appointment will
not affect his ability to adequately carry out his duties as a Director of the Company. Directors are also required
to disclose to the Board details of any relationships with the Company, its related corporations, its substantial
shareholders or its officers, if any, which may affect their independence?, including business relationships which a
Director, his or her immediate family member, or an organisation which the Director, or his or her immediate family
member is a substantial shareholder, partner (with 5% or more stake), executive officer or director in has with the
Company or any of its related corporations, and the Director’s direct association with a substantial shareholder of
the Company, in the current and immediate past financial year. No Director or his or her immediate family member,
or a company that he, she or they are a substantial shareholder in, provides to or receives from the company or its
subsidiaries any significant payments or material services.

The Company's articles of association provide that each Director shall retire at least once every three years and
a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. At the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM"), Mr. Wang
Ruihong (“Mr. Wang"), Mr Hee Theng Fong (“Mr. Hee") and Mr Tan Huay Lim (“Mr. Tan"), will be retiring. Mr. Wang,
Mr. Hee and Mr. Tan have offered themselves for re-election. Mr. Tan, being a member of the NC, has abstained from
the deliberation in respect of his re-nomination as a Director. The NC recommended that Mr. Wang, Mr. Hee and Mr.
Tan be nominated for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Succession Planning

In reviewing succession plans, the NC considers the Company’s strategic priorities and the factors affecting the
long-term success of the Company. In relation to succession plans for Directors, the NC aims to maintain an optimal
Board composition by considering the trends affecting the Company, reviewing the skills needed, and identifying
gaps (including considering whether there is an appropriate level of diversity of thought). In relation to succession
plans for key management personnel, the NC takes an active interest in how key talent is managed within the Group
and reviews the mechanisms for identifying strong candidates and developing them to take on senior positions in
the future. The NC considers different time horizons for succession planning as follows: (1) long-term planning, to
identify competencies needed for the Company’s strategy and objectives, (2) medium-term planning, for the orderly
replacement of Board members and key management personnel, and (3) contingency planning, for preparedness
against sudden and unforeseen changes.

' “independence” has the same meaning as defined in the CG Code and Rule 210(5)(d) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual.
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Key Information on Directors

The present and past (at least for the past five financial years) directorships of each Director in other listed
companies, group and related companies and other companies and organisations are set out below.

Name Present Directorships Past Directorships
Wei Dongliang Group Companies Group Companies
(FARR)

Hangzhou Jinjiang Environment Investment
Co., Ltd.
(HUHIERA BB A PR 7])

Singapore Jinjiang Environment Pte. Ltd.
G M HR LA B A N A BR A 7))

Lamoon Holding Limited
Outstanding Mode Developments Limited

Sunrise Development Group Limited
(RN K JRERIH IR A )

Gevin Limited
(% 15 A PR A7)

Prime Gain Investments Limited
(PSR A TR A A])

Lin'an Jiasheng Environment Co., Ltd.
(1% % 5% IR A BR A 7D

Other Companies
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Other Companies

Zhejiang Fuzhe Investment Co., Ltd.
(WL & W s A R AT

Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Venture
Capital Co., Ltd.
(L e BV BT PR A |])

Zheshang Property and Casualty Insurance
Co., Ltd.
(T T 0 7= R e A PR T)

***China Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd.
(W ERAT et R A w))

Zhejiang Guohua Zheneng Power Generation
Co., Ltd.
(WL [ e e R A R /D)

Qinshan Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.
(Z A RAT])

Nuclear Power Qinshan Joint Venture Co.,
Ltd.
(ZHZEILREHRAR)

Guodian Zhejiang Beilun No.1 Power
Generation Co., Ltd.
(F AL G5 — R A R AR)

Zhejiang Zheneng Jiaxing Power Co., Ltd.
(WL HT RE 37 % K R A IR A 7))

Ningbo Marine Group Company Limited
(TBHFIZERAH R A F])

Zhejiang Ocean Development Investment
Group Co., Ltd.
(WL AR AT R SR A TR A )

Zhejiang Tou Men Port Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.
(WK T TR BT KA PR A )

Qianjiang Water Resources Development Co.,
Ltd.
(BRITLAR I A B A B2 7])
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Past Directorships

Wang Ruihong
(FEFHHLL)

Group Companies

Lin'an Jiasheng Environmental Protection Co.,
Ltd.
(f % 5% eI R AT BR 2 =)

Green Energy (Hangzhou) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.
(£ B8 (UMD Al FRATBR 24 7))

Hangzhou Jinjiang Environment Investment
Co., Ltd.
(AR BB AT IR 2> 7])

Hangzhou Xiaoshan Jinjiang Green Energy
Co., Ltd.
(LM L FR VL2 (BB IR A PR A 7))

Huaizhe Coal & Electricity Co., Ltd.
(HEHTIE A IR ST 7))

Zhejiang Zheneng Gas Co., Ltd.
(WL B R A B A 7))

Shenhua Guohua (Zhoushan) Power
Generation Co., Ltd.
(fEEE (D) RHEFRITEAR)

Zhejiang Zheneng Wenzhou Power
Generation Co., Ltd.
(WL BRI A AT BR 24 1))

Zhejiang Fuxing Electric Power Fuel Co., Ltd.
(WL X TR BT BR 22 7])

Zhejiang Zheneng Beilun Power Generation
Co., Ltd.
(#HLHTREIL & K A IR A F])

Zhejiang Zheneng Changxing Power
Generation Co., Ltd.
(WL e KO AR FBATBR A )

Zheneng Equity Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd.
(W7 BB B e G A AT IR A )

Zhejiang Zheneng Investment Management
Co., Ltd.
(T3 eSS B 7 BEAT B2 7))

Zhejiang Zheneng Ningbo Natural Gas
technology Development Limited Liability
Company

(WL BE T R AR IR R A IR TUE A H)

Zheneng Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.
(e R AZ AT PR 22 7])

Group Companies

Hohhot Jiasheng New Energy Co., Ltd.
(WP AR 57 AT RE R B A 7))

Baishan Green New Energy Co., Ltd.
(SIS i R/

Hunchun Green New Energy Co., Ltd.
(ERLRRE TR IR PR A7)

Linzhou Jiasheng New Energy Co., Ltd.
(PRPH i 35 T RE TR PR 7])

Zhongwei Green New Energy Co., Ltd
(h BT ek ae e IR A BR A F)
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Name Present Directorships Past Directorships
Hangzhou Yuhang Jinjiang Environmental Tangshan Jiasheng New Energy Co., Ltd.
Energy Co., Ltd. (O WL 37 ik HT Re U A PR A F])

(BUM AR BURR LI PR AR VR AT PR A )

Luliang Green New Energy Co., Ltd
Wenling Green New Energy Co., Ltd. (B BakRe e IR A PR A 7))
(IR 2R EE T HEJR A BR A7)

Zibo Green New Energy Co., Ltd.
Wuhan Green Energy Co., Ltd. (i ek RE T RE TR PR A 7))
(BT PR AR IR A R A 7))

Other Companies
Wuhan Hankou Green Energy Co., Ltd.
(BN F e R A BRA ) -

Kunming Xinxingze Environmental Resources
Industry Co., Ltd.
(B WIZE B B L AT PR A 7))

Yunnan Green Energy Co., Ltd.
(= a ORI R A )

Zibo Environmental Energy Co., Ltd.
(S DR AR TR AT PR A )

Zibo Green Environmental Energy Co., Ltd.
(I 4 BE IR REVR AT BR A 7))

Gaomi Lilangmingde Environmental
Protection Technology Co., Ltd.
(e A W GBI R B A TR A 7])

Jilin Xinxiang Co., Ltd.
(EFMEFEA RN )

Songyuan Xinxiang New Energy Co., Ltd.
(h~ SR SEAE BT HEEA PR 7))

Suihua Green New Energy Co., Ltd.
(AT SR BEHTREVRATBR A 7))

Qitaihe Green New Energy Co., Ltd.
(BB LB REIRA R A H])

Lianyungang Sunrise Environmental
Protection Industry Co., Ltd.
CERBRMIRIA R A )

Zhengzhou Xingjin

Green Environmental Energy Co., Ltd.

(R R e (o IR DR BE R A PR A 1)

Yinchuan Zhongke Environmental Electrical
Co., Ltd.

(BRI P REA R A R 7])

Zhejiang Zhuji Bafang Thermal Power Co., Ltd
(WL )\ 7 A IR TR A 7])
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Past Directorships

Ang Swee Tian

Wuhu Luzhou Environmental Protection
Energy Co., Ltd.

(FEWN SN IR TR BEVRAT B 24 7))

Tianjin Sunrise Environmental Protection
Science and Technology Development Co.,
Ltd.

(REET R T RBI B R R R A7)

Shanghai Sunrise Management Co., Ltd.
(b R4 Ak A BR A )

Shijiazhuang Jiasheng New Energy Co., Ltd
(A1 28 HE 5% ST REVRAT B A 7))

Tangshan Jinhuan New Energy Co., Ltd
(R LT AR FA 3T REVRAT B A 7))

Ecogreen Energy Private Limited

Ecogreen Energy Gurgaon Faridabad Private
Limited

Ecogreen Energy Lucknow Private Limited
Ecogreen Energy Gwalior Private Limited
PT Jinjiang Environment Indonesia

PT. Indo Green Power

Singapore Jinjiang Environment Pte. Ltd.

Other Companies

Group Companies

Other Companies

* Cosco Shipping International (Singapore)
Co., Ltd

ICE Singapore Holdings Pte. Ltd.
ICE Futures Singapore Pte. Ltd.
ICE Clear Singapore Pte. Ltd.

IWOW Technology Limited

Group Companies

Other Companies

* China Aviation Oil (Singapore) Corporation
Ltd

Tuas Power Ltd
Tuas Power Generation Pte Ltd
TP Utilities Pte Ltd

Amare-Greenland Hospitality Investments
(AGHI) Pte Ltd
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Name

Present Directorships

Past Directorships

Hee Theng Fong

Tan Huay Lim

Group Companies

Other Companies

* Straco Corporation Limited
* Yanlord Land Group Limited

* China Aviation Qil (Singapore) Corporation
Ltd

** Haidilao International Holding Ltd
****Huazhu Group Limited

F & H Singhome Fund Il Ltd.

F & H Singhome Fund IlI Ltd.

Greenland (Singapore) Trust Management
Pte. Ltd.

Green Link Digital Bank Pte. Ltd.

Singapore Medishield Life Council

Group Companies

Other Companies

Dasin Retail Trust Management Pte. Ltd., the
Manager of * Dasin Retail Trust

Elite Commercial REIT Management Pte.Ltd.,
the Manager of * Elite Commercial REIT

**|inklogis Inc.

SF REIT Asset Management Limited, the
manager of **SF Real Estate Investment
Trust

* Sheng Siong Group Ltd.

Green Link Digital Bank Pte. Ltd.
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Group Companies

Other Companies

* Tye Soon Limited

* First Resources Limited

* YHI International Limited

* Datapulse Technology Limited

* Delong Holdings Limited

* APAC Realty Limited

Chua Foundation

Singapore Chinese Cultural Centre
Business China

Chinese Development Assistance Council
(CDAC)

Citizenship Committee of Inquiry (ICA)

Group Companies

Other Companies

* Hong Leong Asia Ltd.

* Auric Pacific Group Limited
Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan
Ren Ci Hospital

Xihe Holdings (Pte) Ltd. (under winding up by
court order since 24 March 2022)

Xihe Capital (Pte) Ltd (in liquidation pursuant
to a members’ voluntary winding up since 22
October 2020)

*ASL Marine Holdings Ltd.

* Koufu Group Limited
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Name Present Directorships Past Directorships
Ni Mingjiang (it BHYL)  Group Companies Group Companies
Other Companies Other Companies

Zhejiang University Jinjiang Energy -
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.
(WHLHT K BRI RE TR PR A PR 7])
Notes:
* denotes public listed companies listed on the SGX-ST
*%  denotes public listed companies listed on in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK")

***% denotes public listed companies listed on the SEHK and the Shanghai Stock Exchange

**+%% denotes public listed companies listed on the SEHK and the Nasdaq Global Market

The principal commitments, working experience, academic and professional qualifications and shareholding in
the Company and its related corporations (if any) of the Directors can be found in the sections entitled “Board of
Directors” and “Directors’ Statement” of this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the composite approach to analysing a Director’s effectiveness outlined above, although some of the

Directors hold a significant number of listed company directorships, the NC and the Board believe that they have
been able to and will continue to adequately discharge their duties diligently.
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Supplemental Information on Directors Seeking Re-election

The information required under Rule 720(6) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual relating to the Directors being proposed for
re-election, namely, Mr. Wang Ruihong, Mr. Hee Theng Fong and Mr. Tan Huay Lim, are set out below:

Name of Director Wang Ruihong Hee Theng Fong Tan Huay Lim
Date Of Appointment 23 December 2010 29 June 2016 29 June 2016
Date Of Last Re-Appointment (if

applicable) 29 April 2019 29 April 2019 29 April 2019
Age 56 67 65

Country Of Principal Residence People’s Republic of China Singapore Singapore

The Board's comments on this
appointment (including rationale,
selection criteria, and the search and
nomination process)

The re-election of Mr. Wang
Ruihong (“Mr. Wang") as
Director was recommended
by the Nominating Committee
("NC") and the Board has
accepted the recommendation,
after taking into consideration
his qualifications, expertise,
past experience and overall
contributions since he was
appointed as a Director of the
Company.

Mr. Wang has abstained from
the deliberation of the Board
pertaining to his re-election.

The re-election of Mr. Hee
Theng Fong (“Mr. Hee") as
Director was recommended
by the Nominating Committee
("NC" and the Board has
accepted the recommendation,
after taking into consideration
his qualifications, expertise,
past experience and overall
contributions since he was
appointed as a Director of the
Company.

Mr. Hee has abstained from
the deliberation of the Board
pertaining to his re-election. .

The re-election of Mr. Tan Huay
Lim (“Mr. Tan") as Director
was recommended by the
Nominating Committee (“NC")
and the Board has accepted
the recommendation, after
taking into consideration
his qualifications, expertise,
past experience and overall
contributions since he was
appointed as a Director of the
Company.

Mr. Tan has abstained from the
deliberation of the NC as well
as that of the Board pertaining
to his re-election.

Whether appointment is executive,
and if so, the area of responsibility

Executive. Mr. Wang is
responsible for general
administrative management,
market branding and legal
compliance of the Group.

Non-Executive

Non-Executive

Job Title (e.g. Lead ID, AC Chairman,
AC Member etc.)

Executive Director and Deputy
General Manager

Independent Director, Chairman
of Remuneration Committee
and Member of Audit and Risk
Management Committee

Independent Director, Chairman
of Audit and Risk Management
Committee and Member of NC

Professional Qualifications

Please refer to the “Board of Directors” section

Working  experience and
occupation(s) during the past 10
years

Please refer to the “Board of Directors” section

family relationships) with any
existing director, existing executive
officer, the issuer and/or substantial
shareholder of the listed issuer or of
any of its principal subsidiaries

Shareholding interest in the listed | Direct interest of 2,100,000 Nil Nil
issuer and its subsidiaries shares
Any relationship (including immediate | None None None
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Name of Director Wang Ruihong Hee Theng Fong Tan Huay Lim
Conflict of interest (including any | None None None
competing business)
Undertaking (in the format set out in | Yes Yes Yes
Appendix 7.7 under Rule 720(1) has
been submitted to the listed issuer
Other Principal Commitments? | Director of:- Director of:- Director of:-

including Directorships - Past (for the
last 5 years)

o Hohhot Jiasheng New
Energy Co., Ltd.
(VAT B RE IR TR

Ad)

e Baishan Green New Energy
Co., Ltd.
(BLEkRERRRA R A /)

e Hunchun Green New
Energy Co., Ltd.
(R ARG R A )

o Linzhou Jiasheng New
Energy Co., Ltd.
(PR Tl 52 AR R A PR 8 )

e Zhongwei Green New
Energy Co., Ltd
(th T4k R IR R A )

e Tangshan Jiasheng New
Energy Co., Ltd.
(R Lo 5 B R PR )

o Luliang Green New Energy
Co,, Ltd
(B REREH A IR A /)

o Zibo Green New Energy
Co., Ltd.
(i AR RE R R A 1))

o Tye Soon Limited
o  First Resources Limited
o YHI International Limited

o Datapulse Technology
Limited

e Delong Holdings Limited
e Chua Foundation

o Singapore Chinese Cultural
Centre

o  APAC Realty Limited
e Business China

o Chinese Development
Assistance Council (CDAC)

Chairman of:-

o Citizenship Committee of
Inquiry (ICA)

o Hong Leong Asia Ltd.
o  Auric Pacific Group Limited

o Singapore Hokkien Huay
Kuan

o Ren Ci Hospital

o Xihe Holdings (Pte) Ltd
(under winding up by court
order since 24 March 2022)

o Xihe Capital (Pte) Ltd. (in
liquidation pursuant to
a members' voluntary
winding up since 22
October 2020)

o ASL Marine Holdings Ltd

o Koufu Group Limited

Other Principal Commitments*
including Directorships - Present

Director of:-

o Lin'an Jiasheng
Environmental Protection
Co., Ltd. (I 5 B TRA IR

)

e Green Energy (Hangzhou)
Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd.
(GBI L A IR
)

Director of:-
e  Straco Corporation Limited

o Yanlord Land Group
Limited

e China Aviation Oil
(Singapore) Corporation Ltd

e Haidilao International
Holding Ltd.

Director of:-

o Dasin Retail Trust
Management Pte. Ltd. (The
Manager of Dasin Retail
Trust, a Business Trust)

o Elite Commercial REIT
Management Pte.Ltd.
(The Manager of Elite
Commercial REIT)

2

Principal Commitments has the same meaning as defined in the CG Code
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Name of Director

Wang Ruihong

Hee Theng Fong

Tan Huay Lim

e Hangzhou Jinjiang
Environment Investment
Co., Ltd.

(BMEAR AR A )

o Hangzhou Xiaoshan Jinjiang
Green Energy Co., Ltd.
(B L Tk e R VR A
PRAR)

o Hangzhou Yuhang Jinjiang
Environmental Energy Co.,
Ltd.

(B ARSI RAE A
PRAR)

o Wenling Green New Energy
Co,, Ltd.
(RIS REHREIR A IR A7)

o Wuhan Green Energy
Co.,, Ltd.
(DT AR IR BRI IR

)

e Wuhan Hankou Green
Energy Co., Ltd.
(RPN 2 AR TR A )

o Kunming Xinxingze
Environmental Resources
Industry Co., Ltd.
(RN BB TR LA
PR A])

e Yunnan Green Energy Co.,
Ltd.
(BHS O REFARAR)

o  Zibo Environmental Energy
Co,, Ltd.
(I FA AR AT IR A A])

o Zibo Green Environmental
Energy Co., Ltd.
(T2 R R A R A )

o Gaomi Lilangmingde
Environmental Protection
Technology Co., Ltd.

(e 2 A DR A
PRAR)

o Jilin Xinxiang Co., Ltd.
(FHABHARELR)

o Huazhu Group Limited

o F & H Singhome Fund Il
Ltd.

o F & H Singhome Fund Il
Ltd.

o Greenland (Singapore)
Trust Management Pte. Ltd.

o Green Link Digital Bank
Pte. Ltd.

Member of:-

o ACRA's Complaints and
Disciplinary Panel

o Advisory Committee for
China Ready Programme
under Ministry of Law

Deputy Chairman of:-

o MediShield Life Council
Consultant of:-

o Harry Elias Partnership LLP

e Linklogis Inc.

o SF REIT Asset Management
Limited (The Manager of
SF Real Estate Investment
Trust)

e Sheng Siong Group Ltd.

e Green Link Digital Bank
Pte. Ltd.
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Name of Director

Wang Ruihong

Hee Theng Fong

Tan Huay Lim

Songyuan Xinxiang New
Energy Co., Ltd.
(R IR EERERT REIRAT IR A 7))

Suihua Green New Energy
Co., Ltd.
(BTG TR A )

Qitaihe Green New Energy
Co,, Ltd.
(LAFERAER REIRA IR A7)

Lianyungang Sunrise
Environmental Protection
Industry Co., Ltd.
(ETHRIIMR AR

)

Zhengzhou Xingjin Green
Environmental Energy
Co,, Ltd.

(M LR I RAEIR A
RAH)

Yinchuan Zhongke
Environmental Electrical
Co., Ltd.
(RNHRIMRE AR A )

Zhejiang Zhuiji Bafang
Thermal Power Co., Ltd
(WL 8 )\ i TR 57
HaT)

Wuhu Luzhou
Environmental Protection
Energy Co., Ltd.
GEMSEMIARAER A R A 7))

Tianjin Sunrise
Environmental Protection
Science and Technology
Development Co., Ltd.
(RHETRM A B R
JEA R A R)

Shanghai Sunrise
Management Co., Ltd.
(BRI EEA R A R)

Shijiazhuang Jiasheng New
Energy Co., Ltd
(X R REIRE IR A7)

Tangshan Jinhuan New
Energy Co., Ltd
(RE LT SRR RE IR PR 2 1)

Annual Report 2021

&7



Corporate
Governance Report

Name of Director

Wang Ruihong

Hee Theng Fong

Tan Huay Lim

Ecogreen Energy Private
Limited

Ecogreen Energy Gurgaon
Faridabad Private Limited

Ecogreen Energy Lucknow
Private Limited

Ecogreen Energy Gwalior
Private Limited

PT Jinjiang Environment
Indonesia

PT. Indo Green Power

Singapore Jinjiang
Environment Pte. Ltd.

Information required
Disclose the following matters concerning an appointment of director, chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer,
general manager or other officer of equivalent rank. If the answer to any question is “yes”, full details must be given.

(@

Whether at any time during the
last 10 years, an application or
a petition under any bankruptcy
law of any jurisdiction was
filed against him or against a
partnership of which he was a
partner at the time when he was
a partner or at any time within 2
years from the date he ceased to
be a partner?

No

No

No

Whether at any time during the
last 10 years, an application or
a petition under any law of any
jurisdiction was filed against an
entity (not being a partnership)
of which he was a director or
an equivalent person or a key
executive, at the time when he
was a director or an equivalent
person or a key executive of
that entity or at any time within
2 years from the date he ceased
to be a director or an equivalent
person or a key executive of
that entity, for the winding up
or dissolution of that entity
or, where that entity is the
trustee of a business trust, that
business trust, on the ground of
insolvency?

No

No

Mr. Tan was (i) an independent
non-executive director from 1
July 2020 to 28 August 2020 of
Xihe Holdings (Pte) Ltd. which
was placed under interim
judicial management on 13
August 2020, under judicial
management on 13 November
2020 and under winding up
by court order since 24 March
2022, and (i) an independent
non-executive director from
1 July 2020 to 28 August 2020
of Xihe Capital (Pte) Ltd. which
has been placed in liquidation
pursuant to a members'
voluntary winding up since 22
October 2020.

Whether there is any unsatisfied
judgment against him?

No

No

No
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Name of Director

Wang Ruihong

Hee Theng Fong

Tan Huay Lim

(d) Whether he has ever been
convicted of any offence, in
Singapore or elsewhere, involving
fraud or dishonesty which is
punishable with imprisonment,
or has been the subject of any
criminal proceedings (including
any pending criminal proceedings
of which he is aware) for such
purpose?

No

No

No

(&) Whether he has ever been
convicted of any offence, in
Singapore or elsewhere, involving
a breach of any law or regulatory
requirement that relates to the
securities or futures industry in
Singapore or elsewhere, or has
been the subject of any criminal
proceedings (including any
pending criminal proceedings
of which he is aware) for such
breach?

No

No

No

() Whether at any time during
the last 10 years, judgment
has been entered against
him in any civil proceedings
in Singapore or elsewhere
involving a breach of any law
or regulatory requirement
that relates to the securities or
futures industry in Singapore or
elsewhere, or a finding of fraud,
misrepresentation or dishonesty
on his part, or he has been the
subject of any civil proceedings
(including any pending civil
proceedings of which he is
aware) involving an allegation
of fraud, misrepresentation or
dishonesty on his part?

No

No

No

(g8 Whether he has ever been
convicted in Singapore or
elsewhere of any offence in
connection with the formation
or management of any entity or
business trust?

No

No

No

(h) Whether he has ever been
disqualified from acting as
a director or an equivalent
person of any entity (including
the trustee of a business trust),
or from taking part directly or
indirectly in the management of
any entity or business trust?

No

No

No
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Name of Director Wang Ruihong Hee Theng Fong Tan Huay Lim
()  Whether he has ever been the | No No No
subject of any order, judgment
or ruling of any court, tribunal or
governmental body, permanently
or temporarily enjoining him
from engaging in any type of
business practice or activity?
()  Whether he has ever, to his
knowledge, been concerned with
the management or conduct, in
Singapore or elsewhere, of the
affairs of :-
(i) any corporation which | No No No
has been investigated for
a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing corporations in
Singapore or elsewhere; or
(i) any entity (not being a| No No Mr. Tan was a council member
corporation) which has been of the management committee
investigated for a breach from 30 October 2007 to 31
of any law or regulatory March 2013 of Ren Ci Hospital
requirement governing such & Medicare Centre (“RCHMC"),
entities in Singapore or a non-profit voluntary welfare
elsewhere; or organisation established in
Singapore.
On 29 March 2009, Mr. Tan was
interviewed by the Commercial
Affairs Department (“CAD") in his
capacity as a council member
of the management committee
of RCHMC in connection with
CAD's investigations in the
affairs of RCHMC. For the
avoidance of doubt, Mr. Tan was
not the subject of the foregoing
investigations and following
the interview, Mr. Tan has not
been required by the CAD to
provide any further assistance
in the matter for which he was
interviewed. RCHMC, which was
registered as a society under the
Societies Act 1966 of Singapore,
was voluntarily dissolved on 31
March 2013.
(i) any business trust which | No No No
has been investigated for
a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing business trusts in
Singapore or elsewhere; or
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Name of Director Wang Ruihong Hee Theng Fong Tan Huay Lim
(iv) any entity or business trust | No No No

which has been investigated
for a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
that relates to the securities
or futures industry in
Singapore or elsewhere, in
connection with any matter
occurring or arising during
that period when he was so
concerned with the entity or
business trust?

(k) Whether he has been the | No No No
subject of any current or past
investigation or disciplinary
proceedings, or has been
reprimanded or issued any
warning, by the Monetary
Authority of Singapore or any
other regulatory authority,
exchange, professional body or
government agency, whether in
Singapore or elsewhere?

* The term “principal commitments” shall include all commitments which involve significant time commitment such as full-time
occupation, consultancy work, committee work, non-listed company board representations and directorships and involvement
in non-profit organisations. Where a director sits on the boards of non-active related corporations, those appointments
should not normally be considered principal commitments.

Additional information on the Directors of the Company can be found under the “Board of Directors”.
Principle 5:  Board Performance
Board Evaluation Process

The Board has a process in place for undertaking a formal annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as
a whole, each of its Board Committees and for assessing the contribution by each Director to the effectiveness of
the Board. No external facilitator was used. The NC assesses performance using objective performance criteria and
processes, which were recommended by the NC and approved by the Board, for the evaluation of the effectiveness
of the Board as a whole, and of each Board Committee separately, as well as the contribution by the Executive
Chairman and each Director to the Board. The overall evaluation and recommendations for improvement are
presented to the Board.

Board Evaluation and Board Committees Evaluation Criteria

The NC evaluates the overall Board performance based on various factors including the Board composition, its
roles and responsibilities, financial performance, the access to information and its conduct of meetings. Financial
performance includes the quarterly and full year performance against the prior corresponding period and against the
budget.

For the financial year under review, Directors were requested to complete a board evaluation checklist to assess
the overall effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees. In addition, the Chairmen of the respective Board
Committees are also required to complete a questionnaire on the effectiveness of the Board Committees, which
would be tabled at the NC meeting for further discussion. The results of these checklists were considered by the NC
in its assessment of the Board's and the Board Committees’ performance.
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Individual Director Evaluation Criteria

In the assessment of a Director's performance, the NC evaluates the Director's expertise and competencies,
attendance records and the level of constructive participation at Board meetings and the contribution to the Board
processes and the Group's strategy and performance. When deliberating the performance of a Director who is also
an NC member, that member abstains from the discussions to avoid any potential conflict of interest.

The evaluation results of each Director are used by the NC in consultation with the Executive Chairman, in the review
of the Board and Board Committees composition as well as recommendations for the re-appointment and re-election
of retiring Directors. Any comments from Directors relating to the Board and its performance are also presented to
the Board.

Remuneration Matters

Principle 6: Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

RC Composition and Role

The RC comprises three directors namely:

1.

2.

3.

Hee Theng Fong (RC Chairman and Independent Director)

Ang Swee Tian (Lead Independent Director)

Ni Mingjiang (Independent Director)

The RC comprises three non-executive Directors, all of whom including the chairman of the RC are independent.

The RC's key terms of reference, approved by the Board, includes the following:

reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on all aspects of remuneration, including Directors’ fees
and the Company's remuneration policies;

reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the framework of remuneration for the Board
chairman, the Directors, the Group CEO and other key management personnel;

reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration packages for each
Director, the Group CEO and other key management personnel;

reviewing the remuneration of any employees who are immediate family members of the Directors, Group
CEO or substantial shareholders;

reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the talent management and remuneration
framework for the Group, including staff development and succession planning;

monitoring the level and structure of remuneration relative to internal and external peers and competitors;

ensuring that the contractual terms and any termination payments are fair to the individual and the Company;
and

administering the Jinjiang Environment PSP in accordance with the respective rules adopted (if applicable).

The Company has in place a remuneration framework for the executive Directors and Key Management Personnel.
The RC has reviewed the contracts for executive Directors and Key Management Personnel. Overall, the RC considers
all aspects of remuneration, including termination terms, to ensure that they are fair. In doing so, the RC has not
engaged any remuneration consultants. No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The RC oversees and administers the Jinjiang Environment PSP. It has the power to make or vary arrangements or
guidelines for the implementation and administration of the Jinjiang Environment PSP. There were no share awards
granted under the Jinjiang Environment PSP during FY2021. No shares were issued and allotted pursuant to the
Jinjiang Environment PSP during FY2021.

Based on the RC and the Board evaluation checklists completed by the RC and the Directors respectively, the RC
believes that it has fulfilled its responsibilities and discharged its duties as set out in its terms of reference. The
Joint Company Secretaries maintain records of all RC meetings and these checklists. For more information on these
checklists, please refer to Principle 5 of this Corporate Governance Report.

Principle 7:  Level and Mix of Remuneration
Remuneration of Directors and Management

The RC periodically considers and reviews the remuneration packages in order to maintain their attractiveness,
to attract, retain and motivate the Directors to provide good stewardship of the Company and Key Management
Personnel to successfully manage the Company for the long term, and to ensure that the level and structure of
remuneration of the Board and Key Management Personnel are appropriate and proportionate to the sustained
performance and value creation of the Company, taking into account the strategic objectives, and the long-term
interests and risk policies of the Company.

The Company adopts a performance-based remuneration system for employees, including its executive Directors and
Key Management Personnel. A significant and appropriate proportion of executive Directors’ and Key Management
Personnel’'s remuneration is structured so as to link rewards with the achievement of corporate and individual
performance targets in an objective and equitable way and reflects the degree of responsibility held by each
employee. The Group seeks to ensure that the variable component is aligned with the interests of shareholders and
other stakeholders and promotes the long-term success of the Company. To ensure that the level and structure of
remuneration is proportionate to the sustained performance and value creation of the Group, the Company has put
in place a framework of remuneration for its executive directors and key management personnel. The key areas of
focus of the remuneration framework and details of the implementation within the Group are set out below:

Key Areas of Focus Details
Pay for performance ° Instil and drive a pay-for-performance culture
° Ensure that remuneration is closely linked to

annual and long-term business objectives

. Set, communicate and monitor key performance
targets and indicators

o Adjust the proportion of fixed and variable
remuneration to emphasise sustainable
performance that is aligned with the Group’s
strategic objectives, considering qualitative and
quantitative factors

Competitive remuneration o Benchmark total remuneration against other
organisations of similar size and standing in the
Group's industry

Accountability and Risk-taking o Focus on achieving risk-adjusted returns that are
consistent with prudent risk taking and capital
management as well as emphasis on long-term
sustainable outcomes

. Design remuneration structure to align incentive
payments with the long-term performance of the
Group through deferred vesting of incentives
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The remuneration package is made up of both fixed and variable components. The fixed component is essentially
base salary and fixed allowances. The variable component is determined based on the performance of the individual
employee as well as the Group's performance. It is made up of year-end bonus and other benefits. The variable
component, annual increments and adjustments to remuneration are reviewed and approved taking into account
the results of the annual review made by the executive Directors and the various heads of department. The Group
seeks to ensure that the variable component is aligned with the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and
promotes the long-term success of the Company.

All the executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the Company. The service agreements are for
a term of three years and thereafter continue from year to year, unless terminated. The service agreements set out
the salary, bonus and other benefits that the executive Directors are entitled to. The independent non-executive
Directors receive Directors' fees, which are appropriate to their level of contribution and determined after taking into
account factors such as time and effort spent, frequencies of meetings, roles and responsibilities of the Directors,
and the need to pay competitive fees to attract and retain the Directors. Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’
approval at the AGM. The Company does not discourage the Directors from holding shares in the Company. There is
no requirement under the Company's articles of association for Directors to hold shares in order to qualify to act as a
Director of the Company.

The Jinjiang Environment PSP is a longer-term incentive plan in the form of share awards granted by the Company.
The plan increases the Group's effectiveness and flexibility in its efforts to recruit, reward and motivate employees
to exceed the key financial and operational goals of the Group and to strive for long-term shareholder value. Shares
allotted and issued to employees pursuant to the vesting of share awards granted under the Jinjiang Environment
PSP are subject to a moratorium on trading for a period of one year. The Group encourages but does not require the
employees to hold on to the shares upon expiry of the moratorium period.

Principle 8:  Disclosure on Remuneration

Disclosure on Remuneration

The remuneration package for Directors and Key Management Personnel is made up of a fixed component (base
salary and fixed allowances) and a variable component (year-end bonus and other benefits), and may also include
longer-term incentives. There were no termination, retirement and post-employment benefits granted to Directors
and Key Management Personnel in FY2021.

The policy and criteria for setting remuneration and the link between remuneration paid to Directors and Key
Management Personnel and performance is set out under Principle 7 above. Information on the Jinjiang Environment
PSP can be found under “Share Options and Performance Shares” in the Directors’ Statement.

Remuneration for Directors, CEO and Key Management Personnel

The remuneration for the Directors and the CEO of the Company for FY2021 is set out below:

Awards of
Shares under
the Jinjiang
Base / Fixed Variable Directors’ Environment
Name Salary Bonus Fees® PSP Total
% % % % %
Wei Dongliang 61 39 - - 100
Wang Ruihong 61 39 - - 100
Ang Swee Tian - - 100 - 100
Hee Theng Fong - - 100 - 100
Tan Huay Lim - - 100 - 100
Ni Mingjiang - - 100 - 100

94 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited



Corporate
Governance Report

The Board believes that it is not in the best interest of the Company to fully disclose the precise remuneration for
each individual Director and the CEO given the highly competitive industry conditions for the waste-to-energy sector
particularly in the People’s Republic of China. The Board further believes that it is not in the interest of the Company
to disclose details of remuneration for the top five Key Management Personnel of the Group (who are not Directors
or the CEO) (including names, breakdown of remuneration, remuneration amounts whether individually or in the
aggregate), having regard to the highly competitive human resource environment. The names of these top five Key
Management Personnel have not been disclosed to maintain confidentiality of staff remuneration matters. The
Board is of the view that there is sufficient transparency on the Company's remuneration policies, level and mix of
remuneration, procedure for setting remuneration, and the relationships between remuneration, performance and
value creation, details of which are further set out under Principle 7 above, which provides reasonable amount of
information on the Company’s remuneration framework to enable shareholders to have an adequate appreciation
of the remuneration of its Directors and Key Management Personnel and to understand the link between the
Company's performance and the remuneration of the CEO and other top five Key Management Personnel. The fees
to the independent, non-executive directors are put forward to shareholders for approval on an annual basis at
the Company's annual general meeting. Accordingly, the Board believes that the existing practices adopted by the
Company are consistent with the intent of Principle 8 of the CG Code.

Employees who are Substantial Shareholders / Immediate Family Member of Directors/CEO/Substantial
Shareholders

The Group does not have any employee who is a substantial shareholder of the Company or an immediate family
member of a Director, the CEO or a substantial shareholder of the Company, and whose remuneration exceeded
S$$100,000 during FY2021.

Accountability and Audit
Principle 9: Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Directors recognise that they have overall responsibility for the governance of risk and ensuring that
management maintains a sound system of risk management and internal controls including financial, operational,
compliance and information technology controls, to safeguard the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The management has put in place an Enterprise Risk Management Framework. The Framework seeks to formalise
and document the internal processes to enable significant strategic, financial, operational, compliance and
information technology risks within the Group to be identified, assessed, managed and monitored. The Board
determines the nature and extent of the significant risks which the Company is willing to take in achieving its
strategic objectives and value creation, and oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems. Management reviews the Group's business operations to identify
key risk areas and risk mitigating strategies to ensure that risks are adequately managed within the Group's risk
tolerance limits.

Management has designed and put in place the Group's internal controls structure to provide reasonable assurance
against material financial misstatements or loss, for safeguarding Company's assets, for maintenance and provision
of reliable and relevant accounting, financial and other information, and in compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. However, the Board notes that no internal controls system can provide absolute assurance in view
of inherent limitations of any internal controls system against the occurrence of human and system errors, poor
judgment in decision making, losses, fraud or other irregularities.

3 Directors' fees for FY2021 are subject to approval by shareholders as a lump sum at the AGM.
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For the financial year under review, the Executive Chairman and the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO") provided
assurance to the Board on the integrity of the half year, third quarter and the full year unaudited financial
statements. The Board in turn provided a negative assurance confirmation in respect of the unaudited financial
statements for the half year and third quarter of FY2021 to the shareholders in accordance with the regulatory
requirements. The Executive Chairman and other Key Management Personnel also provided the Board with such
information and explanations as the Board may require from time to time.

The Executive Chairman and the CFO provided written assurances to the Board that the Group’s financial records
have been properly maintained and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Company's operations
and finances. The Executive Chairman and other Key Management Personnel who are responsible also provided
written assurances to the Board that the internal controls and risk management systems in place are adequate and
effective to address in all material aspects, the financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks
within the current scope of the Group's business.

The ARMC reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's key internal controls and risk management
systems with the assistance of management and external and internal auditors. The internal audit identified some
control weaknesses at some of the Group’s subsidiaries in China and provided recommendations for improvements.
Management has adopted the recommendations to address these weaknesses and the internal audit will follow up to
ensure that the recommendations were properly implemented. The external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(“PwC"), during the course of the audit of the Group’s financial statements, identified several possible improvements
to the relevant procedures, controls and other aspects, which were presented to the ARMC for consideration.
Management action plans are initiated to address the weaknesses identified. Management has assessed and
determined that these weaknesses do not have significant financial impact on the financial statements for the Group
for FY2021. For the avoidance of doubt, PwC's recommendations do not in any way modify their audit opinion. The
Company's management has noted PwC's observations and recommendations and is taking the necessary steps to
implement PwC's recommendations.

Based on the above audits and the written assurance from management, the Board and the ARMC is of the opinion
that the system of internal controls and risk management to address the financial, operational, compliance and
information technology risks of the Company, are adequate and effective as at 31 December 2021.

Management will continue to periodically review and strengthen the Group’s control environment and further refine
its internal policies and procedures. Management continues to devote resources and expertise to maintain a high
level of governance and internal controls for the Group.

Principle 10: Audit Committee

Composition of ARMC

The ARMC comprises three directors namely:

1. Tan Huay Lim (ARMC Chairman and Independent Director)

2. Ang Swee Tian (Lead Independent Director)

3. Hee Theng Fong (Independent Director)

The ARMC comprises three non-executive Directors, all of whom including the chairman of the ARMC are
independent. At least two members of the ARMC, including the ARMC chairman, possess recent and relevant
accounting or related financial management expertise and experience. With the current composition, the ARMC
believes that it has the relevant accounting or related financial management expertise and experience to discharge
its functions within its written terms of reference which has been approved by the Board. None of the ARMC

members is a former partner or director of the Group's existing auditing firms within the last 24 months and none of
the ARMC members has any financial interest in the Group’s existing auditing firms.
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Powers and Duties of the ARMC

The ARMC is authorised by the Board to review and investigate any matters it deems appropriate within its terms
of reference. The ARMC had full access to and co-operation of the management and external auditors. To facilitate
discussions, the ARMC can invite any Director or management of the Group and external and internal auditors to
attend its meetings. In addition, the ARMC can engage any firm of accountants, lawyers or other professionals as it
deems fit to provide independent advice, at the Company's expense.

The key responsibility of the ARMC is to assist the Board in maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
The ARMC provides an independent review of the Group's financial reporting processes, including the review
of accounting policies and practices, and the key internal controls, covering financial, operational, compliance,
information technology and risk management controls. The ARMC's key terms of reference are as follows:

. reviewing the significant financial reporting issues and judgements so as to ensure the integrity of the financial
statements of the Company and any announcements relating to the Group's financial performance;

. reviewing at least annually the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and risk
management systems. The ARMC also reviews the Board's comments regarding the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and risk management systems and states whether it concurs
with the Board’s comments received. The ARMC may commission an independent audit on the internal
controls and risk management systems for its assurance, or where it is not satisfied with the internal controls
and risk management systems;

. reviewing the assurance from the Group CEO and the CFO on the financial records and financial statements;

. reviewing the adequacy, effectiveness, independence, scope and results of the Company’'s external audit
function and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or removal of the
Company's external auditors as well as the remuneration and terms of engagement of the Company’s external
auditors;

. reviewing the adequacy, effectiveness, independence, scope and results of the Company’s internal audit
function, being the primary reporting line of the internal audit function and deciding on the appointment,
termination and remuneration of the internal audit function;

. ensuring that the Group complies with the applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the Company
has programmes and policies in place to identify and prevent fraud or irregularity, and discussing with the
Company's external auditors, and at an appropriate time report to the Board, if the ARMC becomes aware of
any suspected fraud or irregularity or suspected infringement of any law, rule or regulation which has or is
likely to have a material impact on the Group's operating results and/or financial position, and commission
and review the findings of internal investigations into such matters;

. reviewing and ensuring that policies and arrangements are in place for concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting or other matters to be safely raised, independently investigated and appropriately
followed up on, and to ensure that the Company publicly discloses, and clearly communicates to employees
of the Company, the existence and operation of a whistle-blowing policy and procedures for raising their
concerns;

. reviewing all IPTs and related party transactions to ensure that they are on normal commercial terms, and that
they do not prejudice the interests of the Company or its minority shareholders;

. monitoring and approving the exercise of any of the rights under the Non-Competition Agreement by the
Group;

. monitoring entrusted loan arrangements entered into by the Group (whether as borrower or lender);

o monitoring and approving any lending by the Group to third parties which are not subsidiaries or associated

companies of the Company;

. reviewing and monitoring the measures the Group has put in place in respect of the legal representatives of all
its PRC-incorporated subsidiaries;
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. reviewing the adequacy of and approving procedures put in place related to the Group's policy for entering
into any future hedging transactions; and

. undertaking generally such other functions and duties as may be required by law or the Listing Manual, and by
amendments made thereto from time to time.

The ARMC is scheduled to meet at least four times a year. During the year under review, the ARMC reviewed the
quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements and announcements, the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the report of the internal auditor on the Company's internal controls, and the re-appointment of
the external auditors. It held informal meetings and discussions with management from time to time. The ARMC
meets with the external and internal auditors without the presence of management at least once a year and holds
discussions as and when necessary.

Based on the ARMC and the Board evaluation checklists completed by the ARMC and the Directors respectively, the
ARMC believes that it has fulfilled its responsibilities and discharged its duties as set out in its terms of reference.
The Joint Company Secretaries maintain records of all ARMC meetings and these checklists. For more information on
these checklists, please refer to Principle 5 of this Corporate Governance Report.

External Auditors

The ARMC undertook a review of the independence of PwC and gave careful consideration to the Group’'s
relationship with PwC for FY2021. In determining the independence, the ARMC reviewed the Group’s relationship
with PwC and considered the nature and fees of non-audit services supplied by PwC. The ARMC is of the opinion that
the nature and amount of such non-audit services did not impair PwC's position as an independent external auditor.
Based on the review, the ARMC is of the opinion that PwC is, and is perceived to be, independent for the purpose of
the Group's statutory financial audit.

During the year under review, the Company has paid an aggregate of approximately RMB4,121,000 to the external
auditor for its audit services. There were no non-audit fees paid to the external auditor.

In reviewing the nomination of PwC for re-appointment in respect of the financial year ending 31 December 2022,
the ARMC has considered the adequacy of the resources, experience and competence of PwC. The consideration
includes the experience of the audit partner and key team members in handling the audit of the Group in different
jurisdictions. The audit fees, the size and complexity of the audit of the Group as well as the number and experience
of the supervisory and professional staff assigned to the Group were taken into account. The ARMC had also
considered the audit team'’s ability to work in a co-operative manner with management while maintaining integrity
and objectivity.

PwC has confirmed that they are registered with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority. The Company
is therefore in compliance with Rule 712 and Rule 715 (read together with Rule 716) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual in
relation to the appointment of the Group's auditors.

On the basis of the above, the Board has accepted the ARMC's recommendation to nominate PwC for re-appointment
as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.

ARMC's Commentary on Significant Financial Reporting Matters

The ARMC considered the following financial reporting matters as significant based on their potential impact on the
Group's results, or based on the level of complexity, judgement, or estimation involved in their application.
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Going Concern Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The application of the going concern basis for the preparation of the financial statements requires the Directors to
consider whether the Group can meet its payment obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
The ARMC conducted an assessment as part of its supporting role given the inherent judgements required to be
made in relation to the review of the cashflow forecast and compliance with debt financial covenants.

As of 31 December 2021, the current liabilities of the Group and of the Company exceeded the current assets by
approximately RMB2,130,907,000 and RMB2,013,619,000 respectively. This is mainly due to the increase in short-
term borrowings by RMB672 million drawn from the credit facilities secured in May 2021 to repay the US$200 million
syndicated term loan facility arranged by Standard Chartered Bank which was due in June 2021 (the outstanding
amount as at 31 December 2020 was RMB913.5 million) and the reclassification of long-term loan of approximately
RMB1,395,508,030 from the Group to short-term borrowings as at 31 December 2021, owing to non-compliance of a
Financial Covenant as explained in Note 30 to the financial statements.

The financial statements have nevertheless been prepared on a going concern basis as the directors and
management have assessed that it is appropriate to do so after considering the following:

(A)  thelenders of the borrowings have not called on the repayment of the borrowings mentioned above;
(B)  the Group's ability to finalise and obtain additional financing subsequent to year-end including;
(i) additional credit facilities from financial institutions; and

(i) the Group refinanced short-term borrowings amounting to RMB247,363,000 by renewing the maturity
date to another 12 months.

(C)  the Group's ability to generate positive cash flows from its operations;

(D) as at the date of Company’s announcement of the results for the full year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group has RMB1,600 million of undrawn credit facilities, comprising RMB550 million for working capital,
RMB802 million for projects and the remaining are for finance leases;

(E) the Group had on 20 October 2021 announced that it had submitted an application to the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (“SZSE") for the proposed issuance of up to RMB1 billion in aggregate principal amount of Asset-
Backed Securities for the repayment of short-term borrowings. The application has been accepted by, and is
currently under the review of, the SZSE; and

(F) the financial support, credit support and loans which Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd. (“Zheneng
Group”) has provided in its capacity as the Group's largest controlling shareholder, as follows:

(i) as of 31 December 2021, the Group has obtained loans of RMB840 million, comprising a working capital
loan of RMB540 million (drawn down from the credit line of RMB900 million obtained from Zhejiang
Provincial Energy Group Finance Co., Ltd., as announced by the Company on 24 May 2021), RMB100
million in project financing and factoring financing of RMB200 million from Zheneng Group. Out of the
total loans of RMB840 million obtained, RMB751 million has been included in current liabilities as at 31
December 2021;

(i) the credit assessment and credit approval process of the Group's bankers generally involves the
relevant banks assessing the Group’s credit based on their credit assessment of Zheneng Group, and
the relevant banks would typically earmark credit lines to be extended to the Group out of the overall
credit lines and limits extended to Zheneng Group; and

(i)  Management will continue to actively seek an even greater degree of support from Zheneng Group,
which is a state-owned provincial energy enterprise with great financial strength and good credit
standing that can enhance the stability of the Group’s capital structure. This will help to improve
broadening the Group's financing channels and reduce financing costs in relation to the Group's future
fund-raising plans, so as to strengthen the working capital position and the relevant financial ratios of
the Group.
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The ARMC held discussions with the management and reviewed the reasonableness of the above key assumptions
and significant judgement made by the management in forecasting the future cash flows. The ARMC received
assurance from management that the aforesaid key assumptions are achievable within the stipulated timeframes
and that the projections were prepared on a reasonable and realistic basis.

The ARMC also held discussions with the external auditors on their audit procedures to test the cashflow forecast.
The ARMC also noted the assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to continue as a going concern by
the external auditors and the relevant disclosures made in Note 2.2 to the financial statements.

In view of the foregoing, the ARMC is of the view that the Group is a going concern and the financial statements of
the Company and the Group have been drawn up on this basis.

Recognition of revenue from construction services provided under service concession arrangements

The recognition of revenue from Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT") service concession agreements with the local
government for the construction of waste-to-energy (“WTE") plants which are within the scope of International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 12 Service Concession Arrangements requires a significant degree
of management judgement and estimates of the total budgeted contract costs, the stage of completion of contract
activity and the expected gross profit margin in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customer. In addition, the determination of the fair values of the consideration
receivables and allocation of the consideration between service concession receivables and intangible assets involve
the forecasting and discounting of future cash flows.

Based on the discussion with the management and the external auditors in conjunction with the annual audit, the
ARMC is satisfied that the revenue has been appropriately recognized in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies and the gross profit margin is within a reasonable range of market rates applicable to construction services
rendered by comparable companies.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The ARMC considered the appropriateness of the methodology and processes applied by the management to review
for indicators of impairment of property, plant and equipment (“Assets”). In addition, the ARMC held discussion with
the management and reviewed the reasonableness of the key assumptions and the significant judgement made by
the management in determining the recoverable amount of the Assets or the amount of impairment losses required
to be recorded.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of the Group’s Assets amounted to RMB10,038 million, accounting for
49% of the Group's total assets. These assets are predominantly made up of buildings which the Group’s WTE plants
operate in and the plant and machinery used in the day-to-day business. The Group has carried out impairment
assessment on Assets' carrying amounts to identify whether there are indicators for impairment. Where there are
indicators of impairment, management assess the recoverable amount based on the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell.

As disclosed in the Company's announcement on the results for the full year ended 31 December 2021, the Group is
continuing to follow up on the progress of the compensation work for the closure of the Old Kunming Wuhua WTE
Facility in Kunming, Yunnan Province, for which the negotiations are still ongoing. The local government has engaged
a third-party asset appraisal company to conduct an overall appraisal of the assets of the Old Kunming Wuhua WTE
Facility. The Group has separately engaged another third-party asset appraisal company to provide a valuation report
on the assets. Based on the valuation report, the Group does not expect any impairment arising from the closure of
the Old Kunming Wuhua WTE Facility.

In 2021, for certain WTE plants with impairment indicators, management performed assessment on impairment
of the assets at cash generating unit level. Based on the impairment assessment carried out by management, no
impairment loss was recorded.

In view of the foregoing, no additional impairment charge has been recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Interested Person Transactions

On 20 July 2016, the Company obtained shareholders’ approval for the Company, its subsidiaries and its associated
companies not listed on the SGX-ST or an approved exchange, over which the Company, its subsidiaries and/or
interested persons have control, to enter into transactions within the categories of Interested Person Transactions
set out in the Company's prospectus dated 25 July 2016, with such persons within the class or classes of Interested
Persons as described in the said prospectus, provided that such transactions are entered into in accordance with
the review procedures set out in the said prospectus (the “IPT Mandate”). At the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company (“EGM") held on 25 April 2017, shareholders had approved the renewal of the IPT Mandate. At
the EGM held on 30 April 2018, shareholders had approved certain modifications to, and the renewal of, the IPT
Mandate. At the EGMs held on 31 December 2018 and on 25 November 2019, shareholders had approved certain
further modifications to the IPT Mandate. As such Interested Persons Transactions may occur at any time, and to
allow the Group to undertake such transactions in an expeditious manner, shareholders’ approval will be sought at
the forthcoming AGM for the renewal of the IPT Mandate.

The ARMC has confirmed that an independent financial advisor's opinion is not required for the renewal of the
IPT Mandate as the methods and procedures for determining the transaction prices of the Interested Person
Transactions conducted under the IPT Mandate have not changed since the IPT Mandate was last approved by
shareholders, and such methods and procedures continue to be sufficient to ensure that these Interested Person
Transactions will be carried out on normal commercial terms and will not be prejudicial to the interests of the
Company and its minority shareholders.

The following table summarises the Interested Person Transactions to be disclosed under Rule 907 of the SGX-ST
Listing Manual:

Aggregate value of
all interested person
transactions during

the financial period Aggregate value of
under review (excluding all interested person
transactions less than transactions conducted
$$100,000 and transactions under shareholders’
conducted under mandate pursuant to Rule
Name of interested shareholders’ mandate 920 (excluding transactions
person Nature of Relationship pursuant to Rule 920) less than S$100,000)
RMB'000 RMB’'000
Project technical and
management services
provided to:
Cayman Shanxian Energy Associate of Mr. Dou - 1,779
Comprehensive Utilisation ~ Zhenggang, a controlling
Co., Ltd. shareholder of the
Company (“Mr. Dou")
Energy management
contracting services
provided to:
Xiaoyi Xing'an Chemical Associate of Mr. Dou - 61,901
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Cayman Shanxian Energy Associate of Mr. Dou - 7,506
Comprehensive Utilisation
Co., Ltd.
Guangxi Tiandong Jinsheng  Associate of Mr. Dou - 9,951
Chemical Engineering Co.,
Ltd
Jilin Shuangjia Associate of Mr. Dou - 3,615

Environmental Protection
Energy Utilization Co., Ltd.
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Aggregate value of
all interested person
transactions during
the financial period Aggregate value of
under review (excluding all interested person
transactions less than transactions conducted
$$100,000 and transactions under shareholders’
conducted under mandate pursuant to Rule
Name of interested shareholders’ mandate 920 (excluding transactions
person Nature of Relationship pursuant to Rule 920) less than S$100,000)
RMB'000 RMB’'000
Purchases of materials
from:
Hangzhou Jinjiang Group Associate of Mr. Dou - 4,798
Environment Technology
Co., Ltd.
Beijing TDR Environ-Tech Associate of Mr. Dou - 644
Co., Ltd.*
Xiaoyi Xing'an Chemical Associate of Mr. Dou - 968
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Zhejiang Petroleum Associate of Zheneng - 1,842
Integrated Energy Sales Group
Co. Ltd
Zhejiang Zheneng Oil New  Associate of Zheneng - 1,262
Energy Co., Ltd. Group
Technical services
obtained from:
Zhejiang Zheneng Xingyuan Associate of Zheneng 1,580 -
Energy Saving Technology  Group
Co., Ltd
Purchases of coal from:
Zhejiang Zheneng Fuxing Associate of Zheneng - 38,334
Fuel Co., Ltd. Group
Hangzhou Huawang Shiye  Associate of Mr. Dou - 3,504
Group Co., Ltd.
Operations and
maintenance services
from:
Zhejiang Jinrui Associate of Mr. Dou 5,420 -

Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd* (f.k.a. Suzhou
Jinrui Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd)

Beijing Yunchuang Tiandi Associate of Mr. Dou 2,246 -
Environmental Protection

Technology Service Co.,

Ltd.*

Engineering,
procurement and
construction services
from:

Zhejiang Tiandi Associate of Zheneng - 11,683
Environmental Protection Group
Technology Co., Ltd.

Beijing TDR Environ-Tech Associate of Mr. Dou - 21,600
Co., Ltd.*

702 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited



Corporate

Governance Report
Aggregate value of
all interested person
transactions during
the financial period Aggregate value of
under review (excluding all interested person
transactions less than transactions conducted
$$100,000 and transactions under shareholders’
conducted under mandate pursuant to Rule
Name of interested shareholders’ mandate 920 (excluding transactions
person Nature of Relationship pursuant to Rule 920) less than S$100,000)
RMB'000 RMB'000
Interest expenses to:
Zhejiang Provincial Energy  Associate of Zheneng 24,570 -
Group Finance Co., Ltd. Group
Operations and
maintenance services to:
Hangzhou Jinjiang Group Associate of Mr. Dou - 1,653
Environment Technology
Co., Ltd.
Lianyuangang Jinchi Associate of Mr. Dou - 1,531
Bio-technology Co., Ltd*
WTE project consulting
services from:
Hangzhou Jinjiang Group Associate of Mr. Dou 50,000 -
Co., Ltd.
Total 83,816 172,571
* Due to subsequent changes in shareholding, as at 31 December 2021, these entities have ceased to be associates of Mr. Dou.

Note: For purchases of coal, the framework agreement signed between the parties only indicates the unit price of coal and the value
of each transaction is determined only when orders are placed. For energy management contracting services, the aggregate value
of each project can be determined only after the service has been provided and the Group's share of the energy savings for that
particular project has been computed. Accordingly, for these categories of transactions, disclosure of the aggregate value is based
on the actual amount incurred for the period.

Material Contracts

Apart from those transactions disclosed as Interested Person Transactions above, there were no material contracts
entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries involving the interest of the CEO, any Director or controlling
shareholder during the financial year under review.

Whistle-Blowing Policy

The Company has in place a whistle-blowing policy which sets out the procedures for staff of the Group or any other
persons to, in confidence, make a report to the Company on misconduct or wrongdoing relating to the Company
and its officers. A whistle-blower may submit a report to the Company’s designated internal audit personnel either
directly or through the Company’'s Official WeChat Account on an anonymous basis. The contact details of the
designated internal audit personnel, the whistle-blowing policy and its procedures are clearly communicated and
are made available to employees in order to facilitate and encourage reporting, investigation and resolution of such
matters.
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The designated internal audit personnel will then promptly and independently investigate whistle-blowing reports
made in good faith and report the findings of the investigation to the ARMC, which will then recommend appropriate
follow up actions to be taken. If required, the ARMC may engage professional advisors at the Group's expense to
assist in any investigation. The investigation team keeps the identity of the whistle-blower and contents of the report
strictly confidential and will not disclose the identity of the whistle-blower except as required by law or regulatory
authorities. The Company is committed to ensure protection of the whistle-blower against detrimental or unfair
treatment. No adverse action will be taken against any Director, officer, employee or other individual for making a
whistle-blowing report in good faith under the Company’s whistle-blowing policy. Where a whistle-blowing report has
been made, the Company will take all reasonable steps to ensure that no other person victimizes the whistle-blower.
The ARMC is responsible for overseeing the implementation of the whistle-blowing policy and its terms of reference
include the oversight and monitoring of whistle-blowing.

Dealings in Securities

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing in securities which sets out the implications of insider
trading and provides guidance and internal regulation with regards to dealings in the Company's securities by
Directors and officers.

Specifically, the code of conduct has procedures in place prohibiting dealings in the Company’s shares by its
Directors and officers while (a) in possession of unpublished material price sensitive information, (b) (if the
Company announces its quarterly financial statements) during the periods commencing two weeks preceding the
announcement date of the Company's quarterly results and one month preceding the announcement date of the
Company's full year results and ending one full trading day following such announcements, and (c) (if the Company
does not announce its quarterly financial statements) during the period commencing one month preceding the
announcement date of the Company’s half year and full year financial results and ending one full trading day
following such announcement. Internal memorandums are regularly sent to remind Directors and officers on the
period where dealings are prohibited. Directors and officers are also expected to observe insider trading laws at
all times, even when dealing in securities within the permitted trading period. An officer should not deal in the
Company's shares on short-term considerations.

Internal Audit and Internal Controls

The objective of an internal audit is to assist the Board to evaluate the reliability, adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal controls and risk management processes of the Group. The internal audit reviews and tests the controls in
areas of key risks identified.

The internal audit function is independent of the activities it audits. The Board has engaged KPMG Huazhen LLP
(“KPMG") as the Company'’s internal auditor. KPMG's primary reporting line is to the ARMC Chairman. The ARMC
reviews and approves the appointment, termination, and remuneration of the head of the internal audit function.
The ARMC meets with KPMG at least once annually without the presence of management. KPMG has unfettered
access to all the Company's documents, records, properties and personnel, including access to the ARMC and
management, and has appropriate standing within the Company.

KPMG's directors are members of the Institute of Internal Auditors as well as the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The experience, qualifications and size of the engagement team members are also evaluated before
assigning to audit the Group. The firm carried out its internal audit according to the standards set by the Institute of
Internal Auditors. The ARMC reviews and approves the internal audit plan and reviews the reports from KPMG for its
adequacy and effectiveness, at least on an annual basis, and is of the view that the Group's internal audit function is
independent, effective and adequately resourced. The internal audit is conducted two to three times yearly, including
audits at the corporate headquarters of the Group and a selected operating facility of the Group, as well as audits
in respect of interested person transactions. Copies of the internal audit reports are provided to management and
the external auditors. Processes are in place such that recommendations raised are followed up to ensure that they
are implemented where possible, within a reasonable time frame, taking into account the severity and nature of the
control weaknesses identified.
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Shareholders Rights and Engagement
Principle 11: Shareholder Rights and Conduct of General Meetings

The Company treats all shareholders fairly and equitably in order to enable them to exercise shareholders’ rights
and have the opportunity to communicate their views on matters affecting the Company. The Company gives
shareholders a balanced and understandable assessment of its performance, position and prospects. The Company
facilitates the exercise of shareholders’ rights by ensuring that all material and financial information relating to the
Group is disclosed in an accurate and timely manner via SGXNET.

The Board provided shareholders with half-yearly, third quarter and annual financial results in relation to FY2021.
Results for the first, second and third quarter (where the Company announces its quarterly results) and the half-year
(where the Company does not announce its quarterly results) are released to shareholders within 45 days of the end
of each quarter and the annual results are released within 60 days from the financial year end. In presenting the
Group's quarterly and annual results, the Board aims to provide shareholders with a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and financial position with a commentary at the date of the announcement
of the significant trends and competitive conditions of the industry in which it operates.

General meetings of the Company are one of the principal forums for dialogue with shareholders. At general
meetings, shareholders are given the opportunity to communicate their views and to ask the Directors questions
on the various matters affecting the Company. All Directors are usually present and available at general meetings
to address any queries. The external auditors are present at general meetings to assist the Directors in answering
questions from shareholders as well as attending to queries on the conduct of audit and the preparation and content
of the auditors’ report. All Directors were present at all such general meetings of the Company held during FY2021.
The Directors’ attendance at the general meetings of the Company held in 2021 is disclosed under principle 1 above.

Due to the various control and safe distancing measures put in place in Singapore to prevent the spread of COVID-19
and notwithstanding the place in which the AGMs for the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2020 which were held on 24 June 2020 (“FY2019 AGM") and 26 April 2021 (“FY2020 AGM") respectively and the
forthcoming FY2021 AGM which is to be physically held, other than in respect of the Chairman, Directors and/or
representatives of the Company present at such location, the FY2019 AGM and the FY2020 AGM were convened and
held, by way of electronic means pursuant to the Additional Guidance on the Conduct of General Meetings During
Elevated Safe Distancing Period and checklist jointly issued by the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority,
the Monetary Authority of Singapore and Singapore Exchange Regulation (“Checklist”), which is based on the
COVID-19 (Temporary Measures) (Alternative Arrangements for Meetings for Companies, Variable Capital Companies,
Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order 2020 (as amended) (“Alternative Arrangements Order”).

Printed copies of the Notice of AGM and the proxy forms for the FY2019 AGM and the FY2020 AGM were not sent
to members. Instead, the Notice of AGM and the proxy forms for the FY2019 AGM and the FY2020 AGM were sent
to members by electronic means via publication on the Company's website at http://en.znjjhj.com/info.html and the
SGXNet.

The Company provides for separate resolutions at general meetings on each substantially separate issue unless the
issues are interdependent and linked so as to form one significant proposal. Where the resolutions are “bundled”,
the Company will explain the reasons and material implications in the notice of the general meeting. Detailed
information on each item in the agenda for the general meeting is provided in the explanatory notes to the Notice of
meeting.

The Company prepares minutes of general meetings, which record substantial comments and queries from
shareholders relating to the agenda of such meetings. Save for the FY2019 AGM, the FY2020 AGM and the
forthcoming FY2021 AGM, the Company generally does not publish its minutes of general meetings on its corporate
website. However, the minutes are available to shareholders upon request. Presentation slides are made available
on the SGXNET for the benefit of shareholders. Despite having varied from provision 11.5 of the Code, the Board
believes that consistent with the intent of principle 11 of the Code, the Company treats all shareholders fairly and
equitably in order to enable them to exercise shareholders’ rights and have the opportunity to communicate their
views on matters affecting the Company, and has given shareholders a balanced and understandable assessment of
its performance, position and prospects.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s general meetings where the respective Chairmen of the Board
and the Board Committees will be present to engage shareholders in dialogue and to address their queries.
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All shareholders are given the opportunity to participate effectively in and to vote at general meetings in person or by
proxy. The rules including the voting procedures are set out in the notice of the general meetings. Shareholders may
appoint one or two proxies each to attend and vote at general meetings in their absence. “Relevant intermediaries”
such as banks, capital markets services licence holders which provide custodial services for securities and the Central
Provident Fund Board, are allowed to appoint more than two proxies to attend and vote at general meetings. The
proxy forms must be deposited with the Company’'s share registrar not less than seventy-two hours before the time
set for the general meetings. However, the Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of Association do not permit voting
in absentia by mail, facsimile or e-mail as such voting methods would need to be cautiously evaluated to ensure that
the authenticity of the vote and shareholders’ identities are not compromised.

For the FY2019 AGM and the FY2020 AGM, the Company had put in place arrangements for shareholders
to participate in the meeting by submitting questions ahead of the meeting, voting by proxy and/or watching or
listening to the proceedings via a “live” webcast pursuant to the Checklist. The questions can be submitted (i) via the
pre-registration website; (ii) by email to an electronic mail address; (iii) and by post to the registered office address
of the Company’s Share Transfer Agent, no later than 72 hours before the FY2019 AGM and the FY2020 AGM. The
proxy forms, if submitted (i) by post, are to be lodged at the registered office of the Company's Share Transfer Agent
or (ii) electronically, the scanned PDF copy is to be submitted by email to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent, no
later than 72 hours before the FY2019 AGM, the FY2020 AGM and the forthcoming FY2021 AGM. At the FY2019 AGM
and the FY2020 AGM, the Company also addressed the questions which were submitted by shareholders prior to the
submission deadline.

For the forthcoming FY2021 AGM, as the Company will not be utilising real-time remote electronic voting and
real-time electronic communication, shareholders are allowed at least 7 calendar days after the publication of
the notice of general meeting to submit their questions and all substantial and relevant questions received from
shareholders will be publicly addressed at least 48 hours prior to the closing date and time for the lodgement of the
Proxy Forms, in compliance with the Checklist which was further updated on 4 February 2022.

The Company had informed the shareholders of such alternative arrangements and the details relating thereto
ahead of the FY2019 AGM and the FY2020 AGM in its Notice of AGM and Proxy Forms released by the Company on
SGXNet and its corporate website.

All resolutions tabled by the Company at a general meeting are put to the vote by poll pursuant to Rule 730A(2) of
the SGX-ST Listing Manual. Where physical meetings are held, poll voting is typically conducted “live” during such
meeting. Even when meetings are conducted by electronic means (such as the FY2019 AGM, the FY2020 AGM and
the forthcoming FY2021 AGM), the resolutions tabled by the Company at such meetings are still voted on by poll
notwithstanding that shareholders do not vote “live” during the meeting itself. The chairman of the meeting, acting
as proxy, will cast the votes in accordance with the instructions specified by shareholders in their respective proxy
forms in accordance with the requirements under the Alternative Arrangements Order (as defined below). Voting by
poll allows for an equitable and transparent voting process. Shareholders will be better able to demonstrate their
concerns in @ manner more accurately reflective of their shareholdings. Independent scrutineers are appointed
to conduct the voting process. The results of the general meetings are announced via SGXNet after the general
meetings.

The application duration of the Alternative Arrangements Order has been extended to allow entities to hold general
meetings via electronic means until revoked or amended by the Ministry of Law, even where entities are permitted
under safe distancing regulations to hold physical meetings. In view of the current COVID-19 restriction orders in
Singapore and the related safe distancing measures, the Company will be conducting its forthcoming FY2021 AGM via
electronic means in accordance with the Checklist which was updated on 27 April 2020, 22 June 2020, 1 October 2020
and 4 February 2022.

The Company currently does not have a fixed dividend policy. When making recommendations on the timing,
amount and form of future dividends, if any, the Board will consider, among other things, the Group's results of
operations and cash flow, expected financial performance and working capital needs, future prospects, capital
expenditures and other investment plans, other investment and growth plans and the general economic and
business conditions and other factors deemed relevant by the Board and statutory or contractual restrictions on
the payment of dividends. For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, no dividend has been recommended
as the Group is expanding its business operations, with a view of achieving sustainable and long-term growth of its
business. These projects require considerable financial resources and the Group's priority is to manage its cash flow
prudently and responsibly so as to ensure that its financial commitments are met.
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Principle 12: Engagement with Shareholders

The Company ensures that timely and accurate material information are given to shareholders and investors so that
they will be apprised of developments that may have a material impact on the Company. The financial statements
and other presentation materials are presented at the Company's general meetings. Material and price-sensitive
information are disseminated and publicly released via the SGXNET and the Company's website on a timely basis. The
notice of AGM is advertised in the press and the annual report and the notice of AGM are released via SGXNET and
the Company's website.

The Company is open to meetings with shareholders, investors, media and analysts, and in conducting such
meetings, the Company is mindful of the need to ensure fair disclosure to all shareholders. The Company seeks
to solicit and understand the views of shareholders through analyst briefings that coincide with the release of
financial results, meeting local and foreign fund managers in investor roadshows and conferences and dialogues
with shareholders in general meetings. The Company has in place an investor relations programme which allows for
an ongoing exchange of views so as to actively engage and promote regular, effective and fair communication with
shareholders. The investor relations programme sets out the mechanisms through which shareholders may contact
the Company with questions and through which the Company may respond to such questions.

Managing Stakeholders Relationships
Principle 13: Engagement with Stakeholders

The Board adopts an inclusive approach by considering and balancing the needs and interests of material
stakeholders, as part of its overall responsibility to ensure that the best interests of the Company are served. The
Company has identified its stakeholders as those who are impacted by the Group's business and operations and
those who are able to materially impact the Company’s business and operations. Four stakeholder groups have been
identified following an assessment of their significance to the Group's business operations. The Group's stakeholders
are, namely, investors, employees, the local community and regulators.

The Company has undertaken a materiality assessment to determine six material environmental, social and
governance (ESG) factors which are important to these stakeholders and are the Company’s sustainability priorities.
These issues form the materiality matrix upon which targets, performance and progress are reviewed and endorsed
by the Board annually. Underpinned by the six material ESG factors, the Company focuses on four priority areas
in sustainability, namely, economic performance, environmental services and impacts, workforce and corporate
governance, to bring about positive value for its key stakeholders. Having identified its stakeholders and the material
ESG factors, the Company has mapped out the key areas of focus in relation to the management of the respective
stakeholder relationships. Please refer to the Sustainability Report on pages 43 to 69 of this Annual Report for further
details.

The Company has made available its sustainability report in the annual report. Sustainability is essential to provide
sustainable solutions and bring about positive values for our customers, investors, employees, the local community
and regulators.

The Company's website can be found at http://www.znjjhj.com/, which remains updated and current and offers a
platform to communicate and engage with stakeholders.
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Directors'’
Statement

The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and the statement of financial position and statement of
changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

In the opinion of the directors, the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the
Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group as set out on pages 118 to 199 are drawn up so as
to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2021, the
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for
the financial year ended on that date.

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are as follows:

Wei Dongliang
Wang Ruihong
Ang Swee Tian
Hee Theng Fong
Tan Huay Lim
Ni Mingjiang

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose
object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, other than as disclosed under “Share Options and
Performance Shares"” in this statement.

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures

(a) According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the directors holding office at the end of the
financial year had any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related corporations, except
as follows:

Holdings registered in Holdings in which director is
name of director deemed to have an interest

At 31.12.2021 At 1.1.2021 At 31.12.2021 At 1.1.2021

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment
Holding Company Limited
(No. of ordinary shares)

Wang Ruihong 2,100,000 2,100,000 - -
Ang Swee Tian 171,000 80,000 - -

(b) The directors’ interest in the ordinary shares and convertible securities of the Company as at 21 January 2022
were the same as those as at 31 December 2021.
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Share Options and Performance Shares

The Company has adopted the Jinjiang Environment Performance Share Plan (the “Plan”) which was approved by
the shareholders on 29 June 2016 and was subsequently amended and approved by the shareholders at an
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 April 2017. The Plan shall continue to be in force at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee, subject to a maximum period of ten years commencing from 29 June 2016.

At the date of this statement, the Remuneration Committee which administers the Plan comprises the following
directors:

(i) Hee Theng Fong (Chairman)
(ii) Ang Swee Tian
(iii)  Ni Mingjiang

During the current financial year, there were no shares granted under the Plan. As at 31 December 2021, the
Company has granted 23,394,700 shares under the Plan. All entitled employees are required to pay 30% of the
closing market price of the shares awarded to them on the date of grant in cash as a condition for the vesting of the
share awards. These shares were granted without a vesting period but will be subject to a moratorium on trading of
12 months from the date of issuance and allotment.

The Plan is a performance incentive scheme which will form an integral part of the Group’s incentive compensation
program. The purpose of the Plan is to provide eligible participants with an opportunity to participate in the equity
of the Company and to motivate them towards better performance through increased dedication and loyalty by
issuing them with ordinary shares of the Company based on the merits of their performance. The number of shares
available under the Plan shall not exceed 15% of the issued share capital of the Company.

(@)  Theinformation on directors of the Company participating in the Plan is as follows:

Aggregate Aggregate
Granted in granted since exercised since Aggregate
financial commencement commencement outstanding
year ended of scheme to of scheme to as at
Name of directors 31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2021 31.12.2021
Wang Ruihong - 2,100,000 - 2,100,000

Save as disclosed above, there were no shares granted to directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company, or associates of controlling shareholders of the Company, from the commencement of the Plan to
the end of the financial year. In addition, no individual has been granted 5% or more of the total number of
shares to be comprised in share awards available under the Plan, from the commencement of the Plan to the
end of the financial year.

(b) Options to take up unissued shares

During the financial year, no options to take up unissued shares of the Company or any corporation in the
Group were granted.

(c) Options exercised

During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company or any corporation in the Group issued by
virtue of the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.

(d) Unissued shares under options

At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or any corporation in the
Group under options.
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Audit and Risk Management Committee

The members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee at the end of the financial year were as follows:

Tan Huay Lim (Chairman)

Hee Theng Fong

Ang Swee Tian

All members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee were non-executive directors.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the following:

the internal and external auditors’ audit plans and results of their examination and evaluation of the Group's
systems of internal accounting controls;

the Group’s financial and operating results and accounting policies;

the Group’s key financial risk areas and risk management structure;

the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group before their submission to the directors of the Company and external
auditor’s report on those financial statements;

the quarterly and annual announcements on the results and financial position of the Company and the Group;

the interested person transactions as defined under Chapter 9 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual;

the scope, approach and results of the audit and its cost effectiveness, and the independence and objectivity
of the external auditor;

the co-operation and assistance given by the management to the Group’s internal and external auditors; and

the re-appointment of the external auditors of the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of the management and has
been given the resources required to discharge its function properly. It also has full discretion to invite any director
and executive officer to attend its meetings. The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit
and Risk Management Committee.

The Group has complied with Rules 712 and 715 read together with Rule 716 of the Listing Manual issued by
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited in relation to its auditors.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has recommended to the Board that the independent auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, be nominated for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company.
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Directors'’
Statement

Independent Auditor

The independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the directors

Wei Dongliang Wang Ruihong
Director Director
8 April 2022
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Independent
Auditor's Report

To the members of Zheneng JinJiang Environment Holding Company Limited

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding
Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and the statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and of the consolidated
financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and of the changes
in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs").

What we have audited

The financial statements of the Company and the Group comprise:

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021;

° the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021;

° the statement of financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group and the statement of changes in equity of the

Company for the year then ended;
° the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended; and
° the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
We draw attention to Note 2.2 in the financial statements, which indicates that as of 31 December 2021, the current
liabilities of the Group and of the Company exceeded the current assets by approximately RMB2,131 million and
approximately RMB2,014 million respectively. As stated in Note 2.2, these events or conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 2.2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the

ability of the Group and of the Company to continue as going concerns. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this
matter.
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Independent
Auditor's Report

To the members of Zheneng JinJiang Environment Holding Company Limited

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
accompanying financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgements;
for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override
of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated

in our report.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recognition of revenue from construction services
provided under service concession arrangements
(the “construction services revenue”)

(Refer to Notes 2.3, 2.14, 3.1(a), 3.2(a), and 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.)

The Group entered into certain service concession
arrangements (such as “Build-Operate-Transfer”
arrangements (“BOT arrangements”) ) in respect of its
waste-to-energy (“WTE") plants with local government
authorities ( “Grantors”) in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC").

For BOT arrangements under the scope of IFRS
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") 12 “Service
Concession Arrangements”, the Group accounted for
their construction revenue by reference to the fair
value of the construction services delivered in the
construction phase. The fair value of such services is
estimated on a cost-plus basis with reference to the
prevailing market rate of gross margin at the date
of the agreement applicable to similar construction
services rendered.

The construction services revenue recognized
for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB692 million, representing
approximately 17% of the Group's total revenue.

We focused on auditing the revenue from construction
services under BOT arrangements because it can be
materially affected by the assumptions and estimates
used (i.e. the estimates on projected construction costs
and the gross margin). The inherent risk is considered
significant due to subjectivity of these assumptions and
estimates.

774 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
construction services revenue included:

° Understood and evaluated the management's
policies, key controls and processes in allocation
of the considerations for the construction of
the WTE plants among the different services as
provided by the Group under BOT arrangements
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and the level of other
inherent risk factors such as subjectivity of the
key assumptions and estimates applied;

° Assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and estimates as applied by
management in determining the amounts of
construction services revenue by:

- Comparing the projected construction
costs as applied by management against
the total budget costs as approved by
management and inspected the relevant
signed construction contracts;

- Comparing the estimated gross margins
as applied by management against those
of the comparable companies in the
construction industry.

° Tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the amounts of construction
services revenue recognised by the Group.

Based on our audit procedures, we found the key
assumptions and estimates used by management in
determining the recognition amount of construction
services revenue to be supportable by the evidence
obtained and procedures performed.



Independent
Auditor's Report

To the members of Zheneng JinJiang Environment Holding Company Limited

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(Refer to Notes 2.12, 3.1(c) and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the
Group's property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB10,038 million, representing
approximately 49% of the Group's total assets.

Property, plant and equipment are tested for
impairment whenever there is an indication that these
assets may be impaired. The Group regularly reviews
whether there are any indications of impairment and
recognizes an impairment loss if the carrying amount of
an asset is higher than its recoverable amount (which
is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use).

In 2021, for certain WTE plants with impairment
indicators, management performed assessment on
impairment of the assets at cash generating unit
(“CGU") level. Based on the assessment, the Group
does not expect any impairment arising from these
WTE plants. We focused on the impairment of
property, plant and equipment due to the significant
management's judgements, assumptions and estimates
involved in the impairment assessment (including
identification of the existence of impairment indicators).
The inherent risk is considered significant due to the
subjectivity of significant judgement and estimates used
by management.

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment included:

° Understood and evaluated the management's
internal control and process in assessing the
impairment of property, plant and equipment
(including the identification of the existence
of impairment indicators) and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and the level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias;

° Assessed the reasonableness of management’s
determination of CGU based on our knowledge
of business including the use of assets and
internal reporting process;

° Assessed the appropriateness of management’s
use of valuation methodology and its compliance
with management’s circumstances and relevant
accounting standards;

° Assessed management'’s forecast and calculation
of the CGU’s value in use, including:

- Assessing the reasonableness of
revenue growth rate by comparing the
historical operating results and future
operation plans of the CGUs, taking
into consideration of the economic and
industry outlook;

- Assessing the discount rate by referencing
to market data, and risk factors of
comparable companies and market
premium;

- Assessing the reasonableness of other
key input data such as capital expenditure
by comparing with the management
budget and corroborating with industry
information; and

- Testing the mathematical accuracy of the
discounted cash flows model.

Based on the audit procedures performed above, we
found management’s judgement and estimates in
relation to the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment to be supportable by the evidence
obtained and procedures performed.
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Independent
Auditor's Report

To the members of Zheneng JinJiang Environment Holding Company Limited

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the sections of the annual
report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the IFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide
a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and
fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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Independent
Auditor's Report

To the members of Zheneng JinJiang Environment Holding Company Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Tham Tuck Seng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 8 April 2022
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Note 2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue 4 4,060,376 3,084,664
Cost of sales 5 (3,007,865) (2,192,172)
Gross profit 1,052,511 892,492
Other income

- Interest 7 11,702 19,727
- Others 7 132,523 136,790
Loss allowance recognised on financial assets 39(b) (16,817) (24,406)
Other gains and losses, net 8 41,167 97,927
Expenses

- Administrative 5 (233,372) (252,518)
- Finance 9 (361,676) (355,490)
- Others 10 (30,273) (37,518)
Share of loss of associates (534) (325)
Share of (loss)/profit of joint ventures (11,931) 1,004
Profit before income tax 583,300 477,683
Income tax expense 11 (130,238) (147,194)
Profit for the year 453,062 330,489

Other comprehensive loss:

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Currency translation differences arising from consolidation 33(iv) (11,172) (37,830)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (11,172) (37,830)
Total comprehensive income 441,890 292,659

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 438,024 326,934

Non-controlling interests 15 15,038 3,555
453,062 330,489

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 426,852 289,104

Non-controlling interests 15 15,038 3,555
441,890 292,659

Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders
of the Company: (RMB cents per share)

Basic and diluted earnings per share 12 30.12 22.48

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2021

GROUP COMPANY
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 387,801 361,313 15,722 26,757
Pledged bank deposits 13 818,234 242,612 79,423 83,526
Trade and other receivables 14 2,438,221 1,715,195 - -
Amounts due from non-controlling interests 15 25,896 32,114 - -
Amounts due from related parties 16 718,976 649,489 2,258 -
Contract assets 4 17,832 81,540 - -
Service concession receivables 18 63,976 49,359 - -
Other tax recoverable 19 386,550 330,802 - -
Inventories 20 62,216 56,784 - -
Total current assets 4,919,702 3,519,208 97,403 110,283
Non-current assets
Other receivables 14 152,448 167,659 - 1,155
Amounts due from related parties 16 - - - 552
Amounts due from subsidiaries 17 - - 2,116,567 2,410,053
Service concession receivables 18 736,432 649,627 - -
Property, plant and equipment 21 10,037,818 9,291,612 - -
Investments in associates 22 15,613 16,147 - -
Investments in joint ventures 23 204,765 213,606 5,039 5,039
Investments in subsidiaries 24 - - 1,798,280 1,798,280
Investment property 25 24,875 26,276 - -
Intangible assets 28 4,289,074 3,882,549 - -
Total non-current assets 15,461,025 14,247,476 3,919,886 4,215,079
Total assets 20,380,727 17,766,684 4,017,289 4,325,362

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of

Financial Position
As at 31 December 2021

GROUP COMPANY
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Amounts due to non-controlling interests 15 4,507 - - -
Amounts due to related parties 16 55,680 91,056 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries 17 - - 85,884 85,885
Lease liabilities 26 5,035 39,194 - -
Trade and other payables 29 2,077,756 1,690,636 10,505 8,969
Borrowings 30 4,706,413 2,588,705 2,014,633 913,486
Deferred grant 34 17,065 17,080 - -
Other tax liabilities 35 61,096 78,870 - -
Income tax liabilities 123,057 148,201 - -
Total current liabilities 7,050,609 4,653,742 2,111,022 1,008,340
Net current liabilities (2,130,907) (1,134,534) (2,013,619) (898,057)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 30 5,774,970 6,090,635 - 1,323,305
Lease liabilities 26 2,457 5,482 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 31 618,953 542,392 - -
Deferred grant 34 364,020 345,978 - -
Provision for major overhauls 36 24,826 23,053 - -
Provision for contingent liabilities 37 - 2,400 - -
Total non-current liabilities 6,785,226 7,009,940 - 1,323,305
Total liabilities 13,835,835 11,663,682 2,111,022 2,331,645
NET ASSETS 6,544,892 6,103,002 1,906,267 1,993,717
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital 32 96 96 96 96
Share premium 1,601,100 1,601,100 1,601,100 1,601,100
Other reserves 33 515,890 491,107 1,057,112 1,057,112
Retained profits/(accumulated losses) 4,285,581 3,883,512 (752,041) (664,591)

6,402,667 5,975,815 1,906,267 1,993,717
Non-controlling interests 15 142,225 127,187 - -
Total equity 6,544,892 6,103,002 1,906,267 1,993,717

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

<— Attributable to equity holders of the Company —

Non-
Share Other controlling
capital Share reserves Retained Interests Total
(Note 32) premium (Note33)  profits Total (Note 15) equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
GROUP
2021
Balance as at 1 January 2021 9 1,601,100 491,107 3,833,512 5,975,815 127,187 6,103,002
Profit for the year - - - 438,024 438,024 15,038 453,062
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - (11,172) - (11,172) - (11,172)
Total comprehensive income for the
year - - (11172) 438,024 426,852 15,038 441,890
Transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity
Appropriation to reserves - - 35,955 (35,955) - - -
- - 35,955 (35,955) - - -
Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests - - - - - 5,265 5,265
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - (5,265) (5,265)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 96 1,601,100 515890 4,285,581 6,402,667 142,225 6,544,892
2020
Balance as at 1 January 2020 96 1,601,100 491,920 3,593,595 5,686,711 127,958 5,814,669
Profit for the year - - - 326,934 326,934 3,555 330,489
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - (37,830) - (37,830) - (37,830)
Total comprehensive income for the
year - - (37,830) 326,934 289,104 3,555 292,659
Transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity
Appropriation to reserves - - 37,017 (37,017) - - -
- - 37,017 (37,017) - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - (4,326) (4,326)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 96 1,601,100 491,107 3,883,512 5,975,815 127,187 6,103,002
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of
Changes in Equity

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

<«—— Attributable to equity holders of the Company ——

Share Other
capital Share reserves  Accumulated Total
(Note 32) premium (Note 33) losses equity
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
COMPANY
2021
Balance as at 1 January 2021 96 1,601,100 1,057,112 (664,591) 1,993,717
Loss for the year, representing total
comprehensive loss for the year - - - (87,450) (87,450)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 96 1,601,100 1,057,112 (752,041) 1,906,267
2020
Balance as at 1 January 2020 96 1,601,100 1,057,112 (527,859) 2,130,449
Loss for the year, representing total
comprehensive loss for the year - - - (136,732) (136,732)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 96 1,601,100 1,057,112 (664,591) 1,993,717

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 583,300 477,683
Adjustments for:
- Amortisation of intangible assets 149,050 142,716
- Compensation income on closure of WTE plant - (21,026)
- Deferred grant recognised (36,781) (38,502)
- Depreciation of investment property 898 937
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 375,149 321,116
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets 81,594 92,030
- Finance expenses 361,676 355,490
- Foreign exchange gains (50,166) (188,509)
- Impairment loss on prepayments 71 33,152
- Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - 4,366
- Impairment loss on intangible asset 30,202 -
- Financial income under service concession arrangements (42,601) (44,193)
- Bank interest income (11,702) (19,727)
- Loss allowance on other receivables 10,899 13,316
- Loss allowance on trade receivables 5918 11,090
- Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 444 52,055
- Loss on disposal of shares of joint venture 556 -
- Share of loss/(profit) of joint ventures 11,931 (1,004)
- Share of loss of an associate 534 325
- Write-off of property, plant and equipment upon closure of WTE plant - 12,896

1,470,972 1,204,211
Change in working capital

- Trade and other receivables (680,025) (103,271)
- Service concession receivables (101,422) (20,404)
- Contract assets 63,708 (5,353)
- Other tax recoverable (55,747) (66,664)
- Inventories (5,432) (19,647)
- Intangible assets (580,261) (433,458)
- Trade and other payables 310,519 10,277
- Other tax liabilities (17,773) 22,385
- Amounts due from related parties (69,487) (100,739)
- Amounts due from non-controlling interests 6,218 23,477
- Amounts due to related parties 14,298 (46,713)
- Deferred grants 54,808 11,116
- Provision for contingent liabilities (2,400) 2,400
Cash generated from operations 407,976 477,617
Income tax paid (78,819) (48,732)
Net cash generated from operating activities 329,157 428,885
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 6,111 18,061
Additions to property, plant and equipment (1,097,656)  (1,490,591)
Additions to intangible assets - software (2,958) (1,844)
Investments in associates - (2,000)
Investments in joint ventures (22,371) -
Proceeds from disposal of shares of joint venture 18,725 -
Bank deposits pledged 24,655 65,692
Proceeds from closure of WTE plant 9,836 40,998
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,813 8,750
Net cash used in investing activities (1,060,845) (1,360,934)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 5,115,390 6,557,765
Repayment of borrowings (3,277,050) (3,726,564)
Repayment of notes payables - (1,415,900)
Payment of finance costs (439,559) (459,048)
Pledged bank deposits for borrowings (602,591) 263,140
Repayment of lease liabilities (35,274) (366,963)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - (5,723)
Net cash generated from financing activities 760,916 846,707
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 29,228 (85,342)
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of financial year 361,313 442,123
Effects of currency translation on cash and cash equivalents (2,740) 4,532
End of financial year 387,801 361,313

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

2.1

General information

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated on 8 September
2010 as an exempt company with limited liability in Cayman Islands with its registered office presently at
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box 31119, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and principal
place of business at 1 Yinxiu Road, Level 19, Tower A, Hangyue Commercial Center, Gongshu District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The single largest shareholder
is Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd., which is controlled by State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the People’s Government of Zhejiang Province.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) on 3
August 2016.

The consolidated financial statements are expressed in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the Company’s functional
currency.

The principal activity of the Company is that of an investment holding company. The Group is mainly
engaged in the generation and sales of electricity and steam, operation of waste-to-energy plants and project
management, technical consulting and advisory services and energy management contracting business. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are disclosed in Notes 24, 22 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2021

On 1 January 2021, the Group has adopted the new or amended IFRS and interpretations issued by the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") that are mandatory for application for the financial year. Changes to the
Group's accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance with the transitional provisions in the
respective IFRS and IFRIC.

The adoption of these new or amended IFRS and IFRIC did not result in substantial changes to the Group's

accounting policies and had no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior financial
years.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)
Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2021 (continued)

The following are the new or amended Standards and Interpretations (issued up to 30 September 2021) that
are not yet applicable, but may be early adopted for the current financial year.

Annual periods commencing on Description

1 January 2022 Amendments to:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Reference to the Conceptual
Framework)

- IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (Proceeds before
Intended Use)

- IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
(Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract)

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2018 - 2020

1 January 2023 Amendments to:

- IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current)

- IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Disclosure of Accounting Policies)

- IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors (Definition of Accounting Estimates)

- IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

To be determined Amendments to:

- IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture)

The new or amended accounting Standards and Interpretations listed above are not mandatory for 31
December 2021 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. These are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

Going concern

As of 31 December 2021, the current liabilities of the Group and of the Company exceeded the current
assets by approximately RMB2,130,907,000 and RMB2,013,619,000 respectively. Furthermore, included in the
current liabilities of the Group and of the Company are outstanding borrowings of RMB1,395,508,030 and
RMB1,325,508,030 respectively, that are without pledged bank deposits and that the banks are contractually
entitled to request for immediate repayment as a result of the non-compliance of the Financial Covenant (as
described in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements) and the consequential cross default in relation
to other borrowings. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group and of the Company to continue as going concerns.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Going concern (continued)

The financial statements have nevertheless been prepared on a going concern basis as the directors and
management have assessed that it is appropriate to do so after considering the following:

(A)  the lenders of the borrowings have not called on the repayment of the borrowings mentioned above
and the Group has maintained communication with relevant banks and financial institutions to explain
changes in the financial conditions;

(B)  the Group's ability to finalise and obtain additional financing including:
(i) additional credit facilities from financial institutions subsequent to year-end;

(i) proposed issuance of up to RMB1 billion in aggregate principal amount of Asset-Backed
Securities (“ABS") which is currently under review for approval by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange;

(C)  the Group's ability to generate positive cash flows from its operations;

(D) as disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had obtained loans of
RMB840 million as of 31 December 2021 from subsidiaries of its single largest shareholder, Zhejiang
Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd.("Zheneng Group”), which is a state-owned provincial energy enterprise
with great financial strength and good credit standing and will continue to actively seek financial
support from Zheneng Group.

The directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projection prepared by management, which covers a period
of at least twelve months from 31 December 2021, and are of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient funds to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due within twelve months from 31 December 2021. Accordingly,
the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the accompanying financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Notwithstanding the plans and measures taken by management, material uncertainties exist as to whether the
Group is able to achieve its plans and measures as described above.

Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going concern would depend upon one or more of the
following:

(A)  thelenders of the borrowings will not call for the repayment ahead of the stipulated repayment dates;

(B)  the Group is successful in its efforts to obtain or timely execute the aforementioned financing before
the stipulated repayment dates;

(C)  the Group continues to generate positive cash flows from its operations; and/or

(D)  the Group is able to obtain timely and sufficient financial support from its single largest shareholder
when needed.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned plans and measures and operate as a going
concern, adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need to be realised other
than in the normal course of business and at amounts which may differ significantly from the amounts at
which they are currently recorded in the financial statements, to provide for any future liabilities which might
arise. In addition, in the event that the Group and the Company do not continue as going concerns, the Group
and the Company may have to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. Such adjustments have not been made to the accompanying financial statements.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a
product or service to a customer.

(@)

(0)

Sale of goods

The Group sells electricity and steam to the customers. Revenue is recognised when control of the
electricity and steam has transferred to the end users upon usage based on the meter reading. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the electricity and steam are delivered to the customers as
this represents the point in time which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Rendering of services

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Project technical and management service and Energy Management Contracting (“EMC") business

Project technical and management fees and EMC service fees from customers are recognised
as revenue over time when services are rendered based on agreed rates. Management has
assessed that the stage of completion is determined as the proportion of the total service period
that has elapsed as at the end of the reporting period as it is an appropriate measure of progress
towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under IFRS 15 as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the services provided by the Group over the service
period.

Equipment selection and sale

The Group enters into contracts with customers for equipment with unique specifications and
engages a vendor to manufacture the specified equipment. Revenue is recognised at a point in
time when control of the equipment has transferred to the customer which coincides with the
delivery of the equipment to the customer.

Revenue from waste treatment
Revenue from waste treatment is recognised based on agreed rates when the relevant services

are rendered over time as the grantor simultaneously receives and consumes the services
provided by the Group over the service period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Construction services

(i)

Construction contracts

The Group’s performance in respect of construction services creates or enhances an asset or
work in progress that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced, thus the Group
satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue from construction contracts over time,
as measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative
to the estimated total contract costs. Revenue from the construction services under a service
concession agreement is estimated on a cost-plus basis with reference to a prevailing market
rate of gross margin at the date of the agreement applicable to similar construction services
rendered.

Management considers that this input method is an appropriate measure of the progress
towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under IFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue (continued)
(d) Construction services (continued)

(i) Contract costs

Costs incurred in fulfilling a contract with a customer are recognised as an asset if such costs
relate directly to a contract and generate or enhance the Group’s resources used in satisfying
future performance obligations and are expected to be recovered.

(iii) Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains rights to receive consideration
from the customer and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services
to the customer. The combination of those rights and performance obligations gives rise to
a net asset or a net liability depending on the relationship between the remaining rights and
the performance obligations. The contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if the
measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure of the remaining performance obligation.

Conversely, the contract is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the
remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all the attached conditions.

Government grants are deferred and recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants relating to
expenses are shown separately as other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are included in non-current liabilities as deferred grant
and they are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Accounting for common control transactions

The predecessor values method of accounting is used to account for the transfer of businesses from entities
under common control.

In the application of the predecessor values method of accounting, the transaction can either be accounted
for as if it had taken place at the beginning of the earliest period presented (or the date that the entities were
first under common control, if later), or prospectively from the date of transfer of the businesses. The Group
and the Company has elected to account for such transactions as if it had taken place at the beginning of the
earliest period presented (or the date that the entities were first under common control, if later).

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined using the existing carrying amounts. No
amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income include the results of each of

the combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common control, whichever is earlier.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Group accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date on that control ceases.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group entities are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment indicator of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests comprise the portion of a subsidiary’s net results of operations and
its net assets, which is attributable to the interests that are not owned directly or indirectly by
the equity holders of the Company. They are shown separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, and balance sheet. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the non-controlling interests based on their respective interests in a
subsidiary, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Acquisitions

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations entered into
by the Group.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary or business comprises the fair
value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred also includes any contingent consideration arrangement
and any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree at the date of acquisition either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The excess of (a) the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the (b) fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Disposals

When a change in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control
over the subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary including any goodwill are
derecognised. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are also reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings if required
by a specific Standard.
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2.6  Group accounting (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)
(iii) Disposals (continued)

Any retained equity interest in the entity is remeasured at fair value. The difference between
the carrying amount of the retained interest at the date when control is lost and its fair value is
recognised in profit or loss.

Please refer to the paragraph “Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures” for
the accounting policy on investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of the
Company.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control over
the subsidiary are accounted for as transactions with equity owners of the Company. Any difference
between the change in the carrying amounts of the non-controlling interest and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised within equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company.

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control, generally
accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to voting rights of 20% and above.

Joint ventures are entities over which the Group has joint control as a result of contractual
arrangements, and rights to the net assets of the entities.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting less impairment losses, if any.

(i) Acquisition

Investments in associates and joint ventures are initially recognised at cost. The cost of
an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued or
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Goodwill on associates and joint ventures represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition of the associates or joint venture over the Group's share of the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the associates company or joint venture and is included in the carrying
amount of the investments.

(i) Equity method of accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise Group’'s share of its associates’ or joint ventures' post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss and its share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee’s other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from the associates or joint ventures are recognised as a reduction of the carrying
amount of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses in an associates or joint venture
equals to or exceeds its interest in the associates or joint venture, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has legal or constructive obligations to make, or has made, payments on
behalf of the associates or joint venture. If the associates or joint venture subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised. Interest in an associates or joint venture includes
any long-term loans for which settlement is never planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable
future.
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132

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Group accounting (continued)

(c) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Equity method of accounting (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates or joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of impairment of the assets
transferred. The accounting policies of associates or joint ventures are changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Disposals

Investments in associates or joint ventures are derecognised when the Group loses significant
influence or joint control. If the retained equity interest in the former associates or joint venture
is a financial asset, the retained equity interest is measured at fair value. The difference between
the carrying amount of the retained interest at the date when significant influence or joint
control is lost, and its fair value and any proceeds on partial disposal, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Please refer to the paragraph “Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures” for the accounting
policy on investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures in the separate financial statements of
the Company.

Property, plant and equipment

(a) Measurement

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Buildings

Buildings are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Components of costs

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase
price and any cost that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The
projected cost of dismantlement, removal or restoration is also recognised as part of the cost of
property, plant and equipment if the obligation for the dismantlement, removal or restoration is
incurred as a consequence of either acquiring the asset or using the asset for purpose other than
to produce inventories. Cost also includes borrowing costs (refer to Note 2.9 on borrowing costs).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b)

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (other than construction-in-progress) is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Useful lives
Leasehold land 30 - 50 years
Buildings 25 years
Plant and machinery 12 - 20 years
Furniture, fixture and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 8 years

No depreciation is charged for assets under construction until they are completed and transferred to
appropriate asset categories. The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
The effects of any revision are recognised in profit or loss when the changes arise.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognised
is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repair and maintenance expenses are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Disposal

On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal proceeds
and its carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss within “Other gains and losses, net".

Intangible assets

(@)

Acquired computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are initially capitalised at cost which includes the purchase prices
(net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its
intended use. Direct expenditures including employee costs, which enhance or extend the performance
of computer software beyond its specifications and which can be reliably measured, are added to the
original cost of the software. Costs associated with maintaining the computer software are expensed off
when incurred.

Service concession arrangements

The Group recognises an intangible asset at fair value upon initial recognition when it has a right to
charge for usage in relation to a concession infrastructure (as a consideration for providing construction
services in a service concession arrangement). Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
straight-line basis over the respective periods of the operating concessions granted to the Group of 21
to 30 years.

The amortisation period and amortisation method of intangible assets other than goodwill are reviewed at
least at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognised in profit or loss when the changes

arise.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method except for those costs that
are directly attributable to and assets under construction. This includes those costs on borrowings acquired
specifically for the construction or development of properties and assets under construction, as well as those
in relation to general borrowings used to finance the construction or development of properties and assets
under construction.

Borrowing costs on general borrowings are capitalised by applying a capitalisation rate to construction
expenditures that are financed by general borrowings.

Investment property

Investment property comprises of office units that are held for long-term rental yields and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment property are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Investment property is subject to renovations or improvements at regular intervals. The cost of major
renovations and improvements is capitalised and the carrying amounts of the replaced components are
recognised in profit or loss. The cost of maintenance, repairs and minor improvements is recognised in profit
or loss when incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated residual
value to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful lives of 99 years.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of investment property are reviewed, and adjusted
as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are included in profit or loss when the
changes arise.

On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the
Company's balance sheet. On disposal of such investments, the difference between disposal proceeds and the
carrying amounts of the investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are tested for impairment whenever there is any objective evidence or indication
that these assets may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of
disposal and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment loss in
profit or loss.

An impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The carrying amount of this asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised in profit or loss, unless the asset
is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. However, to
the extent that an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was previously recognised as an expense, a
reversal of that impairment is also recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets as measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets as well as
the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial asset.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

At initial recognition

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

At subsequent measurement

(i) Debt instruments
Debt instruments mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables.

There are three subsequent measurement categories, depending on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset:

° Amortised cost: Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured
at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in interest income using the effective interest rate method.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

(b)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
financial assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 39 details how the Group determines whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
the IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For other receivables, amounts due from related parties, service concession receivables and cash and
cash equivalents, the general 3-stage approach is applied. Credit loss allowance is based on 12-month
expected credit loss if there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the assets.
If there is a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, lifetime expected credit loss will be
calculated and recognised.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date - the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

On disposal of a debt instrument, the difference between the carrying amount and the sale proceeds is
recognised in profit or loss. Any amount previously recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that asset is reclassified to profit or loss.

On disposal of an equity investment, the difference between the carrying amount and sales proceed
is recognised in profit or loss if there was no election made to recognise fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. If there was an election made, any difference between the carrying amount and
sales proceed amount would be recognised in other comprehensive income and transferred to retained
profits along with the amount previously recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
asset.

2.14 Service concession arrangements

136

Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor
for the construction services rendered and/or the consideration paid and payable by the Group for the right
to manage and operate the infrastructure for public service. The Group has an unconditional right to receive
cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a) specified or determinable amounts or (b)
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users of the public service and specified or determinable
amounts, even if the payment is contingent on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets specified
quality of efficiency requirements. The financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is
accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for “Financial assets” above.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Service concession arrangements (continued)

Consideration given by the grantor (continued)

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of the public service. The intangible assets (operating concession) are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
operation phase of the concession periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset,
then each component of the consideration is accounted for separately and is recognised initially at the fair
value of the consideration.

Construction of service concession related infrastructure

Revenue and costs relating to construction phase of a concession arrangement is accounted for in accordance
to IFRS 15. The Group recognised the construction revenue with reference to the fair value of the construction
service delivered in the construction phase. The fair value of such service is estimated on a cost-plus basis
with reference to the prevailing market rate of gross margin. Consequently, the Group recognised a profit
margin on the construction work by reference to the stage of completion and in accordance with the policy for
“Revenue (Construction services)” above.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for “Revenue (Rendering
of services)” above.

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure to a specified level of serviceability

When the Group has contractual obligations that it must fulfil as a condition of its licence for operating
concessions under the “Intangible Asset” model, that is (a) to maintain the infrastructure to a specified level
of serviceability and/or (b) to restore the infrastructure to a specified condition before they are handed over
to the grantor at the end of the service concession arrangement, these contractual obligations to maintain or
restore the infrastructure are recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions”
below.

Repair and maintenance and other expenses that are routine in nature are expensed and recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Borrowings

Borrowings are presented as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date, in which case they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs) and subsequently carried at

amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). Otherwise, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Leases

When the Group is the lessee:

At the inception of the contract, the Group assesses if the contract contains a lease. A contract contains a lease
if the contract convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Reassessment is only required when the terms and conditions of the contract are changed.
° Right-of-use assets
The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the date which the underlying asset is
available for use. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost which comprises the initial measurement of
lease liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date and lease
incentive received. Any initial direct costs that would not have been incurred if the lease had not been
obtained are added to the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets.
These right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term.
Right-of-use assets are presented within “Property, plant and equipment”.
° Lease liabilities
The initial measurement of lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments
discounted using the implicit rate in the lease, if the rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group shall use its incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments include the following:
- Fixed payment (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivables; and

- Payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease liability shall be
remeasured when:

- There is a changes in the Group's assessment of whether it will exercise an extension option; or

- There are modification in the scope or the consideration of the lease that was not part of the
original term.

Lease liability is remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

When the Group is the lessee: (continued)
° Short term and low value leases

The Group has elected to not recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases that have lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of low value leases, except for sublease
arrangements. Lease payments relating to these leases are expensed to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

When the Group is the lessor:
The Group leases investment property under operating leases to non-related party.

Leases where the Group retains substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as
operating leases. Rental income from operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the
carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised as an expense in profit or loss over the lease term on the
same basis as the lease income.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable variable selling expenses.

Income taxes

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or
recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances
either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

A deferred income tax liability is recognised on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income taxes (continued)
Deferred income tax is measured:

(i) at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date; and

(ii) based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
balance sheet date, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities except for
investment property. Investment property measured at fair value is presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale.

Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or expense in profit or loss, except to the
extent that the tax arises from a business combination or a transaction which is recognised directly in equity.
Deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Other provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as finance expense.

Changes in the estimated timing or amount of the expenditure or discount rate are recognised in profit or loss
when the changes arise.

Employee compensation
Employee benefits are recognised as an expense, unless the cost qualifies to be capitalised as an asset.
(a) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into separate entities such as the Central Provident Fund on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of options is recognised as an expense with a corresponding
increase in the share award reserve on the grant date. The total amount to be recognised on the grant
date is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted on grant date. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in the estimation of the number of shares under options that are
expected to become exercisable on the vesting date.

There is no vesting period for the share options. On the vesting date, the Group recognises the
number of shares under options that are exercised and recognises the impact in profit or loss, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share award reserve. The proceeds received (net of transaction
costs) and the related balance previously recognised in the share award reserve are credited to the
share capital account, when new ordinary shares are issued, or to the “treasury shares” account, when
treasury shares are re-issued to the employees.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee compensation (continued)

(@

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual
is made for the estimated liability for unutilised annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Currency exchange
differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the closing rates at the balance sheet date
are recognised in profit or loss. Monetary items include primarily financial assets (other than equity
investments), contract assets and financial liabilities. However, in the consolidated financial statements,
currency translation differences arising from borrowings in foreign currencies and other currency
instruments designated and qualifying as net investment hedges and net investment in foreign
operations, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the currency translation
reserve.

When a foreign operation is disposed of or any loan forming part of the net investment of the foreign
operation is repaid, a proportionate share of the accumulated currency translation differences is
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the income statement
within “finance expense”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses impacting profit or loss are
presented in the income statement within “Other gains and losses, net”.

Non-monetary items measured at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair values are determined.

Translation of Group entities’ financial statements

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing exchange rates at the reporting date;

(ii) income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless the average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the currency translation reserve. These currency translation differences
are reclassified to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal with loss of control of the foreign
operation.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Currency translation (continued)
(c) Translation of Group entities’ financial statements (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and translated at the closing rates at the reporting date.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the executive
committee whose members are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits with financial institutions which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. For cash subjected to restriction, assessment is made on the economic substance of the restriction and
whether they meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents.

Share capital and treasury shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary
shares are deducted against the share capital account.

When any entity within the Group purchases the Company’s ordinary shares (“treasury shares”), the carrying
amount which includes the consideration paid and any directly attributable transaction cost is presented
as a component within equity attributable to the Company’'s equity holders, until they are cancelled, sold or
reissued.

When treasury shares are subsequently cancelled, the cost of treasury shares are deducted against the share
capital account if the shares are purchased out of capital of the Company, or against the retained profits of the
Company if the shares are purchased out of earnings of the Company.

When treasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued pursuant to an employee share option scheme, the
cost of treasury shares is reversed from the treasury share account and the realised gain or loss on sale or
reissue, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and related income tax, is recognised in
the capital reserve.

Dividends to Company’s shareholders

Dividends to the Company’s shareholders are recognised when the dividends are approved for payment.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience

and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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3. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)

3.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(@)

Service concession arrangements

The Group recognises the right to operate the infrastructure (consideration received or receivable in
exchange for the construction services provided) as an intangible asset in accordance with the build-
operate-transfer (“BOT") arrangements entered into with the local government for the project where
there is no future guaranteed receipts over its service concession period. The Group recognises a
financial asset, named “service concession receivables”, arising from a service concession arrangement
when it has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset from or at the
direction of the grantor for the construction services provided. Such financial assets are measured
at fair value on initial recognition and classified as service concession receivable. If the Group is paid
for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then each
component of the consideration is accounted for separately and is initially recognised at the fair value
of the consideration.

Where the Group performs more than one service under the concession arrangements, the
consideration for the services provided under the concession arrangements is allocated to the
components by reference to their relative fair values.

Estimation is exercised in determining the fair values of the receivables under service concession
arrangements as well as impairment of the receivables under service concession arrangements and
intangible assets subsequent to initial recognition. Discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, costs
of construction and other factors are used in the determination of the amortised cost of financial
assets, intangible assets and corresponding finance income.

The assumptions used and estimates made can materially affect the fair value estimates. The carrying
amount of the Group’s financial receivables and intangible assets arising from service concession
arrangements at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Notes 18 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

The stage of completion of each construction contract is assessed on a cumulative basis in each
accounting year. Changes in estimate of contract revenue or contract costs, or the effect of a change in
the estimate of the outcome of a contract could impact the amount of revenue and expense recognised
in profit or loss in the year in which the change is made and in subsequent years. Such impact could
potentially be significant.

Revenue from construction services provided under service concession arrangements is disclosed in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. The gross profit margins recognised for third party
constructed infrastructure in relation to service concession arrangement are estimated by management
based on prevailing market rate applicable to construction services rendered by comparable companies.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

Management exercises their judgement in estimating the useful lives and residual values of the
depreciable assets. The estimated useful lives reflect management’s estimate of the period that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the depreciable asset.

Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts over the
estimated useful lives.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

(0)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group regularly reviews whether there are any indicators of impairment and recognises an
impairment loss if the recoverable amount of an asset is lower than its carrying amount.

The recoverable amounts, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or value in use, are determined
by management with reference to the best information available as of the balance sheet date. Changes
in management's assumptions in their value in use calculations, including the revenue growth rate,
the discount rate and capital expenditure within the forecast period, does not materially cause the
recoverable amounts to be lower than its carrying amounts.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables

The Group and the Company assess at the end of reporting period the expected credit loss (“ECL")
required for its trade and other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling interests, amounts due
from related parties and amounts due from subsidiaries taking into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. When measuring ECL, the Group and the Company use reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information, including taking into consideration the credit worthiness, past collection
history, subsequent receipts from the debtors and future economic conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operate.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling interests and
amounts due from related parties and subsidiaries are disclosed in Notes 14, 15, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies

(a)

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into build-operate-own (“BOO") and BOT arrangements in respect of certain of
its waste-to-energy (“WTE") plants with the local government.

The Group assessed that the BOO arrangements are not service concession arrangements under
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements because the local government does not control the significant
residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangements. Under the terms of
the arrangement, the Group has the practical ability to pledge the infrastructure throughout the period
of the arrangement. At the end of the respective BOO arrangement, the Group retains the ownership
and control to the infrastructure and holds the right of first refusal on renewal of the service concession
arrangement by the local government. In addition to the initial investment in the infrastructure,
the Group performs technical upgrade periodically to improve the capacity and efficiency of the
infrastructure. Management believes such improvements will further enhance the residual interest in
the overall infrastructure at the end of the service concession arrangement.

On the other hand, the Group concluded that the BOT arrangements are service concession
arrangement under IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements, because (i) the local government controls
and regulates the services that the Group must provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined
service charge and the parties to whom the Group must provide the services, and (ii) the local
government controls significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the
arrangements. Under the terms of the arrangement, upon expiry of the respective BOT arrangements,
the infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government under good condition at no or minimal
consideration.

See above involving estimations that management has made in relation to revenue recognition for
construction services arising from service concession arrangements.
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Investments in joint ventures

The Group holds 30% and 30% equity interest in Zibo Green New Energy Co., Ltd and Hohhot Jiasheng
New Energy Co., Ltd respectively. The board of directors of the investees comprises 1 representative
from the Group and 2 representatives from the other shareholder. However, management considers
the contractual arrangement on the investees and determined that decisions on the relevant activities
of the investees will require unanimous consent of both the Group and the other shareholder.
Accordingly, management classified these as investments in joint ventures (Note 23).

4, Revenue from contracts with customers

(@)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Waste-to-energy project construction and operation
Sales of electricity 1,466,023 1,284,661
Sales of steam 484,183 356,709
Revenue from waste treatment ™ 914,032 801,712
Revenue from construction services provided under service concession
arrangements (Notes 18 and 28) 692,461 384,999
Financial income under service concession arrangements @ (Note 18) 42,601 44,193
3,599,300 2,872,274
Project technical and management service, equipment selection
and sale and EMC business
Service income - non-related parties 400,218 127,315
Service income - related parties (Note 16(a)) 60,858 85,075
461,076 212,390
Total 4,060,376 3,084,664

(1) Included in the revenue from waste treatment are operating services under service concession arrangements

amounting to RMB897,793,000 (2020: RMB724,707,000).

(2)  Effective interest applied ranges from 5.9% to 11% (2020: from 5.9% to 11%).
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4. Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
At a point in time
Sales of electricity 1,466,023 1,284,661
Sales of steam 484,183 356,709
Equipment selection and sale 378,006 106,805
2,328,212 1,748,175
Over time
Revenue from waste treatment 914,032 801,712
Revenue from construction services provided under service concession
arrangements (Notes 18 and 28) 692,461 384,999
Project technical and management service and EMC business 83,070 105,585
1,689,563 1,292,296
Financial income under service concession arrangements (Note 18) 42,601 44,193
Total 4,060,376 3,084,664
(b) Contract assets and liabilities
31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Contract assets
- Equipment sale and selection 17,832 81,540 76,187
Less: Loss allowance - - -
Total contract assets 17,832 81,540 76,187
Contract liabilities (Note 29)
- Service concession arrangements 35,591 55,997 17,545
- Service contracts - 89,313 57,032
Total contract liabilities 35,591 145,310 74,577

746 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

4, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)

Contract assets and liabilities (continued)

Contract assets relating to equipment sale and selection are balances due from customers under
the contracts that arise when the Group has delivered the equipment to the customer. Any amount
previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it is
invoiced to the customer.

Management estimates the loss allowance on such contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future prospects of the construction
and waste to energy industry. Based on the assessment, management is of the view that the ECL is
insignificant.

Contract liabilities for service concession arrangements relate to the advances received from the
customer relating to the waste treatment services. Contract liabilities for service contracts are advances
received from the customer before the equipment has been delivered to the customer.

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000

Revenue recognised in current period that was included in the
contract liability balance at the beginning of the period

- Service concession arrangements 20,406 17,545
- Service contracts 89,313 57,032
109,719 74,577

(i) Unsatisfied performance obligations

31 December
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’'000

Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to contracts
that are partially or fully unsatisfied as at 31 December

- Service concession arrangements 480,214 760,710
- Service contracts 8,180 416,884
488,394 1,177,594

Management expects that 76% of the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance
obligations as of 31 December 2022 will be recognised as revenue during the next reporting period
(RMB370,460,000). The remaining 24% (RMB117,934,000) will be recognised in the 2023 financial year.
The amount disclosed above does not include variable consideration which is constrained.

As permitted under IFRS 15, the aggregated transaction price allocated to unsatisfied contracts of
periods one year or less, or are billed based on time incurred, is not disclosed.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(c) Trade receivables from contracts with customers

31 December 1 January
Note 2021 2020 2020

Group

Current assets

Trade receivables from contracts with customers
Loss allowance

Expenses by nature

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

14 2,003,425 1,238,015 1,096,249
14 (30,908) (24,990) (13,900)

1,972,517 1,213,025 1,082,349

Group
2021 2020

Cost of inventories recognised as expense
Construction cost
Fly ash solidification fee
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of investment property
Amortisation of intangible assets
Employee compensation (Note 6)
Audit fees:
- paid to auditors of the Company
- paid to member firms of the auditors of the Company
- paid to other auditors
Non-audit fees:
- paid to other auditors
Repair and maintenance
Transportation
Utilities
Outsourcing labour cost
Others
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses
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RMB’000 RMB’000

924,549 504,975
597,860 332,114
235,322 218,426
375,149 321,116
81,594 92,030
898 937
149,050 142,716
366,365 352,598
1,000 1,000
3,121 3,121
783 642

746 375
89,907 92,390
58,408 46,302
45,745 46,306
99,131 81,001
211,609 208,641

3,241,237 2,444,690
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Employee compensation

Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wages and salaries 342,553 348,125
Employer’s contribution to defined contribution plans 23,812 4,473
366,365 352,598
Other income
Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Government grant (Note (i)) 36,781 38,502
Value added tax refund 25,199 37,850
Bank interest income 11,702 19,727
Compensation income on closure of WTE plant - 21,026
Sales of waste materials 42,163 13,653
Interest income from joint ventures 28,380 25,759
144,225 156,517

Notes:

(i) The government grants represented the government incentive funds and government subsidies of different nature
received from the local government by the PRC operating entities of the Group, among them are grants in relation
to environmental initiatives, waste management and technological output transformation. During the year ended
31 December 2021, government grants included: (a) the incentive primarily in relation to waste-to-energy business
development to enterprises established in the PRC which amounted to RMB20,202,000 (2020: RMB15,107,000); and (b)
the subsidies received on acquisition of properties, plant and equipment amortised to profit or loss which amounted
to RMB16,559,000 (2020: RMB23,395,000). There were no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to
the receipt of those grants.

Other gains and losses, net

Group

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Write-off of property, plant and equipment upon closure of WTE plant - (12,896)
Other gains relating to closure of WTE plant 2,750 4,155
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (444) (52,055)
Foreign exchange gains 42,059 161,276
Loss on disposal of shares of joint venture (556) -
Others (2,642) (2,553)
41,167 97,927
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Finance expenses

Group
2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’'000

Interest expenses

- Borrowings 457,414 378,360
- Notes payable - 56,613
- Lease liabilities 2,691 26,025
- Others 1,200 2,324

461,305 463,322
Less: capitalised interest (99,629) (107,832)

361,676 355,490

Finance expenses on general borrowings were capitalised at a rate of 5.04% per annum (2020: 5.43% per
annum).

Other expenses

Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

Impairment loss on intangible assets 30,202 -
Impairment loss on prepayments 71 33,152
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - 4,366

30,273 37,518

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, an impairment of RMB 30,202,000 was recognised on
certain intangible assets (Note 28) relating to the Gwalior BOT project in India.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, an impairment of RMB4,366,000 was recognised on
certain plant and machinery in preparatory stages (Note 21) due to business strategy changes of the Group’s
Brazil subsidiaries. An impairment of RMB33,152,000 was recognised on certain prepayments of the Group's
India subsidiaries, as they were deemed to be uncollectible due to cancellation or adjustment of contracts for
project design modification.
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11. Income taxes

(a) Income tax expense
Group
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
Current tax:
- PRC enterprise income tax 52,939 90,898
- Under/(over) provision in the prior years 1,008 (6,165)
- Taxes in other jurisdictions (270) 2,815
53,677 87,548
Deferred tax (Note 31):
- Current year charges 76,561 59,646
130,238 147,194

Domestic PRC income tax is calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profit for the financial year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

PRC standard rate of income tax as follows:

Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Profit before tax 583,300 477,683
Tax calculated at tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) 145,825 119,421
Effects of:
- different tax rates in other countries 9,777 3,403
- tax exemptions granted to PRC subsidiaries (72,816) (76,400)
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,843 8,566
- utilisation of tax losses/ deductible temporary differences
previously not recognised (14,294) (16,787)
- tax losses/ deductible temporary differences not recognised 58,895 115,156
- under/(over) provision of tax in prior financial years 1,008 (6,165)
Tax charge 130,238 147,194
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Earnings per share

Basic/diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential shares.

2021 2020

Earnings (RMB’000)
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share

(profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company) 438,024 326,934
Number of shares (‘000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose

of basic and diluted earnings per share 1,454,025 1,454,025
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 30.12 22.48

The fully diluted earnings per share and basic earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive
potential shares outstanding at the end of the financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Pledged bank deposits

The Group's and Company's pledged bank deposits are primarily for borrowings (Note 30) and projects
tendering.

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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Trade and other receivables

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Trade receivables 2,003,425 1,238,015 - -
Less: Loss allowance (30,908) (24,990) - -
Bills receivables 7,265 29,464 - -
Total trade and bills receivables 1,979,782 1,242,489 - -
Advances to suppliers (Note (i)) 219,793 256,664 - -
Other receivables:
- Staff advances 12,498 8,075 - -
- Refundable deposits 54,230 48,422 - -
- Compensation receivable on closure of
WTE plant 198,241 208,239 - -
- Amount receivable for disposal of subsidiaries 114,254 114,254 - -
- Others 26,879 17,114 - -
Less: Loss allowance (Note (ii)) (42,356) (31,457) - -
Sub-total of other receivables 363,746 364,647 - -
Prepayments 27,348 19,054 - 1,155
Total trade and other receivables 2,590,669 1,882,854 - 1,155
Analysed for reporting purposes as:
- Current assets 2,438,221 1,715,195 - -
- Non-current assets 152,448 167,659 - 1,155
2,590,669 1,882,854 - 1,155

Notes:

(i)  Advances to suppliers represents payments made in advance to suppliers for the purchase of inventories and plant

and equipment and are unsecured and interest free.

(i) Included in loss allowance for other receivables is an impairment loss of RMB10,899,000 (2020: nil) in connection with
the enforcement of the deposit for performance bond relating to Gwalior project (refer to Note 28).

Certain of the Group’s borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s receivables amounting to

RMB617,173,000 (2020: RMB425,080,000).

The credit terms granted by the Group on the sale of electricity, steam, waste treatment and rendering of

services is 60 to 120 days (2020: 60 to 120 days).
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15. Non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of subsidiaries of the Group with significant non-controlling interests:

Proportion
Place of of ownership
incorporation interests
and and voting Profit/(loss)
principal rights held by allocated to Accumulated
place of non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiaries business interests interests interests
Year ended
At 31 December 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
% % RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
Kunming Jinjiang Kunming, 1.67 1.67 1,806 978 15,809 14,003
the PRC
Jilin Xinxiang @ Changchun, 20.00 20.00 5,956 3,879 38,696 32,740
the PRC
Yunnan Energy ® Yunnan, 11.00 11.00 5,283 4,750 28,424 23,141
the PRC
Individually immaterial 1,993 (6,052) 59,296 57,303

subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests

15,038 3,555 142,225 127,187

m Kunming Jinjiang refers to Kunming Xinxingze Environment Resources Industry Co., Ltd.
@ Jilin Xinxiang refers to Jilin Xinxiang Co., Ltd.

@ Yunnan Energy refers to Yunnan Green Energy Co., Ltd.
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Non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests, before intra-group eliminations is set out below.

Kunming Jinjiang

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000

Summarised balance sheet

Current assets 543,290 380,382
Non-current assets 1,198,176 1,218,717
Current liabilities (155,730) (116,795)
Non-current liabilities (639,073) (643,780)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 930,854 824,521

Non-controlling interests 15,809 14,003

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue 276,380 193,088
Expenses (168,241) (134,508)
Profit for the year 108,139 58,580
Profit attributable to owner of the Company 106,333 57,602
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 1,806 978

Summarised statement of cash flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities 118,480 110,336
Net cash outflow from investing activities (21,775) (70,561)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (99,246) (81,070)
Net cash outflow (2,541) (41,295)
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15. Non-controlling interests (continued)

Jilin Xinxiang

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Summarised balance sheet
Current assets 23,219 34,888
Non-current assets 702,373 705,020
Current liabilities (145,854) (419,154)
Non-current liabilities (360,379) (131,173)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 180,663 156,841
Non-controlling interests 38,696 32,740
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Revenue 158,047 147,061
Expenses (128,269) (127,664)
Profit for the year 29,778 19,397
Profit attributable to owner of the Company 23,822 15,518
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 5,956 3,879
Summarised statement of cash flow
Net cash inflow from operating activities 97,720 90,931
Net cash outflow from investing activities (67,002) (77,909)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (29,949) (13,718)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 769 (696)
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Non-controlling interests (continued)

Yunnan Energy

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000
Summarised balance sheet
Current assets 200,991 175,888
Non-current assets 432,135 288,670
Current liabilities (70,025) (59,449)
Non-current liabilities (294,708) (194,741)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 239,969 187,227
Non-controlling interests 28,424 23,141
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Revenue 293,121 121,690
Expenses (245,096) (78,511)
Profit for the year 48,025 43,179
Profit attributable to owner of the Company 42,742 38,429
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 5,283 4,750
Dividends paid to owner of the Company 42,600 35,005
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 5,265 4,326
Summarised statement of cash flow
Net cash inflow from operating activities 44,785 49,379
Net cash outflow from investing activities (142,891) (3,277)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 99,151 (46,252)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 1,045 (150)
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Non-controlling interests (continued)

The amounts due from non-controlling interests are as follows:

Group
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Trade related 14,866 21,084
Non-trade related 11,030 11,030
25,896 32,114

The trade related balances are unsecured, interest free and with a credit period of 120 days (2020: 120 days)
from the invoice date and are not past due as at the end of the reporting period.

The non-trade related balances due from non-controlling interests were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Management determines the non-trade receivables due from non-controlling interests are subject to
immaterial credit loss.

The amounts due to non-controlling interests are as follows:

Group
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’'000
Trade related 4,382 -
Non-trade related 125 -
4,507 -

The trade related balances due to non-controlling interests are interest-free.

The non-trade related balances due to non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.
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16. Related party balances and transactions

Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd. (“Zheneng Group”) is the largest shareholder of the Group whilst
Jinjiang Green Energy Limited (“Jinjiang Group”) is the second largest shareholder of the Group (collectively
known as the “major shareholders”).

(@)

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following transaction

took place between the Group and related parties at terms agreed between the parties.

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Companies in which Zheneng Group has control over:
- Purchases of materials 39,475 3,581
- Interest expense 29,248 10,591
Companies in which Jinjiang Group has control over:
- Purchases of materials 38,088 93,641
- Revenue from EMC business (56,422) (58,786)
- Rendering of technical and management services (4,436) (26,289)
Joint ventures:
- Interest income (28,163) (25,759)
The Group and the Company had the following balances with related parties:
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Group
Trade:
Amounts due from companies in which the major shareholders
have control over 197,743 147,541
Amounts due from joint ventures 10,513 17,169
208,256 164,710
Non-trade:
Amounts due from companies in which Jinjiang Group has control over 6,329 -
Amounts due from joint ventures 504,391 484,779
510,720 484,779
718,976 649,489
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16. Related party balances and transactions (continued)

(b)  The Group and the Company had the following balances with related parties: (continued)

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

Company
Non-trade:
Amounts due from joint ventures - current 2,258 -
Amounts due from joint ventures - non-current - 552
2,258 552
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Group
Trade:
Amounts due to companies in which the major shareholders
have control over 50,252 89,255
Amounts due to joint ventures 448 526
50,700 89,781
Non-trade:
Amounts due to companies in which the major shareholders
have control over 4,345 839
Amounts due to joint ventures 635 436
4,980 1,275
55,680 91,056

Trade balances

The trade related balances are unsecured, interest-free and with an average credit period of 6 months
(2020: 6 months).

Non-trade balances

The non-trade related balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand except for the
amounts due from joint ventures which bear interest at 7% (2020: 7%) per annum and are due within
one year from the end of the reporting period.

(©) Compensation of directors and key management personnel of the Group

The remuneration of directors and key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

Short-term employee benefits 9,819 10,493
Post-employment benefits 32 250
9,851 10,743
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Amounts due from/to subsidiaries

The Company’s receivables from and payables to subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, amounts due from subsidiaries have been classified as non-current
assets as the Company does not expect repayment within 12 months from the end of the reporting date.
Management is of the view the amounts due from subsidiaries approximate their fair values as the effect of
discounting is not expected to be significant.

Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from subsidiaries at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL, taking into account the historical default experience, current financial conditions of the subsidiaries and
the future prospects of the industry of each subsidiary. None of the amounts due from subsidiaries at the end
of the reporting period is past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current
reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for amounts due from subsidiaries.

Based on the assessment, management is of the view that the ECL is insignificant as the credit risk of the
subsidiaries are low.

Service concession receivables

Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Service concession receivables 800,408 698,986
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under current assets (63,976) (49,359)
Service concession receivables due after one year 736,432 649,627

Expected collection schedule is analysed as follows:

Within 1 year 63,976 49,359
Within 2 to 5 years 209,308 190,340
Over 5 years 527,124 459,287

800,408 698,986

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s borrowings were secured by the Group's service concession
receivables with aggregate carrying amount RMB728,222,000 (2020: RMB513,650,000) (Note 30).

Management estimates the loss allowance on receivables under service concession arrangements at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future
prospects of the construction and waste to energy industry. None of the receivables under service concession
arrangements at the end of the reporting period is past due.

Based on the assessment, management is of the view that the ECL is insignificant.
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Other tax recoverable

Group
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Value added tax 384,869 328,362
Others 1,681 2,440
386,550 330,802
Inventories
Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
Coal 16,655 20,408
Spare parts and other raw materials 45,561 36,376
62,216 56,784
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21. Property, plant and equipment

Right-of- Right-of-
Furniture, use assets  Right-of-  use assets
Plantand fixturesand ~ Motor  Construction Leasehold use assets Plant and
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress land Buildings  machinery Total

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Group

Cost
At 1 January 2020 2144663 4,554,482 47,908 83284 1,385,748 502,350 130521 1,652,829 10,501,785
Additions 6311 19,921 32,058 28,063 1,631,686 27,906 10,943 - 1,756,888
Transfer 103,066 361,395 32 - (464,493) - - - -
Disposals/Written off (37,637)  (350,936) (190) (1,251) (4,241) - - (5758)  (400,013)
Exchange difference - - (572) - (1,121) - - - (1,693)
At 31 December 2020 2216403 4,584,862 79,236 11009 2,547,579 530,256 141464 1647071 11,856,967
Additions 9,025 97,237 9,306 16212 1,028899 60,322 - - 1,221,001
Transfer 616,777 1,097,418 124 - (1,714319) - - - -
Disposals/Written off (143) (87,611) (540) (14913) - - - - (103,207)
Exchange difference - - (102) (1,402) (1377) (1,839 - - (4,720)
At 31 December 2021 2,842,062 5,691,906 88,024 109,993 1,860,782 588,739 141,464 1,647,071 12,970,041

Group

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020 (499,617)  (972,684) (26,787) (25,625) - (87,619) (39972)  (555716)  (2,208,020)
Depreciation for the year (66,195  (237,501) (8,000) (9.420) - (11,065) (9,567) (71,398)  (413,146)
Disposals/Written off 3,646 77,614 142 1172 - - - 540 83114
Exchange difference - - 187 - - - - - 187
At 31 December 2020 (562,166) (1,132,571 (34,458) (33873) - (98,684) (49539)  (626,574) (2,537,865)
Depreciation for the year  (100,495) (252,830 (9,554) (12,270) - (11,988) (8,903) (60,703) (456,743)
Disposals/Written off 9 80,997 514 7,034 - - - - 88,554
Exchange difference - - 11 1,310 - - - - 1,321
At 31 December 2021 (662,652)  (1,304,404) (43,487) (37,799) - (110,672 (58,442)  (687,277) (2,904,733)

Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2020 (33991) (9,381) - 3) (16,435) - - - (59,810)
Impairment losses - (4,366) - - - - - - (4,366)
Impairment write-off 33,991 2,695 - - - - - - 36,686
At 31 December 2020 - (11,052) - 3) (16,435) - - - (27,490)
Impairment losses - - - - - - - - -
Impairment write-off - - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 - (11,052) - 3) (16,435) - - - (27,490)

Carrying values
At 31 December 2021 2179410 4,376,450 44,537 72,191 1,844,347 478,067 83,022 959,794 10,037,818
At 31 December 2020 1,654,237 3441239 44,778 76220 2,531,144 431,572 91,925 1020497 92915612
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Certain of the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s
buildings and machinery, which had an aggregate carrying amount of RMB3,808,406,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB2,251,557,000) (Note 31).

As at 31 December 2021, property certificates in respect of certain buildings with a carrying amount of
RMB105,076,000 (2020: RMB107,829,000) of the Group in the PRC have not been obtained. As advised by the
Group’s PRC legal advisor, management is of the opinion that the Group legally owns the rights to use these
properties.

Based on the impairment assessment carried out by management, no impairment loss was recognised for
the full year ended 31 December 2021. During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, an impairment of
RMB4,366,000 was recognised on certain plant and machinery in preparatory stages (Note 10) due to business
strategy changes of the Group’s Brazil subsidiaries.

Right-of-use assets leasehold land represent land use rights located in the PRC and comprised leasehold land
under medium-term lease. The land use rights in the PRC are amortised over the lease term of 30 to 50 years.

The Group leases certain buildings, plant and machinery under through sale and leaseback arrangements
amounting to RMB1,037,819,000 (2020: RMB1,104,443,000). The lease terms are three to five years. The Group
has options to purchase them without any extra charges and for a nominal amount at the end of the lease
terms. No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments. The Group's obligations are
secured by the lessors' title to the leased assets for such leases.

Investments in associates

The Group's interest in the associates is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there is no material interest in the associates.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the associates.

The following table summarises, in aggregate, the Group's share of profit of the Group’s individually immaterial
associates accounted for using the equity method:

31 December
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’000

Net loss and total comprehensive loss (534) (325)

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000

Group
Carrying value of individually immaterial associates, in aggregate 15,613 16,147
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Investments in joint ventures

Set out below is the joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December 2021, which are material to the Group.

Place of
business/country % of ownership
Name of entity of incorporation Principal activities interest
31 December
2021 2020
Zibo Green New Energy Co., Ltd. Zibo, the PRC ~ Operation of waste- to-energy 30 34.88
s R R IR A R A W plant
Hohhot Jiasheng New Energy Co., Ltd. Hohhot, the PRC Operation of waste- to-energy 30 30
WP RT VR 5 AT RV A PR A 7] plant

m The English names of those companies established in the PRC are for reference only and have not been registered.

The above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.
Summarised financial information for joint venture

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s investments in the material
joint ventures

Summarised balance sheet

Zibo Green New
Energy Co., Ltd.

31 December
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000

Current assets 203,650 158,580
Includes:

- Cash and cash equivalents 3,746 1,568
Current liabilities (823,812) (649,990)
Includes:

- Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) (598,583) (394,600)
Non-current assets 1,588,872 1,500,085
Non-current liabilities (524,830) (626,020)
Includes:

- Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) (497,800) (394,600)
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23. Investments in joint ventures (continued)

Hohhot Jiasheng New
Energy Co.,Ltd.

31 December
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’000

Current assets 125,585 93,140
Includes:

- Cash and cash equivalents 2,507 1,568
Current liabilities (343,729) (221,639)
Includes:

- Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) (327,055) (143,136)
Non-current assets 485,831 426,913
Non-current liabilities (133,632) (163,603)
Includes:

- Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) (125,000) (143,136)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Zibo Green New Hohhot Jiasheng New
Energy Co., Ltd. Energy Co.,Ltd.
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Revenue 154,636 157,120 68,207 72,307
Interest income 17 37 7 6
Expenses
Includes:
- Depreciation and amortisation 52,962 51,107 20,173 19,519
- Interest expense 58,484 35,680 14,787 15,759
Net (loss)/profit and total comprehensive (loss)/
income (33,346) (5,743) (756) 7,176

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the joint venture (and not
the Group's share of those amounts), adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the Group and
the joint venture.

The following table summarises, in aggregate, the Group's share of loss and other comprehensive income of
the Group’s individually immaterial joint ventures accounted for using the equity method:

31 December
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

Net loss and total comprehensive loss (368) (429)
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Investments in joint ventures (continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of the Group's

interest in joint venture, is as follows:

Zibo Green New

Hohhot Jiasheng New

Energy Co., Ltd. Energy Co., Ltd. Total
31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Net assets 443,880 382,655 134,055 134,811 577,935 517,466
Group's equity
interest 30.00% 34.88% 30.00% 30.00% - -
Group's share of
net assets 133,164 133,470 40,217 40,443 173,381 173,913
Fair value
adjustments 5,934 13,875 - - 5,934 13,875
Carrying value 139,098 147,345 40,217 40,443 179,315 187,788
Add: Carrying value of individually immaterial joint ventures, in aggregate 25,450 25,818
Carrying value Group's interest in joint ventures 204,765 213,606
Investments in subsidiaries
Company
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Beginning of financial year 1,798,280 1,790,879
Additions - 7,401
1,798,280 1,798,280

End of financial year
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Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The Group has the following significant subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Proportion
Proportion of  Proportion of  of ordinary
Country of ordinary ordinary shares held by
business/  shares directly shares held by non-controlling
Name® Principal activities incorporation held by parent  the Group interests
% % %
Gevin Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100 -
Hangzhou Jinjiang Investment Investment holding Hangzhou, 100 100 -
Co., Ltd. ("Jinjiang Investment”) the PRC
BN BB IR A 7]
Lin'an Jiasheng Environment Co., Ltd.  Investment holding Lin'an, the PRC 85.84 100 -
(“Lin'an Jiasheng")
W22 32 AR AT PR 2
Green Energy (Hangzhou) Project management, Hangzhou, 100 100 -
Corporate Management Co., Ltd. technical consulting and the PRC
(“Green Energy Hangzhou") advisory services.
Ge (M) L ERERAT
Hangzhou Kesheng Energy Operation of energy Hangzhou, 100 100 -
Technology Co., Ltd management consulting the PRC
("Hangzhou Kesheng") business
UM R B ARG IR A ]
Hangzhou Zhenghui Operation of engineering, Hangzhou, 100 100 -
Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. design, construction and the PRC
(“Hangzhou Zhenghui") project management.
BUMN IR i TR TR A
Jilin Xinxiang Co., Ltd. Operation of waste- to- Changchun, 80 80 20
(ilin Xinxiang") energy plant and sales of the PRC
HHEA IR A steam
Kunming Xinxingze Environment Operation of waste- to- Kunming, 90.59 98.33 1.67
Resources Industry Co., Ltd. energy plant and sales of the PRC
("Kunming Jinjiang") Ssteam
BHENFEHETE AR AR
Lianyungang Sunrise Environmental ~ Operation of waste- to- Lianyungang, 66 100 -
Protection Industry Co., Ltd. energy plant and sales of the PRC
("Lianyungang Sunrise”) steam
ERERNA R ARAR
Tianjin Sunrise Environmental Operation of waste- to- Tianjin, 100 100 -
Protection Science and Technology ~ energy plant and sales of the PRC
Development Co., Ltd. steam.
("Tianjin Sunrise”)
KA RN TEARB LR A R A 7]
Wuhan Green Energy Co., Ltd. Operation of waste- to- Wuhan, 100 100 -
("Wuhan Jinjiang") energy plant and sales of the PRC

BT SR A RAETRAT IR A 7]

steam.
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Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion
Proportion of  Proportion of  of ordinary
Country of ordinary ordinary  shares held by
business/  shares directly shares held by non-controlling
Name™ Principal activities incorporation held by parent  the Group interests
% % %
Wuhan Hankou Green Energy Operation of waste- to- Wuhan, 100 100 -
Co., Ltd. ("Hankou Jinjiang") energy plant and sales of the PRC
RN PG E AR R AR steam
Wuhu Llzhou Environment Energy Operation of waste- to- Wuhu, 100 100 -
Co., Ltd. ("Wuhu Jinjiang") energy plant and sales of the PRC
TR MA AR R AR steam.
Zhengzhou Xingjin Green Operation of waste- to- Zhengzhou, 100 100 -
Environment Energy Co., Ltd. energy plant and sales of the PRC
(“Zhengzhou Xingjin") steam
MR EIAREEFA R A
Zibo Green Energy Co.,Ltd. Operation of waste- to- Zibo, 100 100 -
(“Zibo Green Energy") energy plant and sales of the PRC
HESREARAEEA R AR steam
Gaomi Lilangmingde Co. Ltd Operation of waste-to Gaomi, 100 100 -
(“Gaomi Energy”) energy plant the PRC
F A WA R A IR AR
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Jinjiang Green Operation of waste- to- Hangzhou, 90 90 10
Energy Co., Ltd. (“Xiaoshan Jinjiang")  energy plant. the PRC
BUMGH L ARL AR B RE IR A R A 7
Qitaihe Green New Energy Co., Ltd. Operation of waste- to- Qitaihe, 100 100 -
("Qitaihe New Energy”) energy plant. the PRC
B ERRERT REVEA PR A 7]
Songyuan Xinxiang New Energy Co., ~ Operation of waste- to- Songyuan, 95 95 5
Ltd. (“Songyuan Xinxiang") energy plant. the PRC
WRIRE R IR 2
Suihua Green New Energy Co., Ltd. Operation of waste- to- Suihua, 100 100 -
(“Suihua New Energy”) energy plant. the PRC
TR IR IR A 7]
Wenling Green New Energy Co., Ltd. ~ Operation of waste- to- Wenling, 100 100 -
(“Wenling Green Energy”) energy plant the PRC
IR R REHTREIR G IR 2 7]
Wenling Solid Waste Treatment Co.,, ~ Operation of solid waste Wenling, 51 51 49
Ltd. ("Wenling Solid") treatment plant the PRC
TR SRR PR A IR A T
Yinchuan Zhongke Environmental Operation of waste- to- Yinchuan, 96.92 100 -
Electrical Co., Ltd. energy plant. the PRC

("Yinchuan Zhongke")
RN R IRA R
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Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion
Proportion of  Proportion of  of ordinary
Country of ordinary ordinary  shares held by
business/  shares directly shares held by non-controlling
Name™ Principal activities incorporation held by parent  the Group interests
% % %
Yunnan Green Energy Co., Ltd. Operation of waste- to- Kunming, 89 89 1
("Yunnan Energy”) energy plant the PRC
RSO RIEARA
Zhejiang Zhuiji Bafang Thermal Operation of thermal Zhuji, 100 100 -
Power Co. Ltd. (“Zhuji Bafang *) power plant. the PRC
WL 8\ i IR SR A )
Kunshan Jinkangrui Environmental Waste resource recycling Kunshan, 100 100 -
Protection Technology Co., Ltd. projects the PRC
("Jinkangrui Technology”)
R REA G IR A A
Ecogreen Energy Gurgaon Operation of waste- to- Gurgaon, 99.99 99.99 0.01
Faridabad Private Limited energy plant India
Ecogreen Energy Gwalior Operation of waste- to- Gwalior, 99.99 99.99 0.01
Private Limited energy plant India
Ecogreen Energy Lucknow Operation of waste- to- Lucknow, 99.99 99.99 0.01
Private Limited energy plant India

M The English names of those companies established in the PRC are for reference only and have not been registered.
Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP for consolidation purposes.

Investment property

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Group
Cost
Beginning of financial year 27,618 28,976
Exchange difference (1,196) (1,358)
End of financial year 26,422 27,618
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year (1,342) 1,771)
Depreciation for the year (898) (937)
Exchange difference 693 1,366
End of financial year (1,547) (1,342)
Carrying amount
End of financial year 24,875 26,276

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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Investment property (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the details of the Group's investment property are as follows:

Location Description/existing use Tenure
2 Venture Drive Commercial 99-year leasehold commencing
#15-17, #15/18, #15/19 from 10 June 2013.

Vision Exchange, Singapore
Singapore 159936

The property rental income from the Group’s investment property leased out under operating lease
amounted to approximately RMB335,000 (2020: RMB266,000). Direct operating expenses (including repairs
and maintenance) arising from rental-generating investment property amounted to approximately RMB38,000
(2020: RMB39,000).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain of the Group’s borrowings were secured by the Group's investment
property (Note 30).

The fair value of the investment property is assessed to be RMB25,477,000 (2020: RMB26,630,000).

The Group engaged independent valuer who has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the fair
value measurement of the properties in the relevant locations to determine the fair value of the land and
buildings. The valuations were made at year end on the basis of direct comparison with recent transactions of
comparable properties within the vicinity and open market value.

The Group classified fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the nature and
complexity of the significant inputs used in making the measurement. As at end of 31 December 2021, the fair
value measurements of the Group's investment property is classified within Level 3 (2020: Level 3) of the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfers between different levels during the year.

Management considers that certain unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Group's
investment property are sensitive to the fair value measurement. The following information is relevant for the
Group'’s investment property:

Significant
unobservable
Name of property input(s) Range Sensitivity
Vision Exchange Price per square RMB108,000 - Any significant isolated increase/
Commercial units metre of strata RMB132,000 (decrease) would result in a
floor area significantly higher/ (lower) fair
(2020: RMB113,000 - value measurement.
RMB138,000)

Leases - The Group as a lessee

Nature of the Group's leasing activities

Leasehold land

The Group has made an upfront payment to secure the right-of-use of the land located in the PRC under
medium-term lease. The land use rights in the PRC were amortised over the lease term of 30 to 50 years.
These leasehold land is recognised within Property, plant and equipment (Note 21).

There are no externally imposed covenant on these lease arrangements.
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Leases - The Group as a lessee (continued)

Buildings

The Group leases office space for the purpose of back office operations.
Plant and machinery

The Group leases plant and machinery to render logistic services and leases
and waste management divisions.
(a) Carrying amounts

ROU assets classified within Property, plant and equipment

equipment for

the construction

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Leasehold land 478,067 431,572
Buildings 83,022 91,925
Plant and machinery 959,794 1,020,497
1,520,883 1,543,994
(b) Depreciation charge during the year
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Leasehold land 11,988 11,065
Buildings 8,903 9,567
Plant and machinery 60,703 71,398
Total 81,594 92,030
(0) Interest expense
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2,691 26,025
(d) Lease expense not capitalised in lease liabilities
Lease expense - short-term leases 20,890 17,784
(e) Total cash outflow for all the leases (including short-term leases) in 2021 was RMB60,201,000 (2020:
RMB392,988,000).
) Addition of ROU assets during the financial year 2021 was RMB60,322,000 (2020: RMB38,849,000).

Lease liabilities

Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

Current
Lease liabilities 5,035 39,194
Non-current
Lease liabilities 2,457 5,482

7,492 44,676

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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Lease liabilities (continued)
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Group
2021 2020

Maturity analysis:
Year 1
Year 2
Year 3

Less: Unearned Interest

Leases - The Group as a lessor

Nature of the Group's leasing activities - Group as a lessor

RMB’000 RMB’000

5218 40,617
2,495 4,013
- 1,663
7,713 46,293
(221) (1,617)
7,492 44,676

The Group has leased out their owned investment property to third parties for monthly lease payments. This
lease is classified as an operating lease because the risk and rewards incidental to ownership of the assets are

not substantially transferred.

Rental income from investment property are disclosed in Note 25.

Undiscounted lease payments from the operating leases to be received after the reporting date are as follows:

2021 2020

Less than one year

One to two years

Two to three years

Total undiscounted lease payment

Intangible assets

RMB’000 RMB’000

474 130
198 130

- 54
672 314

Group
31 December
2021 2020

Software (Note (a))
Service concession arrangement (Note (b))

RMB’000 RMB’000

8,993 7,861
4,280,081 3,874,688
4,289,074 3,882,549
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Intangible assets

(@)

Software
Group
2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
Beginning of financial year 25,605 23,761
Additions 3,743 1,844
End of financial year 29,348 25,605
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year (17,744) (13,337)
Amortisation (2,611) (4,407)
End of financial year (20,355) (17,744)
Net book value 8,993 7,861
Service concession arrangement

Group
2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000
Cost
Beginning of financial year 4,294,085 3,856,607
Additions 582,034 437,478
End of financial year 4,876,119 4,294,085
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year (419,397) (281,088)
Amortisation (146,439) (138,309)
End of financial year (565,836) (419,397)
Accumulated impairment
Beginning of financial year - -
Impairment losses (30,202) -
End of financial year (30,202) -
Net book value 4,280,081 3,874,688

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited

The Group entered into service concession agreements with the local government authorities (the “Grantors”),
pursuant to the design, construction, operation and maintenance of waste-to-energy plants during the
concession period ranging from 21 years to 30 years, starting from the commencement date of commercial
operation.

Service concession construction revenue (as detailed in Note 4) recorded in 2021 and 2020 represents the
revenue recognised during the construction stage of the service concession period.
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Intangible assets (continued)

The right that the Group has received to charge for the sale of electricity and waste treatment has been
recognised as an intangible asset at the fair value of the construction services provided and is amortised over
the operating period of the waste-to-energy plant on a straight-line basis from the date on which the waste-to-
energy plant commences operation.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was unable to reach mutual agreement with
the local government regarding compensation for the cessation of a BOT project in India, and had notified the
local government of its intention to initiate arbitration proceedings in connection therewith and has applied to
the High Court of Delhi to appoint arbitrators.

The Group made a commercial decision to cease operations of this BOT project due to its long-term negative
cashflow arising from the small scale of operations in the Gwalior region, the back-loading of waste treatment
fees to after commencement of operations of the waste treatment facility, the high cost of waste collection
and transportation and certain cash deductions made by the local government due to inadequate coverage
of waste collection. This resulted in the local government taking over the waste collection and transportation
operations and project assets and later enforcing the deposit for performance bond relating to this BOT
project.

Given the uncertainty in terms of the timeline and outcome of such arbitration proceedings, an impairment
loss of RMB30,202,000 (2020: nil) on the intangible assets relating to the BOT project was recognised. In
addition, an impairment loss of RMB10,899,000 was recognised in connection with the enforcement of the
deposit for performance bond relating to this project (refer to Note 14).

The Group's intangible assets amounting to RMB1,325,563,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB2,464,435,000) were pledged as collaterals against general loan facilities granted to the Group (Note 30).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has RMB744,627,000 (2020: RMB254,838,000) of contract assets pertaining
to construction contracts in progress within the intangible assets balance. Significant changes during the
reporting period was due to construction contracts in progress during the year.

Management estimates the loss allowance on such contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, taking
into account the historical default experience and the future prospects of the construction and waste to
energy industry. Based on the assessment, management is of the view that the ECL is insignificant.

Trade and other payables

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade payables 627,958 579,936 - -
Bills payables 106,000 106,786 - -
Construction and equipment payables 1,100,455 658,217 - -
Deposits received from customers 38,437 146,406 - -
Accrued payroll and welfare 89,990 88,327 - -
Accrued expenses 4,812 5,086 - -
Others 110,104 105,878 10,505 8,969
Total trade and other payables 2,077,756 1,690,636 10,505 8,969

The credit period on purchases is 90 to 120 days (2020: 90 to 120 days). No interest is charged on the overdue
trade payables.

Included in deposits received from customers are contract liabilities for waste treatment and service contracts
amounting to RMB35,591,000 (2020: RMB145,310,000) (Note 4).
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Borrowings
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
Guaranteed borrowings 2,498,640 2,575,438 1,495,364 2,236,791
Secured and guaranteed bank borrowings 3,456,713 3,735,436 - -
Secured bank borrowings 719,293 117,863 519,269 -
Secured and guaranteed other borrowings 3,102,633 1,578,539 - -
Secured other borrowings 434,254 672,064 - -
Unsecured borrowings 269,850 - - -

10,481,383 8,679,340 2,014,633 2,236,791

The borrowings comprise:

- Fixed-rate borrowings 2,085,719 836,843 676,366 -
- Variable-rate borrowings 8,395,664 7,842,497 1,338,267 2,236,791
10,481,383 8,679,340 2,014,633 2,236,791
Total borrowings 10,481,383 8,679,340 2,014,633 2,236,791
Less: Amount due within one year shown under
current liabilities (4,706,413)  (2,588,705)  (2,014,633) (913,486)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 5,774,970 6,090,635 - 1,323,305

The carrying amount of borrowings approximate their fair value. The borrowings are secured by the pledge
of certain property, plant and equipment, trade receivables, shares of a subsidiary, bank deposits, investment
property, right-of-use assets and intangible assets.

Included in the above are borrowings with an aggregate principal amount of RMB840,000,000 (2020:
RMB100,000,000) from subsidiaries of Zheneng Group, namely Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Finance Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai Puneng Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.

Included in the borrowings as at 31 December 2021 is an amount of RMB1,312,828,000 under a syndicated
term loan facility arranged by Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (“the agent”) of up to
US$270,000,000 (the “Facility”), which requires that Zheneng Group maintains more than 25% shareholding
interest in the Company.

Under the terms of the Facility, the Company has to ensure that the ratio of its consolidated net debt to
consolidated total equity does not exceed 125% for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
(“Financial Covenant”). The aforesaid ratio had exceeded 125% for the financial year resulting in non-
compliance by the Company of the Financial Covenant.

Due to the non-compliance of the Financial Covenant, the banks are contractually entitled to request
for immediate repayment of the outstanding borrowings with covenant breaches. Accordingly, the non-
current portion of the borrowings with covenant breaches of the Group and the Company amounting to
RMB1,184,002,000 (2020: RMB15,000,000) and RMB1,114,002,000 (2020: nil) respectively were reclassified
as current liabilities. Under the terms of the Facility, the agent of the Facility may, at its discretion and if so
directed by lenders representing two-thirds of the total commitments under the Facility, by notice call for
repayment ahead of the stipulated repayment dates. As of the date of this report, the Group has not received
any notice for the accelerated repayment from the agent.

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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Group
Type of borrowings Guaranteed/secured by 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Guaranteed borrowings Guarantees mainly from subsidiaries of 2,498,640 2,575,438
the Group
2,498,640 2,575,438
Secured and guaranteed bank Guarantees mainly from subsidiaries of
borrowings the Group and the following:
Certain property, plant and equipment 460,000 499,790
(Note 21)
Certain trade receivables (Note 14) 748,644 445,189
Certain trade receivables (Note 14), 1,081,647 1,198,085
property, plant and equipment (Note 21)
Certain service concession receivables 165,000 195,000
(Note 18) and intangible assets (Note 28)
Certain service concession receivables 911,422 1,237,372
(Note 18), intangible assets (Note 28) and
receivables (Note 14)
Certain shares of a subsidiary with 90,000 160,000
carrying value of RMB1,620,230,000
3,456,713 3,735,436
Secured bank borrowings Certain bank deposits held by the Group 658,897 100,000
(Note 13)
Certain trade receivables (Note 14) 43,972 -
Group'’s investment property (Note 25) 16,424 17,863
719,293 117,863
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30. Borrowings (continued)

Group
Type of borrowings Guaranteed/secured by 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Secured and guaranteed other Guarantees mainly from subsidiaries of
borrowings the Group and the following:
Certain property, plant and equipment 1,031,512 1,289,501
(Note 21)
Certain trade receivables (Note 14), 955,291 -
property, plant and equipment (Note 21)
Certain intangible Asset (Note 28) 37,254 -
Certain trade receivables (Note 14) 278,029 289,038
Certain trade receivables (Note 14), 260,547 -
property, plant and equipment (Note 21),
and certain shares of a subsidiary with
carrying value of RMB136,336,000
Certain shares of a subsidiary with 540,000 -
carrying value of RMB36,790,000
3,102,633 1,578,539
Secured other borrowings Property, plant and equipment (Note 21) 431,504 658,564
Pledge of certain electricity tariffs 2,750 13,500
receivables (Note 14)
434,254 672,064
Company
Type of borrowings Guaranteed/secured by 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Guaranteed borrowings Guarantees mainly from subsidiaries of 1,495,364 2,236,791
the Group
1,495,364 2,236,791
Secured bank borrowings Certain bank deposits held by the Group 519,269 -
(Note 13)

519,269 -

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s and Company’s borrowings are as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Effective interest rate:
- Fixed-rate borrowings 0.9% to 2.25% to 0.9% to NA
10.25% 10.75% 3.50%
- Variable-rate borrowings 2.86% to 2.05% to 2.86% to 2.90% to
6.54% 8.54% 2.90% 4.86%

778 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

1 January Financing Other Exchange 31 December
2021 cash flows changes™  difference 2021
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Borrowings 8,679,340 1,838,340 17,428 (53,725) 10,481,383
Lease liabilities 44,676 (35,274) (1,910) - 7,492
8,724,016 1,803,066 15,518 (53,725) 10,488,875
1 January Financing Other Exchange 31 December
2020 cash flows changes® difference 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
Borrowings 6,039,296 2,831,201 5,971 (197,128) 8,679,340
Lease liabilities 375,200 (366,963) 36,439 - 44,676
Notes payable 1,423,212 (1,415,900) (27,721) 20,409 -
7,837,708 1,048,338 14,689 (176,719) 8,724,016

m Other changes include interest accruals and payments

The cash flows make up the net amount of proceeds and repayments of the financial liabilities presented
under the financing activities in the statement of cash flows.

The carrying amount of borrowings approximate their fair value.

Deferred income taxes

Profit
recognised on
construction

services
Undistributed Fair value provided
earnings adjustmenton  Accelerated  under service
of PRC acquisition of tax concession
subsidiaries subsidiaries depreciation arrangements Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
At 1 January 2020 59,939 4,207 249,366 169,234 482,746
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss
(Note 11) (208) (325) 14,984 45,195 59,646
At 31 December 2020 59,731 3,882 264,350 214,429 542,392
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss
(Note 11) - (134) 30,449 46,246 76,561
At 31 December 2021 59,731 3,748 294,799 260,675 618,953
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Deferred income taxes (continued)

At 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately RMB 754,036,000 (2020:
RMB657,029,000), available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of those tax losses due to no certainty of the tax losses being utilised.

The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following years:

Group
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000

2021 - 19,242
2022 20,384 20,514
2023 81,281 95,834
2024 135,519 156,362
2025 330,099 365,077
2026 186,753 -

754,036 657,029

At 31 December 2021, the Group has deductible temporary differences of RMB187,571,000 (2020:
RMB138,743,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences due to uncertainty of the deductible temporary differences being utilised.

At 31 December 2021, temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised are RMB5,016,030,000 (2020: RMB4,535,903,000). No liability
has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences, and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Share capital

Group and Company

Number of

ordinary Share

shares capital
‘000 RMB’000
As at 1 January 2020 1,454,025 96
Issued during the year - -
At 31 December 2020 1,454,025 96
Issued during the year - -
At 31 December 2021 1,454,025 96

Fully paid ordinary shares have a par value of US$0.00001 (2020: US$0.00001), carry one vote per share and
carry a right to dividend, amounting to equivalent RMB96,000 (2020: RMB96,000).

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited
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Other reserves

Group Company
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Capital reserve (i) 393,694 393,694 1,057,112 1,057,112
Merger reserve (ii) (67,642) (67,642) - -
Statutory surplus reserve (iii) 191,243 155,288 - -
Foreign currency translation reserve (iv) (57,577) (46,405) - -
Other reserve (v) 56,172 56,172 - -
515,890 491,107 1,057,112 1,057,112
(i) Capital reserve
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
At 1 January and 31 December 393,694 393,694 1,057,112 1,057,112

(i)

(iii)

The Group's capital reserve represents deemed capital contribution. The Company’s capital reserve
represents waiver of debts by its subsidiaries and deemed capital contribution.

Merger reserve

Group
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
At 1 January and 31 December (67,642) (67,642)

Merger reserves represents the differences between the existing book values of the net assets of the
subsidiaries under common control and the consideration paid when the Group acquired subsidiaries
from the then ultimate holding company or ultimate shareholder using the merger accounting method.

Statutory surplus reserve

Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 155,288 118,271
Appropriation to reserves 35,955 37,017
At 31 December 191,243 155,288

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and the Articles
of Association of the subsidiaries established in PRC, the PRC subsidiaries are required to make
appropriation from profit after tax to a statutory surplus reserve at rate determined by their respective
Board of Directors before distributing dividends to equity holders.
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Other reserves (continued)

(iv)  Foreign currency translation reserve

Group
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
At 1 January (46,405) (8,575)
Other comprehensive income (11,172) (37,830)
At 31 December (57,577) (46,405)

Foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the
Group's presentation currency.

(v) Other reserve

Group
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000

At 1 January and 31 December 56,172 56,172

Other reserve represents the difference between the carrying amount of the non-controlling interest
and the consideration arising from equity transactions with the non-controlling shareholders without
loss of control in the subsidiaries by the Group.

Deferred grant

Group
2021 2020

RMB'000 RMB'000
Grant received in advance 381,085 363,058
Analysed as:
- Current liabilities 17,065 17,080
- Non-current liabilities 364,020 345,978

381,085 363,058

Assets related grants are recognised over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Income related
grants are recognised on a systematic basis over the periods to match the related costs.

Other tax liabilities

Group
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Value added tax 41,540 59,803
Others 19,556 19,067
61,096 78,870

Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited



36.

37.

38.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group has contractual obligations to maintain the facilities
to a specified level of serviceability and/or to restore the plants to a specified condition before they are
handed over to the grantors at the end of the service concession periods. These contractual obligations except
for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured at the best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The future expenditure on
these maintenance and restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation basis
is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where appropriate.

Movements in provision and the balances of the liabilities for major overhauls are as follows:

Group
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000

At beginning of the year 23,053 19,032
Provision made during the year 1,773 4,021
At end of the year 24,826 23,053
Contingencies

Contingent liabilities

Legal claims were lodged by certain third parties against the Group’s subsidiaries, in relation to alleged non-
performance under sales or service contracts.

As at 31 December 2021, no contingent liabilities were provided, as management assessed that it is not
practical to estimate the potential effect of the ongoing litigation and legal advice indicates that it is not
probable that a significant liability will arise.

As at 31 December 2020, contingent liabilities of RMB2,400,000 were provided, as management assessed that
the probability of litigation settlement for relevant cases was not remote with reference to the preliminary
decision the court made. The judgements on the cases were issued during the financial year ended 31
December 2021 and all liabilities were settled during the year.

Commitments
Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial statements,
excluding those relating to investments in associates (Note 22) and investments in joint ventures (Note 23), are
as follows:

Group
31 December
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

Property, plant and equipment 816,755 1,475,812
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Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management strategy seeks to minimise any adverse effects from the
unpredictability of financial markets on the Group’s financial performance. The Group’s risk management
policies and guidelines are set to monitor and control the potential material adverse impact of these
exposures. The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the objectives and underlying principles of
financial risk management for the Group.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

The Group collects most of its revenue and incurs most of its expenditures in RMB. Cash and
cash equivalents of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB and United States Dollar (“USD").
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy as management considers
the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group to be limited. However, the Group monitors
currency risk exposure by periodically reviewing foreign currency exchange rates and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company's monetary assets and liabilities which are
significant at the reporting date that are denominated in currencies other than the respective
functional currency of the group entities are as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Financial assets
usD 106,548 414,727 95,036 109,917

Financial liabilities
usD 2,159,512 2,236,791 2,019,870 2,236,791

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’'s and Company’'s sensitivity to a 10% increase and
decrease in the RMB against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10% against the functional currency of each group
entity, profit before tax will increase/ (decrease) by:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ushD 205,296 182,206 192,483 212,687

If the relevant foreign currency strengthens by 10% against the functional currency of each group
entity, profit before tax will decrease/ (increase) by the same amount above.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and Company’s
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's
exposure to fair value interest rate risk related primarily to its fixed-rate borrowings (Note 30)
and lease liabilities. The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to its
variable-rate borrowings (Note 30).

The Group and Company currently do not have a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk
and has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge against the exposure. However, the
Group and Company will monitor the interest rate exposure and manage interest cost using a
mix of fixed and variable-rate debts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based on the exposure to interest rates
for the variable-rate borrowings and bank balances at the end of the reporting period and the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the year and held constant throughout the
reporting period in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates on variable-rate borrowings.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower, the decrease/increase on profit before tax
will be:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Profit before tax 41,978 39,212 6,691 11,184
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Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties of the Group is arising from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Customers of the Group mainly consists of regional
state-owned grid companies, local government and certain manufacturing companies whose production
relies on the supply of electricity and steam by the Group. In this regard, management considers the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has trade balances due from 4 customers (2020: 4) who individually
accounted for 5% or more of the total balance of trade receivables amounted to RMB687,033,000 (2020:
RMB367,104,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has trade balances due from 3 related parties (2020: 2) who
individually accounted for 5% or more of the total balance of trade receivables amounted to
RMB164,106,000 (2020: RMB142,992,000).

The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any
group of counterparties having similar characteristics except that the Company has significant non-
trade receivables from 10 subsidiaries (2020: 8 subsidiaries) amounting to RMB2,112,195,000 (2020:
RMB2,406,240,000) as at 31 December 2021. This represents advances made to the subsidiaries for
purpose of capital expenditure fundings and working capital to other subsidiaries of the Group. Other
than the above, there are no other significant receivables in the Company as at 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Receivables under service concession arrangements relate to consideration recoverable from certain
governing bodies and agencies of the government of the PRC in respect of construction of WTE plants
and are generally considered as having low risk of default.

Trade receivables and trade related amounts due from related parties and non-controlling
interests

Loss allowance for trade receivables and trade related amounts due from related parties and non-
controlling interests have been measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Trade and bill receivables
are mainly amounts due from local electrical power grid companies and local government sectors for
the sale of electricity and waste treatment. Trade related amounts due from related parties and non-
controlling interests are mainly for the sale of waste treatment.

The ECL on trade balances are estimated by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an
analysis of the debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forward-looking macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the debtors to
settle the receivables.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
current reporting period.

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

None of the trade receivables that have been written off are subject to enforcement activities.
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(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and trade related amounts due from related parties and non-controlling
interests (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables and bills receivable at the end of the reporting
period, net of loss allowance for trade and bill receivables:

Group
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’'000
Current 1,628,741 941,681
Within 60 days 48,813 72,329
60 days to 90 days 37,883 29,273
90 days to 120 days 27,949 27,323
Over 120 days 236,396 171,883

1,979,782 1,242,489

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables due from related parties at the end of the
reporting period

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Current 92,194 34,524
0 to 90 days 2,078 11,858
91 to 120 days 6,259 7,729
Over 120 days 107,725 110,599
208,256 164,710

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the trade receivables have been assessed
based on lifetime ECL individually and loss allowance was recognised for trade receivables that are
credit impaired.

Other receivables and non-trade related amounts due from related parties and non-controlling
interests

For purpose of impairment assessment, other receivables and non-trade related amounts due from
related parties and non-controlling interests are considered to have low credit risk as they are not due
for payment at the end of the reporting period and there has been no significant increase in the risk of
default on the receivables since initial recognition.

In determining the ECL, management has estimates the loss allowance on other receivables and non-
trade related amounts due from related parties and non-controlling interests at an amount equal to
12-month ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the financial position of the
counterparties, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of
the industry in which the debtors operate, in estimating the probability of default of each these financial
assets and the loss upon default.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for other receivables.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, other receivables and non-trade related

amounts due from related parties and non-controlling interests have been assessed based on
12-month ECL individually and are not credit impaired.
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Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's and the Company's credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits is
limited because the counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group develops and maintains its credit risk grading to categorise exposures according to their
degree of risk of default. The Group uses its trading records to rate its major customers and other
debtors. The Group does not hold any collateral to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets.

The Group’s current credit risk framework comprises the following categories:

Basis for recognising
expected credit losses
Category Description (ECL)

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does | 12-month ECL
not have any past-due amounts.

Doubtful Amount is more than 90 days past due for corporate/ | Lifetime ECL - not
individual debtors, more than 180 days past due for | credit-impaired
amounts due from related parties and more than 3
years past due for government debtors or there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

In default Amount is more than 1 year past due for corporate/ | Lifetime ECL - credit-
individual debtors, more than 2 years past due for | impaired

amounts due from related parties and more than
5 years past due for government debtors or there is
evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired.

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in | Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery.

The assessment of the credit quality and exposure to credit risk of the Group’s and Company's trade
and other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling interests, related parties and subsidiaries,
service concession receivables and contract assets have been disclosed in Notes 14, 15, 16, 17, 18
and 4 to the financial statements respectively. The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s
financial assets and contract assets, as well as maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating
grades:
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(b)

Credit risk (continued)
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The movements in credit loss allowance are as follows:

Trade Other
receivables receivables Total
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Group
2021
Balance at 1 January 2021 24,990 31,457 56,447
Loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during
the year 5,918 10,899 16,817
Balance at 31 December 2021 30,908 42,356 73,264
2020
Balance at 1 January 2020 13,900 18,141 32,041
Loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during
the year 11,090 13,316 24,406
Balance at 31 December 2020 24,990 31,457 56,447
Internal Gross Net
credit 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
Note rating lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
Group RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2021
Trade and bills receivables 14 (i) Lifetime ECL 2,010,690 (30,908) 1,979,782
(simplified
approach)
Other receivables 14 Performing  12-month ECL 406,102 (42,356) 363,746
Trade amounts due from 15 (i) Lifetime ECL 14,866 - 14,866
non- controlling interests (simplified
approach)
Non-trade amounts due from 15 Performing  12-month ECL 11,030 - 11,030
non-controlling interest
Trade amounts due from 16 (i) Lifetime ECL 208,256 - 208,256
related parties (simplified
approach)
Non-trade amounts due from 16 Performing  12-month ECL 510,720 - 510,720
related parties
Contract assets 4 (i) Lifetime ECL 17,832 - 17,832
(simplified
approach)
Service concession 18 Performing  12-month ECL 800,408 - 800,408
receivables
(73,264)
Company
2021
Amount due from 17 Performing 12-month ECL 2,116,567 - 2,116,567
subsidiaries
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Internal Gross Net
credit 12-monthor  carrying Loss carrying
Note rating lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
Group RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2020
Trade receivables 14 (i) Lifetime ECL 1,267,479 (24,990) 1,242,489
(simplified
approach)
Other receivables 14 Performing  12-month ECL 396,104 (31,457) 364,647
Trade amounts due from 15 (i) Lifetime ECL 21,084 - 21,084
non- controlling interests (simplified
approach)
Non-trade amounts due from 15 Performing  12-month ECL 11,030 - 11,030
non-controlling interest
Trade amounts due from 16 (i) Lifetime ECL 164,710 - 164,710
related parties (simplified
approach)
Non-trade amounts due from 16 Performing  12-month ECL 484,779 - 484,779
related parties
Contract assets 4 (i) Lifetime ECL 81,540 - 81,540
(simplified
approach)
Service concession 18 Performing  12-month ECL 698,986 - 698,986
receivables
(56,447)
Company
2020
Amount due from 17 Performing  12-month ECL 2,410,053 - 2,410,053
subsidiaries
(i) For trade related balances and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach in

IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit
losses on these items based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status
of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future
economic conditions. Notes 14, 15, 16 and 4 includes further details on the loss allowance for
these receivables and contract assets.

(0) Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group and the Company maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents
considered adequate by management to finance the Group’s and the Company's operations.
Management monitors the level of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan undertakings.
The Group and the Company also rely on borrowings and amounts due to related parties for liquidity
requirements. The directors believe the Group and the Company have sufficient resources to continue
its operational existence for the foreseeable future.
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39. Financial risk management (continued)

(@

Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s and Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. The undiscounted cash
flows column represents the possible future cash flows attributable to the instrument included in the
maturity analysis which is not included in the carrying amount of the financial liability on the statement
of financial position.

Weighted On Carrying
average demand, amount
effective  or less than 1 Undiscounted closing

Group interest rate year 1-5years >5 years cash flows balance
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
2021
Non-derivative financial
liahilities
Trade and other payables - 2,039,319 - - 2,039,319 2,039,319
Amounts due to related
parties - 55,680 - - 55,680 55,680
Borrowings 4.63 3,930,789 6,174,653 1,587,806 11,693,248 10,481,383
Lease liabilities 4.85 5,218 2,495 - 7,713 7,492
6,031,006 6,177,148 1,587,806 13,795,960 12,583,874
2020
Non-derivative financial
liahilities
Trade and other payables - 1,544,230 - - 1,544,230 1,544,230
Amounts due to related
parties - 91,056 - - 91,056 91,056
Borrowings 439 2,908,725 5,057,728 1,996,236 9,962,689 8,679,340
Lease liabilities 5.56 40,617 5,676 - 46,293 44,676
4,584,628 5,063,404 1,996,236 11,644,268 10,359,302
Company
2021
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables - 10,505 - - 10,505 10,505
Amounts due to subsidiaries - 85,884 - - 85,884 85,884
Borrowings 247 938,574 1,138,470 - 2,077,044 2,014,633
1,034,963 1,138,470 - 2,173,433 2,111,022
2020
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables - 8,969 - - 8,969 8,969
Amounts due to subsidiaries - 85,885 - - 85,885 85,885
Borrowings 3.65 953,193 1,395,829 - 2,349,022 2,236,791
1,048,047 1,395,829 - 2,443,876 2,331,645
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Financial risk management (continued)

(d)

(e)

Capital risk

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value. In
order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend
payments, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, obtain new borrowings or sell assets to
reduce borrowings. The Group’'s and the Company’s current strategy remains unchanged from the
previous financial year.

The Group monitors capital based on a net debt to total equity ratio. The net debt to total equity ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits. Total equity comprises share capital, share premium,
other reserves, retained profits/(accumulated losses) and non-controlling interests.

Group Company
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Net debt 9,275,348 8,075,415 1,919,488 2,126,508
Total equity 6,544,892 6,103,002 1,906,267 1,993,717
Net debt to equity ratio 142% 132% 101% 107%

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, as of 31 December 2021, the group is required to
comply with the following financial covenants:

- Net debt to equity ratio shall not at any time exceed 125% (2020: 145%);

- Earnings before interest and tax expense, depreciation and amortisation to interest expense
ratio shall not less than 2.75 times (2020: 3 times); and

- Tangible net worth shall not be less than RMB 5,500,000,000 (2020: RMB3,500,000,000).

Except for the borrowing facilities which require the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group's financial ratios as disclosed in Note 30, the Group and the Company are in compliance with all
externally imposed capital requirements for the financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis or using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions as input.

Management considers the carrying amounts of the other financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values at the
end of the reporting period.
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Financial risk management (continued)
(f) Financial instruments by category

The carrying amount of the different categories of financial instruments are as follows:

Group Company
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets at amortised cost 4,294,441 3,673,190 2,213,970 2,522,043
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 12,583,874 10,438,172 2,025,138 2,245,760

Segment information

The Executive Committee (“Exco”) is the Group's chief operating decision-maker. The Exco comprises the Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the heads of each business within each primary geographic
segment. Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Exco
that are used to make strategic decisions, allocate resources and assess performance.

The Exco considers the business from both a geographic and business segment perspective. Geographically,
management manages and monitors the business in the two primary geographic areas namely People's
Republic of China and the India. From a business segment perspective, management separately considers the
waste-to-energy project construction and operation and project technical and management service, equipment
selection and sale and EMC business in these geographic areas.

Specifically, the group’s reportable segment and operating segments are as follows:

(1) Waste-to-energy project construction and operation

Comprise sales of electricity and steam, waste treatment, construction services provided and financial
income under service concession.

(2) Project technical and management service, equipment selection and sale and EMC business

Comprise service income.
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40. Segment information (continued)
(a) Segment revenue and profit

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from continuing operations by
reportable and operating segment:

Project
technical and
management
Waste-to- service,
energy equipment
project selection
construction and sale
and and EMC
2021 operation business Total

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

Segment revenue

External revenue - non-related parties 3,596,312 400,218 3,996,530
External revenue - related parties (Note 4) 2,988 60,858 63,846
Inter-segment revenue - 503,858 503,858
3,599,300 964,934 4,564,234
Elimination - (503,858) (503,858)
Revenue 3,599,300 461,076 4,060,376
Segment profit 974,408 78,103 1,052,511
Government grants and value added tax refund 60,264 1,716 61,980
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (444) - (444)
Other gains relating to closure of WTE plant 2,750 - 2,750
Impairment loss on intangible assets (30,202) - (30,202)
Impairment loss on prepayments (71) - (71)
Loss on disposal of shares of joint venture (556)
Administrative expenses (233,372)
Foreign exchange gains 42,059
Other income 79,603
Loss allowance recognised on financial assets (16,817)
Finance costs (361,676)
Share of loss of associates (534)
Share of loss of joint ventures (11,931)
Profit before tax 583,300
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40. Segment information (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and profit (continued)

Project
technical and
management
Waste-to- service,
energy equipment
project selection
construction and sale
and and EMC
2020 operation business Total
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Segment revenue
External revenue - non-related parties 2,870,756 127,315 2,998,071
External revenue - related parties (Note 4) 1,518 85,075 86,593
Inter-segment revenue - 190,643 190,643
2,872,274 403,033 3,275,307
Elimination - (190,643) (190,643)
Revenue 2,872,274 212,390 3,084,664
Segment profit 809,500 82,992 892,492
Government grants and value added tax refund 74,986 1,366 76,352
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (52,055) - (52,055)
Compensation income on closure of WTE plant 21,026 - 21,026
Write-off of property, plant and equipment
upon closure of WTE plant (12,896) - (12,896)
Other gains relating to closure of WTE plant 4,155 - 4,155
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (4,366) - (4,366)
Impairment loss on prepayments (33,152) - (33,152)
Administrative expenses (252,518)
Foreign exchange gains 161,276
Other losses (2,553)
Other income 59,139
Loss allowance recognised on financial assets (24,406)
Finance costs (355,490)
Share of loss of associates (325)
Share of profit of joint ventures 1,004
Profit before tax 477,683
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40. Segment information (continued)
(b) Segment assets

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by reportable and operating segment.

Project
technical and
management
Waste-to- service,
energy equipment
project selection
construction and sale
and and EMC
operation business Total

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

2021

Segment assets 16,543,333 1,593,395 18,136,728
Unallocated 2,243,999
Consolidated total assets 20,380,727
2020

Segment assets 15,033,801 1,099,278 16,133,079
Unallocated 1,633,605
Consolidated total assets 17,766,684

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than investments in joint ventures and associates,
other tax recoverable, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and the non-trade related
balances due from related parties and non-controlling interests.

(c) Segment liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's liabilities by reportable and operating segment.

Project
technical and
management
Waste-to- service,
energy equipment
project selection
construction and sale
and and EMC
operation business Total

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

2021

Segment liabilities 11,938,893 1,046,589 12,985,482
Unallocated 850,353
Consolidated total liabilities 13,835,835
2020

Segment liabilities 10,246,973 628,891 10,875,864
Unallocated 787,818
Consolidated total liabilities 11,663,682

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than income tax liabilities, other tax liabilities,
dividend payable, deferred tax liabilities and the non-trade related balances due to related parties.
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The Group’s revenue from external customers and information about its segment assets (non-current

assets) by geographical location are detailed below:

Revenue
from external
customers
(including
related Non-current
parties) assets

2021
Based on location of customer
PRC

RMB’000 RMB’'000

3,909,722 14,829,441

India 130,200 213,088
Others 20,454 198,118
4,060,376 15,240,647
Revenue
from external
customers
(including
related Non-current
parties) assets
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
2020

Based on location of customer
PRC

India

Others

Information about major customers

Waste-to-energy project construction and services

2,988,856 13,569,716
84,856 257,254
10,952 190,753

3,084,664 14,017,723

Customers of the Group mainly consist of regional state-owned grid companies, local government
environmental sectors and certain manufacturing companies whose production relies on the supply of

electricity and steam by the Group.

In 2021 and 2020, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

Project technical and management services, equipment selection and sale and EMC business

In 2021 and 2020, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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Events occurring after balance sheet date

Subsequent to year end, as of the date of this report, the Group refinanced short-term borrowings amounting
to RMB247,363,000 by renewing the maturity date to another 12 months.

The Group has also secured additional credit facilities amounting to RMB1,343,000,000 with tenure ranging
from 1 to 13 years, inclusive of RMB460,000,000 and RMB369,000,000 for finance leases and project financing
respectively.

Business impact and financial implications of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
Pandemic

On 30 January 2020, the World Health Organisation announced the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") as
a global health emergency and has impacted adversely the economic activities globally, which included China
and other geographical regions where the Group operates.

In 2021, the COVID-19 situation in the PRC has been on a steady recovery trend. The resumption of work,
production, business and market activities has been accelerated. The Group’s WTE and other facilities in the
PRC are essential services and have remained operational in 2021.

As the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic gradually decreases, the amount of waste treated and steam supply
business increased 6.8% and 11.3% in 2021 as compared with the prior year.

In 2020, the Group had obtained RMB19,285,000 social security relief and RMB3,543,000 in various subsidies.
In 2021, the Group no longer enjoys the preferential policies for epidemic social security exemptions.

The Company and its subsidiaries have not exercised temporary relief, force majeure clauses or termination
of contractual obligations for material contracts nor faced any threats to its contractual rights or ability to fulfil
its obligations for material contracts as a result of the COVID-19 situation. There were no material contractual
terms that have been waived or newly imposed. The Company has not been in breach of any COVID-19
restrictions which may lead to penalties from the authorities.

New or revised accounting standards and interpretations

Below are the mandatory standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that have been
published, and are relevant for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and which
the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

The narrow-scope amendments to IFRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are
classified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting
period.

Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (e.g. the receipt
of a waver or a breach of covenant). The amendments also clarify what IFRS 1 means when it refers to the
‘settlement’ of a liability.

The amendments could affect the classification of liabilities, particularly for entities that previously considered
management’s intentions to determine classification and for some liabilities that can be converted into equity.

The Group does not expect any significant impact arising from applying these amendments.

Amendments IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)
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New or revised accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

The amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E) prohibits an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of PP&E any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the
asset for its intended use. It also clarifies that an entity is ‘testing whether the asset is functioning properly’
when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset. The financial performance of the asset is
not relevant to this assessment.

Entities must disclose separately the amounts of proceeds and costs relating to items produced that are not
an output of the entity’s ordinary activities.

The Group does not expect any significant impact arising from applying these amendments.

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: Onerous Contracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)

An onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract
reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the costs of fulfilling it and any
compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. The amendment to IAS 37 clarifies that the direct
costs of fulfilling a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling the contract and an allocation of
other costs directly related to fulfilling contracts.

The Group does not expect any significant impact arising from applying these amendments.
Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited on on 8 April 2022.
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As at 18 March 2022

Class of shares : Ordinary shares of US$0.00001 each

Authorised share capital : US$50,000.00 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of par value
US$0.00001 each

Issued and fully paid-up capital : Aggregate of US$10,000, RMB748,000,000 and S$1,510,857,322

Number of Ordinary Shares issued 1,454,024,700

Voting rights : One vote per share

The Company has no treasury shares and subsidiary holdings.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Number of Number of
Size of Shareholding Shareholders % Shares %
100 - 1,000 102 19.96 90,100 0.01
1,001 - 10,000 181 35.42 1,041,900 0.07
10,001 - 1,000,000 213 41.68 17,276,900 1.19
1,000,001 and above 15 2.94 1,435,615,800 98.73
511 100.00 1,454,024,700 100.00

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 18 MARCH 2022

Number of

No. Name of Shareholders Shares %
1. RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE.) LIMITED 556,926,151 38.30
2. UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 442,316,275 30.42
3. CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 220,387,500 15.16
4, DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 193,092,374 13.28
5. WANG YUANLUO 5,140,000 0.35
6. LIM & TAN SECURITIES PTE LTD 2,957,700 0.20
7. WANG RUIHONG 2,100,000 0.14
8. UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2,086,200 0.14
9. WANG WUZHONG 1,993,300 0.14
10.  PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 1,964,800 0.14
11.  OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 1,782,100 0.12
12. EHONGBIAO 1,260,000 0.09
13. XU YONGQIANG 1,260,000 0.09
14,  LIM PUAY TIANG 1,191,000 0.08
15. GOH BEE LAN 1,158,400 0.08
16.  IFAST FINANCIAL PTE. LTD. 615,700 0.04
17. MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (SINGAPORE) SECURITIES PTE LTD 615,000 0.04
18 ZHOU RONGQIN 500,000 0.03
19.  CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 417,000 0.03
20.  YANG LEIYUAN 401,000 0.03

Total 1,438,164,500 98.90

PERCENTAGE OF SHAREHOLDING IN PUBLIC’'S HANDS

11.73% of the Company's shares are held in the hands of public. Accordingly, the Company has complied with Rule
723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.
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As at 1 April 2022

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 1 APRIL 2022
(As recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders)

Direct Interest Deemed Interest®

No. of Shares %" No. of Shares %"

Zhejiang Energy Hong Kong Holding Limited® - - 430,000,000 29.57
Zheneng Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.® - - 430,000,000 29.57
Zhejiang Energy International Limited® - - 430,000,000 29.57
Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd.® - - 430,000,000 29.57
Win Charm Limited® - - 372,560,575 25.62
Hangzhou Zhengcai® - - 372,560,575 25.62
Jinjiang Group® - - 372,560,575 25.62
Dou Zhenggang® - - 372,560,575 25.62
Wei Xuefeng® - - 372,560,575 25.62
Zhejiang Hengjia® - - 372,560,575 25.62
Dou Baibing!" - - 372,560,575 25.62
Hangzhou Yande®? - - 372,560,575 25.62
Harvest Global Dynamic Fund SPC acting 214,000,000 14.72 - -

on behalf of and for the account of Harvest

Environmental Investment Fund SP(
Kung Chak Ming!'® 2,487,300 0.17 214,000,000 14.72
Jee Up Enterprises Limited®? - - 214,000,000 14.72
Huang Bohao!'® - - 214,000,000 14.72
Whitel Management Company Limited¥ 180,620,574 12.42 - -
Whitel International Management Holding - - 180,620,574 12.42

Limited®
HOPU USD Master Fund Ill, L.P.0% - - 180,620,574 12.42
HOPU Investments Co. Il Ltd"* - - 180,620,574 12.42
Fang Fenglei - - 180,620,574 12.42
Lau Teck Sien™ - - 180,620,574 12.42
AEP Investments (Mauritius) Limited> 81,478,351 5.60 - -

Notes:

(1)  Based on 1,454,024,700 Shares in issue as at 18 March 2022.

v
3

Deemed interests refer to interests determined pursuant to Section 4 of the Securities and Futures Act (“SFA”").

Zhejiang Energy Hong Kong Holding Limited (WiiLEeH & #EI A I A H]) is deemed to have an interest in 430,000,000 Shares
held by Raffles Nominees (Pte.) Limited.

Zhejiang Energy International Limited (#r{L#EJE E FxA IR A ®]) owns the entire issued and paid-up share capital of Zhejiang
Energy Hong Kong Holding Limited (#iT gl & itz kA IR A 7). Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd. (T4 sk HfT
/A +]) and Zheneng Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. (#&E#t A% A IR A ) own 60% and 40% of the equity interests in Zhejiang
Energy International Limited (WiiT. &85 E P BR A7), respectively. Zheneng Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. (#i&E ¥ A i BR A )
is 100% controlled by Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd. (#IiT & fgdidz A1 f 2 7). Zhejiang Provincial Energy Group
Co., Ltd. (#F YT AEIRERIG IR A T) is 100% controlled by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the People’s Government of Zhejiang Province (WiiT & A RBUM AT 557 I B & B 22 5142). Accordingly, each of Zhejiang
Energy International Limited (WiiTAEVEE AR A w]), Zheneng Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. (#rfie %t A=A R A 7)) and Zhejiang
Provincial Energy Group Co., Ltd. (WL REJRAERI AR A F]) are deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Zhejiang
Energy Hong Kong Holding Limited (WiiLREI & i1 A B A H]) has an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.
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Win Charm is deemed to have an interest in 328,365,000 Shares held by UOB Kay Hian Private Limited. Win Charm holds
approximately 50.0% of the voting shares in the issued and paid-up share capital of Jin Jiang Green Energy Limited (“Jinjiang
Green Energy”), which in turn is deemed to have an interest in 44,195,575 Shares held by UOB Kay Hian Private Limited.
Accordingly, Win Charm is also deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green Energy has an interest by
virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

Hangzhou Zhengcai holds 45.0% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Win Charm. Win Charm is deemed to have
an interest in the Shares held by Jinjiang Green Energy by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA - please refer to Note (5) above.
Accordingly, Hangzhou Zhengcai is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green Energy and Win Charm
have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

Jinjiang Group directly and indirectly (through its wholly-owned subsidiary Hangzhou Zhengcai) holds the entire issued and
paid-up share capital of Win Charm. Win Charm is deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by Jinjiang Green Energy by
virtue of Section 4 of the SFA - please refer to Note (5) above. Accordingly, Jinjiang Group is deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Jinjiang Green Energy and Win Charm have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

Dou Zhenggang holds approximately 46.63% of the registered capital of Jinjiang Group. Jinjiang Group is deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green Energy and Win Charm have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA - please
refer to Note (7) above. Accordingly, Dou Zhenggang is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green
Energy and Win Charm have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

Wei Xuefeng, who is Dou Zhenggang's spouse, holds the entire registered capital of Zhejiang Hengjia. Zhejiang Hengjia holds
approximately 27.04% of Jinjiang Group's registered capital. Jinjiang Group is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in
which Jinjiang Green Energy and Win Charm have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA - please refer to Note (7) above.
Accordingly, Wei Xuefeng is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green Energy and Win Charm have an
interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

Zhejiang Hengjia holds approximately 27.04% of Jinjiang Group’s registered capital. Jinjiang Group is deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green Energy and Win Charm have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA - please
refer to Note (7) above. Accordingly, Zhejiang Hengjia is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green
Energy and Win Charm have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

Dou Baibing, who is Dou Zhenggang's daughter, holds 90% of the registered capital of Hangzhou Yande. Hangzhou Yande
holds approximately 26.33% of Jinjiang Group’s registered capital. Jinjiang Group is deemed to have an interest in the Shares
in which Jinjilang Green Energy and Win Charm have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA - please refer to Note (7)
above. Accordingly, Dou Baibing is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green Energy and Win Charm
have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

Hangzhou Yande holds approximately 26.33% of Jinjiang Group's registered capital. Jinjiang Group is deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green Energy and Win Charm have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA - please
refer to Note (7) above. Accordingly, Hangzhou Yande is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Jinjiang Green
Energy and Win Charm have an interest by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

While Harvest Global Capital Investments (Cayman) Limited is the manager of the relevant fund, the investment committee
of the fund comprises a representative from the fund manager, and a representative from each of its two investors, being
Kung Chak Ming and Jee Up Enterprises Limited. Accordingly, each of Kung Chak Ming and Jee Up Enterprises Limited has
control over the business and affairs of Harvest Global Dynamic Fund SPC acting on behalf of and for the account of Harvest
Environmental Investment Fund SP (the “SPC"), including making investment and divestment decisions and voting the
securities and interests held by the SPC, including those in the Company. Pursuant to Section 4 of the SFA, each of Kung Chak
Ming and Jee Up Enterprises Limited is deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by the SPC. Huang Bohao is the sole
shareholder of Jee Up Enterprises Limited. Accordingly, each of Kung Chak Ming, Jee Up Enterprises Limited and Huang Bohao
is deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by the SPC by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

Whitel Management Company Limited is 100% owned by Whitel International Management Holding Limited. Whitel
International Management Holding Limited is in turn 100% owned by HOPU USD Master Fund lll, L.P. HOPU Investments
Co. lll Ltd is the general partner of HOPU USD Master Fund Ill, L.P., and each of Fang Fenglei and Lau Teck Sien is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of not less than 20% of the votes attached to the voting shares of HOPU Investments Co. llI
Ltd. Accordingly, each of Whitel International Management, HOPU USD Master Fund Ill, L.P., HOPU Investments Co. Ill Ltd,
Fang Fenglei and Lau Teck Sien may be deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by Whitel Management Company
Limited by virtue of Section 4 of the SFA.

The shares in AEP Investments (Mauritius) Limited corresponding to its investment in the Company are held by Asia
Environmental Partners, L.P. and its parallel fund, Asia Environmental Partners (PF1), L.P. (collectively, “AEP"). AEP's general
partner is Olympus Green Capital Partners, L.P., holding a 0.99% interest in AEP. AEP's limited partners are passive investors
consisting of pension funds, government entities, financial institutions, endowments and family offices from North America,
Asia, Europe and the Middle East (none of whom owns more than 1% of the Company on a fully diluted, look-through basis).
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Notice of
Annual General Meeting

Due to the COVID-19-related control and safe distancing measures put in place in Singapore, members of the
Company will not be able to attend the AGM in person. Please refer to the explanatory notes to this Notice of
AGM for further details.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM" or “Meeting"”) of Zheneng Jinjiang Environment
Holding Company Limited #gEHR LI A R A F (the “Company”) will be held at 1 Yinxiu Road, Level 19, Meeting
Room 1930, Tower A, Hangyue Commercial Center, Gongshu District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, People’s
Republic of China 310011 (WiiL4& i i HE8E X Fa 75 2% 15 Ao s Mk o0 5 A RS ABE 1981930 = (54%: 310011)) on
Monday, 25 April 2022 at 3.00 p.m. for the following purposes:-

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Statement and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the

financial year ended 31 December 2021 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.
(Resolution 1)

2. To re-elect the following Directors of the Company retiring pursuant to Article 127 of the Company’s Articles of
Association.
Mr Wang Ruihong (Resolution 2)
Mr Hee Theng Fong (Resolution 3)
Mr Tan Huay Lim (Resolution 4)

[See Explanatory Note (i)]

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of S$420,000 for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
(Resolution 5)

4, To re-appoint Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company's auditors and to authorise the Directors
to fix their remuneration.
(Resolution 6)

5. To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution, with or without
modifications:-

6. “THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF THE GENERAL MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS
That:-

(a) approval be and is hereby given for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual (“Chapter 9”) of
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST"), for the Company, its subsidiaries and
associated companies that are considered to be “entities at risk” (as that term is used in Chapter 9),
or any of them to enter into any of the transactions falling within the types of Mandated Transactions
described in the Appendix to the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 8 April 2022 (the “Appendix”)
with any party who is of the class of Mandated Interested Persons described in the Appendix, provided
that such transactions are made on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the review
procedures for such interested person transactions;

(b) the approval given in paragraph (a) above (the “IPT General Mandate”) shall, unless revoked or varied

by the Company in general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company; and
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(0) the Directors of the Company and/or any of them be and are and/or is hereby authorised to complete
and do all such acts and things (including executing such documents as may be required) as they and/
or he may consider expedient or necessary or in the interests of the Company to give effect to the
transactions contemplated and/or authorised by this Resolution.”

[See Explanatory Note (ii)]

(Resolution 7)

By Order of the Board of Directors

Wej Dongliang
Executive Chairman
8 April 2022

Explanatory Notes:-

0]

(if)

The Ordinary Resolution 3 proposed in item 2. above is to re-elect Mr Hee Theng Fong as a Director of the Company. Mr Hee
Theng Fong will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. He will be considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of
the Listing Manual.

The Ordinary Resolution 4 proposed in item 2. above is to re-elect Mr Tan Huay Lim as a Director of the Company. Mr
Tan Huay Lim will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and a member of the Nominating Committee. He will be considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of
the Listing Manual.

The profile of Mr Wang Ruihong, Mr Hee Theng Fong and Mr Tan Huay Lim can be found under the sections entitled “Board of
Directors” and “Supplemental Information on Director Seeking Re-election” of the Company’'s Annual Report for the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 (“Annual Report 2021").

The Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 6. above, if passed, is to authorise the interested person transactions as
described in Appendix to this Notice of Annual General Meeting and recurring in the year, and will empower the Directors to
do all acts necessary to give effect to the IPT General Mandate. This authority will, unless revoked or varied by the Company
in a general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company or the date by
which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier. Please refer to
the Appendix to this Notice of Annual General Meeting for more details.

Notes:-

1.

204

In respect of the AGM of the Company to be held on Monday, 25 April 2022 at 3.00 p.m. (Singapore time) at 1 Yinxiu Road,
Level 19, Meeting Room 1930, Tower A, Hangyue Commercial Center, Gongshu District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province,
People’s Republic of China 310011 (HFiT 4 b M 17 #E 5L X Fa 55 5 15 B ik A0 5 FAEARE 198619304 1% (E%i: 310011))
(and any adjournment thereof), notwithstanding the place in which the AGM is to be physically held, other than in respect
of the Chairman, Directors and/or representatives of the Company present at such location, the AGM is being convened,
and will be held, by way of electronic means pursuant to the Guidance on the Conduct of General Meetings Amid Evolving
COVID-19 Situation and checklist jointly issued by the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority, the Monetary Authority
of Singapore and Singapore Exchange Regulation on 13 April 2020 and updated on 27 April 2020, 22 June 2020, 1 October
2020 and 4 February 2022 which is based on the COVID-19 (Temporary Measures) (Alternative Arrangements for Meetings
for Companies, Variable Capital Companies, Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order 2020. Printed copies
of this Notice of AGM and the proxy form will not be sent to members. Instead, this Notice of AGM and the proxy form will
be sent to members by electronic means via publication on the Company’s website at http://en.znjjhj.com/info.html and the
SGXNet.
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The proceedings of this AGM will be broadcasted “live” through an audio-and-video webcast and an audio-only feed.
Members and investors holding shares in the Company through the Central Provident Fund (“CPF") or Supplementary
Retirement Scheme (“SRS") (“CPF/SRS investors”) who wish to follow the proceedings through a “live” webcast via their mobile
phones, tablets or computers or listen to the proceedings through a “live” audio feed via telephone must pre-register at
https://smartagm.sg/Zheneng]injiangAGM2022 (the “Pre-registration Website”) no later than 3.00 p.m. on Friday, 22 April
2022 (“Registration Cut-Off Time"). Following verification, an email containing instructions on how to access the “live”
webcast and audio feed of the proceedings of the AGM will be sent to authenticated members and CPF/SRS investors by
Saturday, 23 April 2022. Members and CPF/SRS investors who do not receive any email by 5.00 p.m. on Sunday, 24 April 2022,
but have registered by the Registration Cut-Off Time, should contact the Company at AGM.TeamE®@boardroomlimited.com.

Investors holding Shares through relevant intermediaries (as defined in Section 181 of the Companies Act 1967 of Singapore)
(“Investors”) (other than CPF/SRS investors) will not be able to pre-register at the Pre-registration Website for the “live”
broadcast of the AGM. An Investor (other than CPF/SRS investors) who wishes to participate in the “live” broadcast of the AGM
should instead approach his/her relevant intermediary as soon as possible in order for the relevant intermediary to make the
necessary arrangements to pre-register. The relevant intermediary is required to submit a consolidated list of participants
(setting out in respect of each participant, his/her name, email address and NRIC/passport number) to the Company's Share
Transfer Agent, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte. Ltd., via email to AGM.TeamE@boardroomlimited.com no later
than 3.00 p.m. on Friday, 22 April 2022.

Due to the various control and safe distancing measures put in place in Singapore to prevent the spread of
COVID-19, members will not be able to attend the AGM in person. A member will also not be able to vote online
on the resolutions to be tabled for approval at the AGM. A member (whether individual or corporate) must submit
his/her/its proxy form appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as his/her/its proxy to attend, speak and vote on
his/her/its behalf at the AGM if such member wishes to exercise his/her/its voting rights at the AGM. The Chairman
of the Meeting, as proxy, need not be a member of the Company. The accompanying proxy forms for the AGM will be
announced together with this Notice and may be accessed at the Company's website at http://en.znjjhj.com/info.html and on
the SGXNet.

Where a member (whether individual or corporate) appoints the Chairman of the Meeting as his/her/its proxy, he/she/it must
give specific instructions as to voting, or abstentions from voting, in respect of a resolution in the proxy form, failing which the
appointment of the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy for that resolution will be treated as invalid.

The proxy form is not valid for use by Investors and shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported to
be used by them. An Investor who wishes to vote should instead approach his/her relevant intermediary as soon as possible
to specify his/her voting instructions. A CPF/SRS investor who wishes to vote should approach his/her CPF Agent Bank or SRS
Operator at least 7 working days before the date of the AGM to submit his/her voting instructions.

The proxy form must be submitted to the Company in the following manner:

(a) if submitted by post, be lodged at the office of the Company’s Share Transfer Agent, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory
Services Pte. Ltd., at 1 Harbourfront Avenue #14-07, Keppel Bay Tower, Singapore 098632; or

(b) if submitted electronically, be submitted via email to the Company's Share Transfer Agent at
AGM.TeamE@boardroomlimited.com.

in either case, not less than 72 hours before the time appointed for the AGM.

A member who wishes to submit the proxy form must first download, complete and sign the proxy form, before submitting it
by post to the address provided above, or before scanning and sending it by email to the email address provided above.

In view of the current COVID-19 situation and the related safe distancing measures which may make it difficult for
members to submit completed proxy forms by post, members are strongly encouraged to submit completed proxy
forms electronically via email.

In the case of members of the Company whose shares are entered against their names in the Depository Register, the
Company may reject any Proxy Form lodged if such members are not shown to have Shares entered against their names in
the Depository Register (as defined in Part IlIAA of the Securities and Futures Act 2001 of Singapore), as at 72 hours before the
time appointed for holding this AGM as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.
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7. Members and Investors will not be able to ask questions “live” during the broadcast of this AGM. All members and
Investors may submit questions relating to the business of this AGM no later than 3.00 p.m. Saturday, 16 April 2022:

(@)  viathe Pre-registration Website https://smartagm.sg/Zheneng]injiangAGM2022; or
(b) by email to AGM.TeamE@boardroomlimited.com; or

(c) by post to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte. Ltd., at 1 Harbourfront
Avenue #14-07, Keppel Bay Tower, Singapore 098632.

In view of the current Covid-19 situation and the related safe distancing measures which may make it difficult to
submit questions by post, members and Investors are strongly encouraged to submit their questions via the Pre-
registration Website or by email.

The Company will address all substantial and relevant questions relating to the resolutions to be tabled for approval
at the AGM or the Company's businesses and operations by publishing its responses to such questions, if any, on the
Company's corporate website at the following URL: http://en.znjjhj.com/info.html and on SGXNET at the following URL:
https://www.sgx.com/securities/company-announcements at least 48 hours prior to the closing date and time for the
lodgement of the proxy forms (“Responses to Q&A”").

8. All documents (including the Annual Report 2021, proxy forms, this Notice of Annual General Meeting and the Appendix to
this Notice of Annual General Meeting) or information relating to the business of this AGM have been, or will be, published
on SGXNet and/or the Company's website at http://en.znjjhj.com/info.html. Printed copies of the documents will not be
despatched to members. Members and CPF/SRS investors are advised to check SGXNet and/or the Company’s website
regularly for updates.

Personal data privacy:-

By pre-registering for the Live Webcast, submitting a Proxy Form appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy to vote at the
AGM and/or any adjournment thereof, and/or submitting questions relating to the resolutions to be tabled for approval at the AGM
or the Company’s businesses and operations, a member of the Company: (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of such
member’'s personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or
its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the AGM (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and
compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the AGM (including any adjournment thereof), and in
order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the
“Purposes”); (ii) warrants that where such member discloses the personal data of such member’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s)
to the Company (or its agents), such member has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the
collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for
the Purposes; and (iii) agrees that such member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands,
losses and damages as a result of such member’s breach of warranty.

206 Zheneng Jinjiang Environment Holding Company Limited



i AR

ZHENENG JINJIANG ENVIRONMENT HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED
FORMERLY KNOWN AS CHINA JINJIANG ENVIRONMENT HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

This annual report has been printed on paper with high recycled contents.



